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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardiimg statements within the meaning of Section@&#he Securities Act and
Section 21E of the Exchange Act. The forward-lagpktatements are contained principally in, but livoited to, the sections titled “Business,”
“Risk Factors,” and “Management’s Discussion andaysis of Financial Condition and Results of Oparas,” as well as elsewhere in this
Annual Report on Form -K. Forward-looking statements are identified bg tise of the words “would,” “could,” “will,” “may,” “expect,”
“believe,” “should,” “anticipate,” “outlook,” “if,”  “future,” “intend,” “plan,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential,” “targets,” “seek” or
“continue” and similar words and phrases, includittie negatives of these terms, or other variatofithese terms, that denote future events.
Forward-looking statements include, but are not limitedimdormation concerning our possible or assumedriiresults of operations,
competitive position, industry environment, pot@rgrowth opportunities and the effects of comjmetjitour market opportunity, our ability to
develop new solutions, our future financial andragiag performance, sales and marketing strategyestment strategy and the results of our
investments, research and development, customeswgmlier relationships, customer demand, industepnds, our cash needs and capital
requirements, and expectations about seasonadixgs, and operating expenses. These statemerstst r@fir current views with respect to
future events and our potential financial perforroarand are subject to risks and uncertainties twatld cause our actual results and financ
position to differ materially and adversely fromatlis projected or implied in any forwalooking statements included in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K. These factors include, but are rmuitkd to, the risks described under Item 1A of Ra#tRisk factors,” Item 7 of Part [I—
“Management’s discussion and analysis of financiahdition and results of operations,” elsewheréhis Annual Report on Form 10-K and
those discussed in other documents we file witlSE@. You are cautioned not to place undue reliamcthe forward-looking statements,
which speak only as of the date of this Annual RepoForm 10-K. We have no obligation (and explsedssclaim any such obligation) to
update or alter any forward-looking statements, thbe as a result of new information or otherwiseeapt as otherwise required by securities
regulations.

For purposes of this Annual Report, the terms “Ansba”,
consolidated subsidiaries.

the Company”, “we”, “us” and “our” refer t o Ambarella, Inc. and its




PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are a leading developer of semiconductor praegs®lutions for video that enable higefinition, or HD, video capture, sharing ¢
display. We combine our processor design capaslitiith our expertise in video and image processilyprithms and software to provide a
technology platform that is designed to be easijlable across multiple applications and enablelrapd efficient product development. Our
system-on-a-chip, or SoC, designs fully integral®\itleo processing, image processing, audio praogssd system functions onto a single
chip, delivering exceptional video and image qualiifferentiated functionality and low power congption.

The inherent flexibility of our technology platforemables us to deliver our solutions for numerqamieations in multiple markets. In
the camera market, our platform enables the creafitiigh-quality video content in wearable sp@dseras, automotive aftermarket cameras
professional and consumer Internet Protocol, oséurity cameras, telepresence cameras, and uethaenal vehicles, or UAV’s. Our
revenue growth over the last three years has béendoy specialized video and image capture deviteh as wearable sports cameras,
automotive aftermarket cameras and IP security casné the infrastructure market, our solutiorficently manage IP video traffic, broadc
encoding and transcoding and IP video deliveryiappbns.

We initially focused our technology platform on thérastructure market, where we were able to difféiate our solutions for broadcast
customers based on high performance, low powenuopson, transmission and storage efficiency andlsform factor. Leveraging these
same capabilities, we then designed hpginformance solutions for the camera market. Aesalt of the advantages of our solutions, we be
a leading provider of video processing solutionrscBimeras that capture both HD video and high-oéisal still images simultaneously. In
addition, we have released SoC solutions that coenbigh-resolution video and image capture capgslivith advanced networking,
connectivity and application processing functiotiedi.

We sell our solutions to leading original desigmunfacturers, or ODMs, and original equipment mactufiers, or OEMs, globally. We
refer to ODMSs as our customers and OEMSs as oucestbmers, except as otherwise indicated or asahtxt otherwise requires. In the
camera market, our video processing solutions esegded into products from leading OEMs includingsACommunications AB, Dahua
Technology Co., Ltd., GoPro Inc., Hikvision Digiteééchnology Co., and Robert Bosch GmbH and afiiagntities, who source our solutions
from ODMs including Asia Optical Co. Inc., ChicoRjectronics Co., Ltd., DigiLife Technologies CoarBJet Technology Corp., and Sky
Light Digital Ltd. In the infrastructure market, osolutions are designed into products from lea@igMs including Harmonic Inc., Motorola
Mobility, Inc. (owned by Arris Group, Inc.) and Bébnaktiebolaget LM Ericsson, who source our sohgifrom leading ODMs such as Plexus
Corp.

We employ a fabless manufacturing strategy anadamently shipping the majority of our solutionstive 45, 32 and 28 nanometer, or
nm, process nodes. As of January 31, 2015, we hpaemployees worldwide, approximately 70% of whomia research and development.
Our headquarters are located in Santa Clara, @aiifoand we also have research and developmeigindesnters and business development
offices in China, Japan, South Korea and Taiwan oo fiscal years ended January 31, 2015, 2012848, we recorded revenue of $218.3
million, $157.6 million and $121.1 million, respaely, and net income of $50.6 million, $25.7 nali and $18.2 million, respectively. We
have generated net income in each quarter beginvithghe first quarter of fiscal year 2010, and have generated cash from operations in
each of fiscal years starting from 2009.

Ambarella was founded and incorporated in the Cayrslands in January 2004. Our principal executiffices are located at 3101 Jay
Street, Santa Clara, California. Our website is wavmabarella.com. You can obtain copies of our Fatf, 10-Q, 8-K, and other filings with
the SEC, and all amendments to these filings,dfesharge, from our website as soon as reasonaabtipable following our filing of any of
these reports with the SEC. In addition, you magdrand copy any material we file with the SEC at$EC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F
Street, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obitsfiormation on the operation of the Public RefeeeRoom by calling the SEC at 1-800-
SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains a website thaazmreports, proxy, and information statementd, @her information regarding
registrants that file electronically with the SEGnavw.sec.gov.




Industry Background

Trends Impacting the Video Content Creation and Bibution Markets

Video traffic is growing at a significant rate. Thearket trends that are fundamentally impactingeoidontent creation and distribution
include the following:

Increasing Number of Video Capture Devic. Traditionally, HD video has been captured usargé, power intensive and
expensive dedicated devices. Recent improvememi®imideo capture quality, device size and cosehalowed video capture
functionality to be incorporated into a broad ranfeevices. Today, smartphones, tablets, weateeras, automotive
aftermarket cameras, IP security cameras, telepcessameras and unmanned aerial vehicles, or Uaéancreasingly including
both HD video capture and higjuality still image capture. In the IP video segtn#ithe camera market, growth is being driver
customers’ demand for HD imaging and networkingatélfties to replace aging analog and standardadifin systems currently
used for professional and consumer security agits. In addition to the significant growth in thember of devices, new
applications are emerging for video capture devidesy small HD cameras, or wearable cameras, pwrating connectivity to th
smart phone or internet are being developed for aygplications such as law enforcement, personalgg@nd social media. In
some regions of the world, such as China, Russiath3<orea and Taiwan, video capture devices argglselded as aftermarket
accessories to automobiles and connected to ordtbeenrding systems to capture video in the eveahancident, which assists
the legal and insurance claims process followingarident

Growing User-Generated ContenHlistorically, most video content was created kgdim companies, professional studios and
large broadcasters that possessed the equipmeettise and other resources necessary to producdistnbute such
programming. However, with the proliferation of lamest digital video devices and greater penetratidoroadband connectivity,
individuals are playing a greater role in contaettion and distribution than ever before. Websitesh as YouTube and Facebook
have enabled an effective new channel to wideltridige, store and display video and other rich imeleh addition to user-created
videos, other user-generated content such as eol&ferencing and video instant messaging throughcss provided by Apple,
Inc., Google Inc. and Skype, among others, arerhgapincreasingly popula

Broadband Penetration Enabling the Proliferation dhe Video Clouc. The adoption of high-speed broadband and the
proliferation of connected devices such as smartpbotablets, laptops, desktop computers and ctetheslevisions have allowed
consumers to more easily download and share IR\adeessed upon demand through the video cloudvitike cloud has led to
new business models based on personal contenaswgtheaming video provided by services like Yol ukdditionally,
consumers are leveraging the video cloud for sschyi utilizing an IP camera and cloud infrastruetto watch live HD video
streaming to any web connected device. This videadcapplication has enabled intelligent IP sutaeite systems that detect
activity and then stream encrypted HD video throsgture servers and alert end us

Advancements in Display Technolow. The increasing proliferation of HD displays ifetgsion and in mobile connected devices
such as laptops, smartphones and tablets is aatteteHD video content growth. This trend highliglithe new paradigm of
escalating consumer expectations of video qualitgh that video is comparable to high-resolutidhistages, which drove the
transition from standard definition to HD, and wvdtive the transition to ultra high-definition, HD. UHD is commonly referred
to as 4K video, which supports up to 4096x2160 Ipiper frame, more than four times greater resmhuthan the current Full HD
standard, which supports up to 1920x1080 pixeldrpene.

Requirement for Efficient Video Compressic. HD video is increasingly a requirement for consuwideo cameras, IP security
cameras and for the broadcast of television prograrhether via cable, satellite or IP networks. &mpressed HD video requires
massive amounts of digital data to represent @tessitating the need for H.264, and in the futhigh efficiency video coding, or
HEVC, video compression technology to reduce datiesrfor storage or for transmission of video awatworks with limited
bandwidth. In broadcast television, the upgradeedivorks to new HEVC video compression technolo@lysupport the transition
of consumers to 4K video. In consumer cameraseffi@ency of the encoding has a significant impactvideo quality, recording
time and battery life. In IP security cameras, @ig efficiency is important for realizing the higgt image quality possible over
bandwidth-limited networks, and for minimizing tbests of cloud-based storage of video content. thafdilly, the ability to
actively adapt the encoding bit-rate based on dngnagetwork bandwidth availability provides the higt possible video quality
and enables network traffic management. As conssiinereasingly view video on smartphones and tapietaddition to
traditional televisions and PCs, the ability tmgaate video content in real time to the varie@sotutions and bitates supported |
the smartphones or tablets is esser




Evolving End User Requirements for Video CapturedaBistribution

Camera users have evolving requirements with réspaonnectivity, simplicity and portability inaling:

Connectivity. Integrated wireless capability using wireles&disuch as Bluetooth and Wi-Fi is becoming an asirggly prevalent
feature across many classes of video capture dev@mnsumers want to watch, control and captutletirea video using their
smartphones as the remote control and viewer fazlegsly enabled wearable and sports cameras.idwialiy, rather than storing
images and video to local media and transferrirg computer later, consumers are demanding thiéyatbilwirelessly transfer and
share their video content to websites such as YbeTkacebook and other online media albums. Inovégeurity applications,
connectivity to cloud services allows users to rrmmsurveillance video in real-time on their smhadpes or tablets. The storage of
video in the cloud also provides protection agatinett of the video content and enables usersdpalility to interrogate and
playback the stored vide

Simplicity . Device manufacturers and software developersragaity struggle to balance enhanced functionalitth a simpler
user experience. Consumer preference has movedfeamayideo capture devices with multiple buttonsl @ontrols to less
complex devices with fewer buttons and more intgijraphical user interfaces and software apptinatiConsumers also expect
video and images to be captured and stored innaafiowhich can be edited, displayed and shared lyyie&sily and without the
need to upload to a computer. To provide consumghsincreasingly easy-to-use devices and intedaeigleo and image capture,
OEMs must be able to embed more intelligence iir thevice platforms to facilitate devices thatlgtra balance between making
decisions for the user and providing the user tithdesired level of control. For example, smanghocompanion cameras are
utilizing easy-to-use camera devices, with no @gpind limited control functionality on board, dederaging the intuitive
graphical user interfaces of smartphones as thenzomd and control center for view finding and faled playback or sharing. In
addition, simple to install HD home security cansezannected to cloud based services offering reimmtee monitoring and video
storage are replacing the more complicated, lowluéisn analog security systen

Portability and Rugged Durabilit,. Consumers are demanding increasingly smallepartéble video capture devices with ruggec
durability that capture high-quality images andeddSpecifically, consumers want to capture higahguvideo and images while
being active, such as with wearable cameras fatspgmlice or social media applications, or wittmeras embedded in accessc
such as sunglasses, or record possible eventsaasuaiaccident with an automotive aftermarket capmrcapture security related
footage from an IP security camera in an indoasuidoor environment. These growing use cases Hoeialy enabled by
technology that allows high performance, low povetitl image and video capture in rugged form fast

Evolving requirements for cameras and broadcaststructure equipment typically center around videfinition and frame rates, abil
to capture high-quality still images and video, evghgle viewing, analytics, and transcoding cafigbil

Higher Definition and Higher Frame Rate. The demand for enhanced video resolution has ineegasing in both the camera .
infrastructure markets. Consumers expect videaityual be closer to high-resolution still imagedieh continues to drive the
transition from standard definition to Full HD ahdyond. Similarly, as new display technologies émamgher resolutions and
higher frame rates, we believe consumer demandivwié the requirement for UHD or 4K video captaral transmission. In the
market for wearable sports cameras, for exampéeugon and frame rate have been the primary fastoonsumers’ purchasing
decisions. In the infrastructure market, consuneenand for viewing Full HD content has prompted diczesters to seek high-
performance solution:

Ability to Capture Higt-Quality Still Images and Video Historically, consumers have purchased devicasdither provide high-
quality image capture or record high-quality vid&bis was the result of consumer preference, aoredbly priced and sized
devices would provide only one of those attributéswever, as a result of technological improvemerdsasumer devices that
deliver both attributes have proliferated to thepthat a pure video capture device or still imagpture device is becoming
uncommon. Increasingly, devices are able to simatasly capture HD video and high-quality still ga without adversely
impacting the quality of either. We believe devitlest can capture Full HD video while encoding eosel mobile resolution video
for uploading to the Internet or streaming over aRMhetwork will expand consumer demand for spengalivideo capture devict
Additionally advanced low-light processing inclugihigh dynamic range and high-ISO processing wilitmue to improve image
quality even in challenging lighting conditior

Wide Angle Viewing The addition of de-warping capability allows cansat@ utilize a wide angle or “fish eye” lens to eoa

wide viewing area. In security applications thipaiility can allow a single camera to replace rpidtcameras and may also
eliminate the need for mechanical pan-tilt-zoorthi cameras. In automotive markets, the abilityaimbine and display images
captured by multiple cameras can allow the autoraatamera recorder to capture and display images fine front, rear and sides
of the car




. Analytics.Analytics is becoming increasingly important foe tthevelopment of intelligent video cameras. Inlfheecurity camera
market, analytics can be used for various functinokiding motion detection to trigger alarms, dhe counting and tracking of
people. The application of analytics data may ke &k used to help control the video encoding mot®reduce video bitrates and
maximize network efficiency. In the automotive mettkhe application of analytics for advanced driagsistance systems, or
ADAS, is increasingly being used to help driversit@motive analytics functions include lane detecticarning system (LDWS)
and forward collision warning (FCW). In generalwssful CPUs and dedicated analytics hardware ayeired to support the
analytics algorithms in video camer.

. Transcoding. The ability to decode and simultaneously re-eaduigh-quality video streams in multiple formatdieh is
commonly referred to as transcoding, using demsall$orm factor and power-efficient hardware israical requirement for
content providers and the video cloud. Given tliedhg connection speeds and capacities in cugenmtmunication networks,
broadcasters must be able to deliver video to qomssiat varying bit-rate and quality levels. Funthere, the significant increase
in the number and types of devices capable of ayépd video, from HD televisions to smartphoneguiees broadcasters and ot
distributors to have the capability to provide \admntent in multiple formats and source resoli

Limitations of Current Video Content Creation andiftribution Solutions

A device that captures video includes four primamsgnponents: a lens, an image sensor, a video macasd storage memory. The
video processor is the most complex of these foungry components as it converts raw video inptd amformat that can be stored and
distributed efficiently. Optimizing this procesgpresents a significant engineering challenge thbt @ limited number of companies have
successfully overcome. The processor is basedsoneaof signal processing and compression algosttimplemented using hardware
specifically built to process video and audio amdupported by system and software architecturemtopulate, store and distribute data
efficiently.

Given the complexity of video processing, meetih@@sumer demands in a single device is challemghs a result, solution providers
often compromise on one or more key specificati6os.example, in portable consumer devices andaré&®d video applications where power
consumption and device size are critical attributesny video capture devices available in the ntadday sacrifice image quality in order to
achieve low power consumption and a compact fogtofa

The performance of video and image compressiomtdofy has become increasingly important as fiteshave grown and video
traffic volumes have increased. Many current corsgiom solutions are developed from architecturaswiere originally optimized for still
image processing needs or lower resolution vidaesa result, these solutions use inefficient vidempression algorithms, which limit overall
system performance, increase storage and poweurgm®n requirements and slow video-transfer spaedsupload times. In the
infrastructure market, solutions based on ineffit@rchitectures tend to consume more power and hager form factors, thereby lowering
the number of available channels per encoder amitiig the ability to deliver multiple streams dfieo simultaneously.

Many leading camera OEMSs have used proprietaryntolgies to try to address these technical chadlengowever, many of these
OEMs are vertically integrated and generally altedawer resources to semiconductor design solsitioan are necessary, and hence are not
generally able to produce logest leading edge technologies quickly and effityerdditionally, the market for traditional SirgjLens Reflex
or SLR, and Digital Still Cameras, or DSC, is deiclg as smartphones increasingly include high guphotography and video capture
capability. The decline in market size combinechviliicreasing silicon tape out costs may continumaée vertically integrated semiconductor
developments less commercially attractive.




Our Solution

Our video and image processing SoCs, based onroprigtary technology platform, are highly confighte and satisfy the needs of
numerous applications in the camera and infrastraagnarkets. Our HD video and image processingisolsienable our customers to deliver
exceptional quality video and still imagery in simahsy-to-use devices with low power requiremedts. customized software solution
includes middleware, firmware and software develeptikits to optimize system-level functions an@wlkrapid integration of our solution and
specification adjustments.

Camera Market. In addition to enabling small device size and fmywer consumption, our SoC solutions make possible
differentiated functionalities such as simultaneeideo and image capture, multig&eam video capture and wireless connecti
For example, our solutions enable rugged weargdagscameras and small form factor wearable casrtbed transmit captured
video and images to connected devices and thenkttancluding social media sites. Additionallyy @oC solutions enable HD a
UHD IP security cameras that transmit HD and UH®@ewi efficiently to provide remote monitoring andhttol. Another use case
the automotive aftermarket camera, particularlyybapin emerging markets such as China, RussiahS¢area and Taiwan, whit
allows consumers to record video constantly andraatically from their automobiles so that thergigial evidence of accidents
other incidents

Infrastructure Market . Our SoC solutions enable high-performance, lowgrcconsumption broadcast devices with small form
factors, thereby reducing bandwidth needs, enesggeiand costs of additional hardware. Our solsitearable an increased numr
of channels per encoder due to high compressiariafties. They also make possible a new classaobétoders that can
simultaneously encode and stream multiple videméds to different end devices and can change viglsalution and transmission
rates based on available bandwidth and the disgapgbility of receiving device

New and Emerging Market. We intend to continue to customize and adapsolutions to meet the needs of additional emerging
markets. For example, we are working with end qusts to develop video capture devices for bothgasibnal and consumer
wearable camera applications, such as point-of-yielice cameras. In the IP security camera mavketare developing solutions
optimized for both professional and consumer apfibos, including low bit-rate encoding, battenecated devices and low light
operation. In addition, we are developing advaraalytics for the consumer and professional IP rigcand automotive markets
to enhance SoC functionality. We believe advaneedyéics on the SoC, such as face recognition,aligentification and motion
detection will expand the addressable market forSm(’s.

Our Competitive Strengths

Our platform technology solutions provide performamttributes that meet the highest standardsedhfrastructure market, satisfy the
stringent demands of the camera market and enalelgration of HD video and image capture capaédith portable devices. We believe that
our leadership in HD video and image processindiegons is the result of our competitive strerggtimcluding:

High-Performance, Low Power Video and Image Algorithnxjgertise. Our solutions provide Full HD and UHD video at
exceptional resolution and frame rates. Our extenaigorithm expertise, which facilitates efficieideo and image compression,
enables our solutions to achieve low power consiamptithout compromising performance. Our solutiachieve high storage
and transmission efficiencies through innovativd aemplex video and image compression algorithrasgtgnificantly reduce the
output bit-rate. This smaller storage footprinedity benefits the performance of our solutionsemeral ways including lower
memory storage requirements and reduced bandwigtisnfor transmission, which is more conducivehtriag content between
devices. These benefits are particularly imporiamtanscoding and video cloud applications. Odutsmns can enable high-
performance image capture of up to 30 16-megagtielmages per second. Our solutions can deltkear images in low light
conditions because of our 3D motion compensategdeah filtering, or MCTF, and multiple exposure pessing. Additionally, ot
wide dynamic range, or WDR, and high dynamic rangé¢{DR, processing capabilities provide greataraiygic range between the
lightest and darkest areas of an image, permittamjured still images to reveal details that wathierwise be lost against a bright
background. Our advanced de-warping capability lesatameras to use wide angle lenses to captugesmfeom a wide area,
making it ideal for a variety of IP security camegplications

Proprietary Video Processing Architectul. Our proprietary video processing architecturaeisigned to efficiently integrate our
advanced compression algorithms into our SoCsfey ekceptional storage and transmission efficieseit lower power across
multiple products and end markets. We engineeredeny-large-scale integration, or VLSI, architeetwith a focus on high-
performance video compression as opposed to sntutiat are based on a still image processingtaathie with add-on video
capabilities. Due to our primary focus on videogagsing compression, we believe that our solutifies exceptional performance
metrics with lower power requirements and redudedsites. Our integrated algorithms and architectdso enable simultaneous
processing of multiple video and image stree




Highly-Integrated SoC Solutions Based on a Scalable Riatfi. Our product families leverage our core high-penance video
processing architecture combined with an extens@tef integrated peripherals, which enables catfquim to address the
requirements of a variety of applications and emdkets. Traditional solutions have generally relipdn significant customization
to meet the specific requirements of each marksylting in longer design cycles and higher devalept costs. Our flexible and
highly-scalable platform enables us to addressiph@lmarkets with reduced design cycles and c@xts.platform also enables us
to develop fully integrated SoC solutions that jdevthe system functionalities required by our costrs on a single chip. Our
extensive system integration expertise enables uddgrate core video processing functionalityhwitany peripheral functions
such as multiple inputs and outputs, lens contglligash controllers and remote control interfaeseduce system complexity and
interoperability issues. Furthermore, we have ssafodly migrated our process nodes from 130nm tm28ince our founding and
have a proven track record of developing and deligemultiple solutions with first-pass silicon s@ss. Beginning in fiscal year
2015, we began investing in development of our gexteration SoCs in the 14nm process n

Comprehensive and Flexible Softwaréur years of investment in developing and optingour comprehensive and flexible
software serve as the foundation of our high-penorce video application solutions. Key componehtsuo software include
highly customized middleware that integrates mamygue features for efficient scheduling and othesteam-level functions, and
firmware that is optimized to reduce power requieais and improve performance. In addition, we mted our customers fully-
functional software development kits with a suit@pplication programming interfaces or APls, whadtow them to rapidly
integrate our solution, adjust product specifiaatiand provide additional functionality to theis®ms, thereby enabling them to
differentiate their product offerings and redueedito market

Broad Domain Experience in Video Processing and elty. Our engineering team, whose core members havieedaogether
for over 15 years, includes leading innovatorsidtew processing and delivery. Our VLSI team hasmsive multi-gigahertz,
superscalar CPU design experience from Intel Catjmor, Advanced Micro Devices, Inc. and Sun Micgieyns, Inc. Our team h
developed many industry firsts such as the firsglsi chip MPEG-2 encoder, the first consumer MPE@Ascoding SoC, the first
single chip HD H.264 encoder and camera SoC anfirfid080p60 and UHD infrastructure SoCs. Ounidwas developed an
ecosystem of high-performance software and hardeatgions that reduce customer system developtiveatand cost, thus
allowing for accelerated tin-to-market.

Key Global Relationships with Leading OEM and ODMu§tomers. Our solutions have been designed into top-tieMQiEands
currently in the market. We have established collative relationships with most of the leading ODaf&l OEMs that serve our
primary markets. Our collaborations with ODMs gugeextensive visibility into critical product desiglevelopment and
production timelines, and keep us at the forefadriechnological innovation. We actively engagehw@EMs on design
specifications and with ODMs on product implemebotatAdditionally, approximately 76% of our empl@geare located in Asia,
primarily in Taiwan and China, strategically plagins near many of our customers and allowing ysdeide superior sales, des
and technical support and to strengthen our custoahetionships

Our Strategy

Our objective is to be the leading provider of mssing solutions for the capture, sharing and alyspf HD and UHD video and still
imagery. Key elements of our strategy are to:

Extend Our Technology Leadershi. We intend to continue to invest in the developtméivideo and image processing solutions
designed to meet evolving consumer demands suletglasr performance, lower cost, lower power, cotiniyg and

interoperability with other connected devices. \Wend to leverage our existing technical expedise continue to invest
significant resources both in our current solutiand in developing solutions that address new nisudk®well as new segments of
existing markets. We will continue to recruit arel/dlop expertise in the area of high-performancegssor design and algorithm
and software development, and build on our progneintellectual property position in HD and UHDOdeb processing. We believe
that continued investment in our proprietary tedbgy platform will enable us to increase our tedbgial leadership in terms of
the performance and the functionality of our solns.

Deepen and Expand Our Customer Relationsh. We intend to continue to build and strengthenrelationships with existing
customers and also diversify our customer base cloge relationships with leading ODMs and OEMsvjife us with insight into
product roadmaps and trends in the marketplaceshalie intend to leverage to identify new opportiesiand applications for our
solutions, and we intend to continue to activelgage with ODMs and OEMSs at every stage of theiigiesycles. Once integrated
into a customer’s design, our product lifecyclagdtéo be for the life of the product, and we intémanaintain our incumbent
position with our customers by continually improyiaour solutions to meet their evolving needs. Webe as video formats
evolve toward UHD and beyond, complexity of desigh greatly increase the required investment fehbuse innovation, makir
high-performance merchant solutions, such as ours, attractive to potential camera end custom
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. Target New Applications Requiring Connectivity, Hideo Processing and Low PoweWe intend to leverage our core
technology platform to address other processingketathat have high-performance, robust connegtilotv latency and low
power requirements. Examples of markets that wéagtesed on penetrating are the wearable camerketsarvhich include sports,
professional and consumer applications, the mdoketutomotive aftermarket cameras, the professiamé consumer IP security
camera markets and the UAV market. Our cameraisokitability to provide connectivity and simultanes highquality video ant
image capture in a power efficient system havdifatd preliminary engagements with leaders indimerging wearable camera
markets. Additionally, our high-performance videmlamage capture, connectivity, capability to stnddD video efficiently and
power efficiency have enabled us to develop ratatiips with leaders in the wearable sports camar&ety the market for
automotive aftermarket cameras and the IP sectaityera market, which we intend to expand as th@skets continue to develc

. Leverage Our Global Business Infrastructur. We are committed to continue growing our glolddastructure. Our proximity to
key customers due to our extensive presence inlfesiaznabled us to build strong relationships ieiiding ODMs and OEMs. W
intend to increase our investments in researcrbasthess development personnel in Asia to furttrengthen these relationships.
We believe that growing our highly-integrated glob@yanization also provides us with a favorablstairucture while enabling
continued advancement of our technology. Our glstralkcture provides us access to an internatiomall @f engineering and
management talent, allowing us to recruit and netéghly accomplished personnel with proven experin video and image
processing solution:

Products

Our technology platform delivers a high-performaroe power video and image processing solution ¢ha be tailored with our
software development kits to meet the specific segdnultiple end markets. We also provide cust@méth guidelines known as reference
designs so that they can efficiently incorporatesmiutions in their product designs. We curresgil our solutions into the following end
markets:

. Broadcast and Traffic Managemer. Broadcasting equipment that enables HD videcetdistributed through satellite, cable and
IP infrastructures comprises this market. Our fiéxidigital signal processor, or DSP, architectlow, power requirements and
encoding expertise allow our end customers to cesgand thus transmit video efficiently optimizbandwidth and power usac

. Wearable Cameras including Sports, Commercial anatil Media. Durable cameras that provide HD video qualityéasingly
include embedded connectivity to share and dispidgo. Our low power, high-resolution and conneceldition can be found
majority variety of cameras in this end mar}

. Automotive Aftermarket Camera. In several international markets, such as ChHussia, South Korea and Taiwan, small video
cameras are mounted on board vehicles to recdfit taacidents and help establish records for iaae and liability purposes.
This market is still emerging, but has grown meghilty over the last year. Our low power, high-merhance, small form factor
solutions are well suited for this mark

. Professional IP Security Camere. These cameras are used for video monitoring eodrisy surveillance in professional
applications. Our solutions enable the streaminguaitiple video streams to enable remote monitoahmultiple locations.
Embedded intelligence supports advanced analytatading motion detection and people tracking. Thmeras often have the
ability to operate in low light conditions and oweide temperature ranges in order to be used idomutenvironments

. Consumer IP Security CamerasConsumer IP security cameras are designed foelwramall business use and are typically
connected to cloud services and applications vimehnetworks using WiFi. These cameras may reqairg kow bitrate operation
to support HD resolution over limited bandwidth &lband connections, while small form factors mayire very low power
operation. The implementation of intelligent motetection may reduce the number of false ala

. Unmanned Aerial Vehicles These cameras are integrated into unmanned aehalles, which may also be referred to as
quadcopters, drones or flying cameras, for capguaigrial video or photographs. Our high-performahégh frame rate and low
power architecture enables improved functionalitshvrull HD video capture. In addition, our ability provide high-resolution
still image capture and HD video capture simultarsfpenables hybrid capability for the us
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The chart below describes our current product lamastarget markets:

65nm 32nm
Infrastructure i et
Ab
broadcast encoders, s
1080p60 Quad 1080p60, 4:2:2
transcoders . s
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65nm 45nm 32Znm 2Bnm 28nm
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flvine cameras 1080p30 1080p30 10aBp6g 4K Uftra HD 1080p60 4K Ultra HD
ying Entry level S Advanced imaging  pdvanced Imaging Dual stream H.265, H.264
Dual-stream Dual Cortex-A9 Ultra low power Advanced Imaging
65nm
Automotive Anbarelis ﬁ
A2S ; .
cameras Dual 1080p30 Automotive Dual 1080p30 surround view Dual 1080p30
1080p30 Liin transceiver/ LDWS, FCW Advanced Imaging HDR
Entry level receiver Dual Cortex-A9 Single Cortex-Ag
LDWS, FCW
32nm 28nm
. A e o
IP security aacsia i
ASS 52 53
cameras
1080p30 4Kp30 1080p60 4K Ultra HD
Quad-stream Advanced analytics Single Cortex-AQ H.265, H.264
Linux Dual Cortex-A9 HDR Dual Cortex-AS
De-warping De-warping
Advanced Imaging
Technology

Our semiconductor processing solutions enable HDWAD (up to 3840x2160p30) video and image captideo compression, shari
and display while offering exceptional power, siwl performance characteristics.

Key differentiators of our technology include:
. algorithms to compress video signals with high coeapion and power efficiency at multiple operatioints;
. algorithms for high-speed image processing witthlilgage quality and power efficiency;

. scalable architecture that covers the gamut ofuwimes and professional HD video camera and encagfiptjcations from Full HD
to UHD performance level:

. ability to encode multiple video streams simultausdp to support simultaneous recording and videsashing, or streaming to
multiple devices with different resolutior

. support for transcoding between video formats kameple MPEG-2 to H.264;

. low-power architecture with minimal system memargtprint;

. programmable architecture that balances flexihitiyality, power and die size;

. full software development kit comprised of APIdagilitate integration into customers’ productsgan

. powerful CPUs and dedicated hardware to supporrazkd analytics functions.
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Our technology platform, comprised of our video #mdge processors, is based on a high-performémeegower architecture
supported by a high level of system integratiore Bhilding blocks of our platform are illustrateeldow:

Complete SoC +
System Software

Making UHD possible
for portable devices

Low Power Design Methodology

High Performance Chip Architecture m:ﬂ:fﬁr;eéded

AmbaClear™ AmbaCast™

16MPixel High Quality H.264 and H.265  4KP60 H.264

@ 60fps Capture Image UHD Video 4KP30 H.265
Processing Processing

Our technology platform enables the capture of mggolution still images and high-definition videile simultaneously encoding HD
video for high-quality storage and lower resolutiétieo for Internet sharing and wireless networkingal stream video capture enhances the
consumer experience by offering the ability toamsaneously share captured video without havirgptthrough a transcoding process.

AmbaClear

Our proprietary image signal processing architegtkinown as AmbaClear, incorporates advanced #fgasito convert raw sensor data
to high-resolution still and high-definition vidémages concurrently. Image processing algorithrokide sensor, lens and color correction,
demosaicing, which is a process used to reconsrfudt color image from incomplete color samplesise filtering, detail enhancement and
image format conversion. For example, raw senstar ¢ be captured at up to 16-megapixel resolati@® frames per second and filtered
down to two megapixels for HD video processing wisiélected 16-megapixel frames are concurrentlygssed by the still image processor.
This image processing reduces noise in the ingléovand improves video quality resulting in besterage and transmission efficiencies. Our
wide dynamic range, or WDR, and high dynamic rangé{DR, processing capabilities provide greateradyic range between the lightest anc
darkest areas of an image, permitting video imagesveal details that would otherwise be lost agjeé bright background. Our advanced de-
warping capability enables cameras to use wideediegkes to capture images from a wide area, makidgal for a variety of IP security
camera and surround view applications.

AmbaCast

Our proprietary HD video processing architecturegn as AmbaCast, incorporates advanced algorifbnmaotion estimation, motion-
compensated temporal filtering, mode decision aiel control. Successful implementation of thesemdationally intensive steps has helped
us maximize compression efficiency. We supportrate compression profiles—baseline, main and higb-specified in the H.264. We also
support the main profile H.265 compression withtai@x better compression efficiency compared totd@64 compression.
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Our solutions for the broadcast infrastructure raagdlow OEMs to offer both the H.264 and MPEG-2aing formats. Although
H.264 has become the industry standard, MPEG-lisvglely used as the format of both standard aigh-definition digital television signa
that are broadcast by terrestrial (over-the-aaple and direct broadcast satellite televisionesyst All of our video encoding solutions have
decoding capabilities as well.

Design Methodology

The success of our technology platform stems frama¢gorithm-driven design methodology. We test aedfy our algorithms on our
proprietary architectural model prior to implemagtiour algorithms in hardware. Our advanced veiifi;m methodology validates our
approach through simultaneous modeling of architec¢ialgorithms and the hardware itself. This reldumt approach enables us to identify anc
remediate any weaknesses early in the developmyel®, providing a solid foundation on which we loudur hardware implementation, and
enhances our ability to achieve first-pass silisnocess. We have a history of using several prowasss from 130nm through 28nm. In fiscal
year 2015, we began investing in development ofnext generation SoCs in the 14nm process nodgdssess extensive expertise in vi
and imaging algorithms as well as deep sub-micigitadland mixed-signal design experience.

SoC Solution

Our SoC designs integrate HD and UHD video proogssimage processing, applications processing gsteis functions onto a single
chip, delivering exceptional video and image qyalitth differentiated features, including advanedtkless connectivity. Our multi-core DSP
architecture is highly scalable and balances soéyweaogrammability with hardware-accelerated penfmce to achieve extremely low power
consumption and maximize camera battery life. Tiogi@ammable architecture provides our custometts thiit flexibility they need to quickly
develop a wide range of differentiated productsdifidnally, our SoCs integrate mixed signal (an&igjtal) functionality and high speed
interfaces required for interfacing to advancedtsgeed CMOS sensors and industry standard inesrfaech as USB 2.0 and HDMI 2.0.

Our H1 SoC, which we introduced in January 201ppsuts 4K UHD video resolution at 60 frames peiosecas well as high franrate
video for capturing fast-action sports with 1080gew at 240 frames per second or 720p video afréBdes per second. Our H1 SoC includes
dual core ARMP Cortex™-A9 CPUs providing the performance requiiedadvanced applications including wireless corinitg to
smartphones for video streaming or image sharingdeanced analytics. Fabricated in 28nm CMOS telclyy, the H1 SoC offers low power
consumption, enabling 4KP60 resolution video camrigh small form factors.

Software Development Kit for Connectivity

Our video streaming technology enables the camearaige to be previewed on a smartphone, so therearaa be optimally set up and
controlled remotely. To enable this functionaliyd customers deploy our Wireless Camera Develoiét; or the Kit, which enables the
design of cameras that combine still photographd/Faull HD video with wireless video streaming toastphones. The Kit leverages our multi-
stream encoding capability which supports the miogrof Full HD video while simultaneously recordiand streaming a second stream to the
smartphone. The Kit is available for our A7L So©gurct family, providing full 1080p60 HD video witfhotography and low power
consumption. This Kit enables accelerated end oust@roduct development and allows consumers tayeghg benefit of a ruggedized sports
or wearable camera with smartphones that enabletescontrol, viewing, playback and Internet videéaring.

Transcoding Expertise

We were the first to market with a single-chip litoast-class high definition H.264 codec. Our cursstution for the infrastructure
market, the A8 Broadcast Encoder/Transcoder salutjoadruples throughput of our A6 solution whééaining the small form factor and
power efficiency required of high density applioats. The A8 delivers significantly improved vidaweding quality and additional
functionality including audio processing, graphi@day, multi-pass, and multi-screen encoding. ABeaddresses content contribution,
distribution and turn-around markets with 420/42@ &/10 bit encode, decode, and transcoding of MR2EBd H.264.
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Customers

We sell our solutions to leading original desigmufacturers, or ODMs, and original equipment maaufie@rs, or OEMSs, globally. We
refer to ODMSs as our customers and OEMs as oucestbmers, except as otherwise indicated or asahixt otherwise requires. In the
camera market, our video processing solutions esegded into products from leading OEMs includingsACommunications AB, Dahua
Technology Co., Ltd., GoPro Inc., Hikvision Digifééchnology Co., and Robert Bosch GmbH and aféiiagntities, who source our solutions
from ODMs including Asia Optical Co. Inc., ChicoBjectronics Co., Ltd., DigiLife Technologies CoarSJet Technology Corp., and Sky
Light Digital Ltd. In the infrastructure market, Iosolutions are designed into products from lead&dMs including Harmonic Inc., Motorola
Mobility, Inc. (owned by Arris Group, Inc.) and Bébnaktiebolaget LM Ericsson, who source our sohgifrom leading ODMs such as Plexus
Corp.

Sales to customers in Asia accounted for approxly&1%, 88% and 87% of our revenue in the fisegrg ended January 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013, respectively. As many of our OEM @mstomers or their ODM manufacturers are locatedsia, we anticipate that a majority
of our revenue will continue to come from salesustomers in that region. Although a large peraggmtf our sales are made to customers in
Asia, we believe that a significant number of theducts designed by these customers and incorpgratir SoCs are then sold to consumers
globally. In fiscal years 2015, 2014 and 2013, 98836 and 78% of our revenue was attributable tessai our solutions into the camera
market, respectively, and 6%, 12% and 22% of ouemae was attributable to sales of our solutiots tine infrastructure market, respectively.
To date, all of our sales have been denominatétdSn dollars.

We work closely with our end customer OEMs and O0Msughout their product design cycles that oftest six to nine months for ti
camera market, though new products within the camerket may have longer design cycles, and 18 todnths for the infrastructure
market. As a result, we are able to develop lomgrtelationships with our customers as our techonolzecomes embedded in their products.
Consequently, we believe we are well positioneddbonly be designed into our customers’ currentpcts, but also to continually develop
next-generation, HD video and image processingtisais for their future products.

The product life cycles in the camera market tylpjaange from six to 18 months. The product lifeles in the infrastructure market
typically range from two to five years, where nessguct introductions occur less frequently. For gnahour solutions, early engagement with
our customers’ technical staff is necessary focess. To ensure an adequate level of early engageoe application and development
engineers work closely with our customers to adpstuct specifications and add functionality ittieir products.

Approximately 89%, 85% and 80% of our revenue wersvdd from sales through our logistics provideint&’ch Microelectronics Co.,
Ltd., or Wintech, and through one large direct OBltomer, Chicony Electronics Co., Ltd., or Chicdioy the fiscal years ended January 31,
2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. We currently, iihd expect to continue to rely, on a limited temof customers for a significant portion
of our revenue. In fiscal year 2015, sales direatly through our logistics providers to our fivegksst customers collectively accounted for
approximately 64% of our revenue and sales to Odargest customers collectively accounted for apipnately 74% of our revenue. In fiscal
year 2014, sales directly and through our logigticviders to our five largest customers collediivaecounted for approximately 55% of ¢
revenue and sales to our 10 largest customersctioéiy accounted for approximately 67% of our newe. In fiscal year 2013, sales directly
and through our logistics providers to our fivegkest customers collectively accounted for approiége87% of our revenue and sales to our
10 largest customers collectively accounted foraxmately 48% of our revenue.

Sales and Marketing

We sell our solutions worldwide using our diredesdorce and, in limited volume, our logistics yiders. We have direct sales
personnel covering the United States, Asia and figjrand we operate sales offices in Santa Clatdp@é and Hong Kong, and business
development offices in China, Japan, South Koresed&n and Taiwan. In addition, in each of thesatloos, other than Sweden, we employ &
staff of field applications engineers to provideedt engineering support locally to our customers.

Our sales cycles typically require a significantastment of time and a substantial expendituresdurces before we can realize reve
from the sale of our solutions, if any. Our typisales cycle consists of a multi-month sales anéldpment process involving our customers’
system designers and management and our salesipersmd software engineers. If successful, thosgss culminates in a custonsedecisiol
to use our solutions in its system, which we rédesis a design win. Our sales efforts are typiddiligcted to the OEM of the product that will
incorporate our video and image processing solutianthe eventual design and incorporation of®a€ into the product may be handled by
an ODM on behalf of the OEM. Volume production niegin within six to 18 months after a design wiepending on the complexity of our
customer’s product and other factors upon whichmag have little or no influence. Once our solutibase been incorporated into a
customer’s design, they are likely to be usedtierlife cycle of the customer’s product. Conversalgesign loss to a competitor will likely
preclude any opportunity for future revenue froralsaustomer’s product.
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The end markets into which we sell our productshseen significant changes as consumer preferbagesevolved in response to new
technologies. As a result, the composition of @wenue may differ meaningfully during periods atteology or consumer preference chan
For example, in fiscal year 2011, pocket video nexerepresented approximately 40% of total revefhe.proliferation of smartphones and
their ability to capture high-quality video andldtnages significantly impacted this market, deiag pocket video cameras’ contribution to
approximately zero percent of total revenue indig@ar 2013. Conversely, our revenue derived fitoenwearable sports camera market, the |
security camera market and the market for autoraatftermarket cameras supported total revenue briovthe 2012-2015 fiscal years despite
the loss of our pocket video revenue. We expefdtssini consumer use of video capture to continuehtinge over time, as more specialized
cases emerge and video capture continues to peiéfe

Our sales are generally made pursuant to purchidsesareceived approximately four to 18 weeks pdhe scheduled product delivery
date, depending upon agreed terms with our custareat the current manufacturing lead time at the the purchase order is received. Thes
purchase orders may be cancelled without charge optification within an agreed period of time ivance of the delivery date, which may
be as short as 30 days. Due to the schedulingresgents of our foundry, assembly and test contracieze generally provide our contractors
with our production forecasts and place firm ordergproducts with our suppliers up to 20 week®ptd the anticipated delivery date, usually
without a purchase order from our own customers.standard warranty provides that our SoCs contgidefects in materials, workmanship
or performance may be returned for a refund ofptlmehase price or for replacement, at our disanetio

Manufacturing

We employ a fabless business model and use thitg-fmaindries and assembly and test contractonsanufacture, assemble and test
our solutions. This outsourced manufacturing apghiadlows us to focus our resources on the desijes and marketing of our solutions and
avoid the cost associated with owning and operatimgown manufacturing facility. Our engineers woltisely with foundries and other
contractors to increase yields, lower manufactudosts and improve quality. In addition, we beliewtsourcing many of our manufacturing
and assembly activities provides us the flexibitigeded to respond to new market opportunitieg)lffies our operations and significantly
reduces our capital requirements. We do not hayseanteed level of production capacity from anpwf suppliers’ facilities to produce our
solutions. We carefully qualify each of our supgdiand their subcontractors and processes in todeeet the extremely high-quality and
reliability standards required of our solutions.

Backlog

Our sales are primarily made through standard mselorders for delivery of products. Our manufactuproduction is based on
estimates and advance non-binding commitments fnastomers as to future purchases. We follow ingiystactice that allows customers to
cancel, change or defer orders with limited advaratece prior to shipment. Given this practice, deenot believe that backlog is a reliable
indicator of future revenue levels.

Wafer Fabrication

We have a history of using several process nodes #f30nm through 28nm. We currently manufacturentbgrity of our solutions in
45nm, 32nm and 28nm silicon wafer production preggsometries utilizing the services of severalkddht foundries. In fiscal year 2015, we
began investing in development of our next genena®oCs in the 14nm process node. Currently, therityaof our SoCs are supplied by
Samsung in South Korea, from whom we have the pptigpurchase both fully-assembled and tested ptedis well as tested die in wafer
form for assembly. We also have products supplieGlobal UniChip Corporation, or GUC, in Taiwangifn whom we purchase fully-
assembled and tested products. The wafers used)ByiGthe assembly of our products are manufacthye@laiwan Semiconductor
Manufacturing Co., Ltd., or TSMC, in Taiwan.

Assembly and Testing

Samsung subcontracts the assembly and initiahtesfithe assembled chips it supplies to us toeigsn Corporation and STATS
ChipPAC Ltd. In the case of purchases of testedrdim Samsung, we contract the assembly to AdvaBesdiconductor Engineering, Inc., or
ASE. GUC subcontracts the assembly of the produstgplies to us to ASE and Powertech Technology Final testing of all of our produc
is handled by King Yuan Electronics Co., Ltd. og@8d Corporation under the supervision of our eegis. All test software and related
processes for our products are developed by ouneag. We continually monitor the results of tegtat all of our test contractors to ensure
that our testing procedures are properly implentente

As part of our total quality assurance program,guality management system has been certified@9@01:2000 standards. Our
foundry vendors are also ISO 9001 certified.
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Research and Development

We believe our technology is a competitive advami@gd we engage in substantial research and dewetdpefforts to develop new
products and integrate additional features andhhpes into our HD and UHD video processing s@uas. We believe that our continued
success depends on our ability to both introdugeanwed versions of our existing solutions and teetigp new solutions for the markets that
we serve. Our research and development team isrezadpf both semiconductor and software desigr@us.semiconductor design team has
extensive experience in large-scale semiconduetsigd, including architecture description, logid aircuit design, implementation and
verification. Our software design team has extensixperience in development and verification ofvsafe for the HD video market. Because
the integration of hardware and software is a l@ymetitive advantage of our solutions, our hardvesre software design teams work closely
together throughout the product development proddss experience of our hardware and software des@ms enables us to effectively as
the tradeoffs and advantages when determining wiittures and capabilities of our solutions shd@dmplemented in hardware and in
software.

We have assembled a core team of experienced engiaerd systems designers in three research aetbgment design centers located
in the United States, China and Taiwan.

For the fiscal years ended January 31, 2015, 20d46@13, our research and development expense5828 #illion, $48.8 million and
$42.8 million, respectively.

Competition

The global semiconductor market in general, andritheo and image processing markets in particala highly competitive. We expect
competition to increase and intensify as more angelr semiconductor companies enter our marketsedsed competition could result in price
pressure, reduced profitability and loss of magketre, any of which could materially and adversdfigct our business, revenue and operating
results.

Currently, our competitors range from large, inggiwnal companies offering a wide range of semicetal products to smaller
companies specializing in narrow markets. Our print@mpetitors in the wearable sports and IP sgcodmera markets include HiSilicon
Technologies Co., Ltd., Geo Semiconductor, IncaiGMedia, Inc., Movidius Ltd., Socionext Inc., @mentity created from the merger of
system LSI businesses of Fujitsu Limited and Pamasoorporation, and Texas Instruments Incorporaaedvell as vertically integrated
divisions of consumer device OEMSs, including Cahmn and Sony Corporation. In the automotive aftettat camera market, we compete
against Alpha Imaging Technology Corp., Core Lotic,, Novatek Microelectronics Corp. and Sunplesfinology Co. Ltd. Our primary
competitors in the infrastructure market includli€orporation, Magnum Semiconductor, Inc. andakebnstruments Incorporated. Certain of
our customers and suppliers also have divisiontspiftaluce products competitive with ours. We expechpetition in our current markets to
increase in the future as existing competitors owpror expand their product offerings and as paknéw competitors, such as Broadcom
Corporation, MediaTek, Inc., NVIDIA Corporation, @aomm Incorporated and Samsung, enter these rsarket

Our ability to compete successfully depends on etfgmboth within and outside of our control, inéhglindustry and general economic
trends. Many of our competitors are substantiahgér, have greater financial, technical, marketitigtribution, customer support and other
resources, are more established than we are, aredsigmificantly better brand recognition and breragroduct offerings which may enable
them to develop and enable new technology intoysrbsiolutions better or faster than us and to betitlistand adverse economic or market
conditions in the future.

Our ability to compete successfully in the rapieiyolving HD video market depends on several faciocduding:

. the design and manufacturing of new solutions @ngitipate the video processing and integratioms@é our customers’ next-
generation products and applicatio

. performance, as measured by video and still pigtaegje quality, resolution and frame processings;at
. power consumption;

. the ease of implementation by customers;

. the strength of customer relationships;

. the selection of the foundry process technologyamtitecture tradeoffs to meet customers’ prodegtirements in a timely
manner;

16




. reputation and reliability;
«  customer support; and

. the cost of the total solution.

We believe we compete favorably with respect tedhfactors, particularly because our solutionscyipi provide high-performance and
low power consumption video, efficient integratimihour advanced algorithms, exceptional storagetarmission efficiencies at lower
power, highly-integrated SoC solutions based ocatable platform, and comprehensive and flexibfeasore. We cannot ensure, however, tha
our solutions will continue to compete favorabltloat we will be successful in the face of incraggitompetition from new products
introduced by existing or new competitors.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of intellectual propeiights, including patents, trade secrets, copyrightstrademarks, and contractual
protections, to protect our core technology anelliettual property. As of January 31, 2015, we foaty-two issued and allowed patents in the
United States plus twenty additional continuatiatepts, three issued patents in China, one issatedtin Japan and twenty-six pending and
provisional patent applications in the United Stafehe issued and allowed patents in the UnitetbS&xpire beginning in 2024 through 2033.
Many of our issued patents and pending patent egtjins relate to image and video processing andiid® compression.

We may not receive competitive advantages fromraghyts granted under our patents, and our pategiicapions may not result in the
issuance of any new patents. In addition, any paterhold may be opposed, contested, circumvedesigned around by a third-party or
found to be unenforceable or invalidated. Otherg develop technologies that are similar or supeadayur proprietary technologies, duplicate
our proprietary technologies or design around piatewned or licensed by us.

In addition to our own intellectual property, we@lse third-party licenses for certain technolegimbedded in our SoC solutions.
These are typically non-exclusive contracts prosideder royalty-accruing or paid-up licenses. THesmses are generally perpetual or
automatically renewed for so long as we continugatp any maintenance fees that may be due. Tomiaiefenance fees have not constitut
significant portion of our capital expenditures. M¢twe do not believe our business is dependeanyosignificant degree on any individual
third-party license, we expect to continue to use may license additional third-party technologydar solutions.

We generally control access to and use of our denfial information through employing internal amdernal controls, including
contractual protections with employees, contracamd customers. We rely in part on U.S. and inténal copyright laws to protect our mask
work. All employees and consultants are requireeicute confidentiality agreements in connectidth their employment and consulting
relationships with us. We also require them to agoedisclose and assign to us all inventions deedeor made in connection with the
employment or consulting relationship.

Despite our efforts to protect our intellectualpedty, unauthorized parties may still copy or otvise obtain and use our software,
technology or other information that we regard mgppgetary intellectual property. In addition, weeénd to expand our international operations
and effective patent, copyright, trademark anddrsecret protection may not be available or malyniiged in foreign countries.

The semiconductor industry is characterized by nage protection and pursuit of intellectual propeights and positions, which has
resulted in protracted and expensive litigationfiamy companies. Our customers have in the pasivest; and we expect that in the future we
may receive, communications from various indusastipipants alleging infringement of their patentade secrets or other intellectual prop
rights by our solutions. In addition, certain of @nd customers have been the subject of lawdliggirag infringement of patents by products
incorporating our solutions. Any lawsuits could @b us to significant liability for damages, inigilte our proprietary rights and harm our
business and our ability to compete. Any litigaticegardless of success or merit, could cause ineto substantial expenses, reduce our sale
and divert the efforts of our technical and manag@npersonnel. In the event we receive an advessdtrin any litigation, we could be
required to pay substantial damages, seek licdrmmsthird parties, which may not be available easonable terms or at all, cease sale of
products, expend significant resources to develleprative technology or discontinue the use otpsses requiring the relevant technology.
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Employees

At January 31, 2015, we employed a total of 524pfedncluding 125 in the United States and 398sra, primarily in China and
Taiwan. We also engage temporary employees anditants. None of our employees are either represdny a labor union or subject to a
collective bargaining agreement. We have not egpesd any work stoppages, and we consider ouramsatvith our employees to be good.

Information concerning revenue, results of operaj@ssets and revenue by geographic area isrgetrfdtem 6, “Selected Financial
Data” and Note 11, “Segment Reporting,” of Note€tmmsolidated Financial Statements of this Annugpdt on Form 10-K and is
incorporated herein by reference. Information conicg risks attendant to our foreign operationsesforth below in Iltem 1A, “Risk Factors.”

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Certain factors may have a material adverse eff@cour business, financial condition and result®pérations. You should consider
carefully the risks and uncertainties describedbelin addition to other information contained g Annual Report on Form 10-K, including
our consolidated financial statements and relatetes. The risks and uncertainties described bel®anat the only ones we face. Additional
risks and uncertainties that we are unaware ofthat we currently believe are not material, mayoab@come important factors that adversely
affect our business. If any of the following risks$ually occurs, our business, financial conditicesults of operations, and future prospects
could be materially and adversely affected. In #hant, the trading price of our ordinary share ltbdecline, and you could lose part or all of
your investmeni

Risks Related to Our Business and Our Industry

If our customers do not design our solutions intiodir product offerings, or if our customers’ prodeiofferings are not commercially
successful, our business would suffe

We sell our video and image processing system-ohia-or SoC, solutions to original equipment mactidirers, or OEMs, who include
our SoCs in their products, and to original desiganufacturers, or ODMs, who include our SoCs ingteelucts that they supply to OEMs. \
refer to ODMSs as our customers and OEMs as oucestbmers, except as otherwise indicated or asahtxt otherwise requires. Our video
and image processing SoCs are generally incorgbiate our customergroducts at the design stage, which is referrexbta design win. As
result, we rely on OEMs to design our solutions itte products that they design and sell. Withbesé design wins, our business would be
harmed. We often incur significant expendituresaii@ping a new SoC solution without any assuranatah OEM will select our solution for
design into its own product. Once an OEM desigosmpetitor’'s device into its product, it becomamsficantly more difficult for us to sell
our SoC solutions to that OEM because changinglswppnvolves significant cost, time, effort angkrfor the OEM. Furthermore, even if an
OEM designs one of our SoC solutions into its poddwe cannot be assured that the OEM’s produd¢teicommercially successful over time
or at all or that we will receive or continue teeé&/e any revenue from that OEM. For example, impdosmartphone video capture
capabilities, and rapid adoption of smartphonesdnsumers, led to the decline of an entire categbpocket video cameras aimed at the
casual video capture market. In fiscal year 20btkpt video revenue represented approximately 408tiototal revenue. The proliferation of
smartphones and their ability to capture high-quafideo and still images significantly impactedstmarket, decreasing pocket video camera:
contribution to approximately zero percent of atal revenue by fiscal year 2013. If other prodtategories incorporating our SoC solutions
are not commercially successful or experience rdpidine, our revenue and business will suffer.
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We depend on a limited number of customers and eadtomers for a significant portion of our revenu#.we fail to retain or expanc
our customer relationships, our revenue could dedi

We derive a significant portion of our revenue frartimited number of ODMs who build products on &i¢lof a limited number of
OEMs and from a limited number of OEMs to whom \ugdglirectly. We anticipate that this customer camtecation will continue for the
foreseeable future. In fiscal year 2015, salexctirand through our logistics providers to ourfikargest customers collectively accounted for
approximately 64% of our total revenue, and salesur ten largest customers collectively accoufwe@pproximately 74% of our total
revenue. In fiscal year 2015, sales to our lar@&# customer accounted for approximately 32% oftotal revenue. This ODM customer
builds products for several OEM customers as weefbaits own brand. We believe that our operategplts for the foreseeable future will
continue to depend on sales to a relatively smatitmer of customers and end-customers. In the futiiese customers may decide not to
purchase our SoC solutions at all, may purchaserfealutions than they did in the past or may dheir purchasing patterns. As substantially
all of our sales to date have been made on a pseatraer basis, these customers may cancel, coanigéay product purchase commitments
with little or no notice to us and without penadtyd may make our revenue volatile from period tdoge For example, our largest OEM end
customer in fiscal year 2011, Eastman Kodak Companitodak, closed its camera division in Janudr$2 The loss of a significant custor
could happen again at any time and without notiod, such loss would likely harm our financial cdiwdi and results of operations.

In addition, our relationships with some custonmaey deter other potential customers who compete thése customers from buying
our solutions. To attract new customers or retaistiag customers, we may have to offer these costs favorable prices on our solutions. In
that event, our average selling prices and grosginsmwould decline. The loss of a key customegdaiction in sales to any key customer or
our inability to attract new customers could sesigumpact our revenue and harm our results of atpmrs.

Our customers may cancel their orders, change protion quantities or delay production. If we fail taccurately forecast demand for
our solutions, revenue shortfalls, or excess, oledelor insufficient inventory could result.

Our customers typically do not provide us with filong-term purchase commitments. Substantiallpfatiur sales are made on a
purchase order basis, which permits our custonoecaricel, change or delay their product purchaserdtments with little or no notice to us
and without penalty to them. Because productiod teéaes often exceed the amount of time requiredurycustomers to fill their orders, we
often must build SoCs in advance of orders, relyingan imperfect demand forecast to project voluamesproduct mix.

Our SoCs are incorporated into products manufadtayeor for our end customers, and as a resultadénfor our solutions is influenc:
by the demand for our customers’ products. Ouiitghid accurately forecast demand can be adveefédgted by a number of factors,
including inaccurate forecasting by our custometiscalculations by our customers of their invent@guirements, changes in market
conditions, adverse changes in our product orderamd fluctuating demand for our customers’ progduEven after an order is received, our
customers may cancel these orders or request aeadecin production quantities. Any such cancetabiodecrease subjects us to a number of
risks, most notably that our projected sales will materialize on schedule or at all, leading taniitipated revenue shortfalls and excess or
obsolete inventory that we may be unable to seitier customers.

Alternatively, if we are unable to project customequirements accurately, we may not build enoun@sSwhich could lead to delays in
product shipments and lost sales opportunitieeeémear term, as well as force our customers ttifgealternative sources, which could affect
our ongoing relationships with these customers Haiee in the past had customers significantly irmedheir requested production quantities
with little or no advance notice. If we do not flilEustomer demands in a timely manner, our custenmay cancel their orders and we may b
subject to customer claims for cost of replacemeanaddition, the rapid pace of innovation in owdustry could render portions of our
inventory obsolete. Excess or obsolete inventorgliecould result in unexpected expenses or inesi@sour reserves that could adversely
affect our business, operating results and findoiadition. In addition, any significant futurergzellations or deferrals of product orders coulc
harm our margins, increase our write-offs due tmlpct obsolescence and restrict our ability to fandoperations.
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Our target markets may not grow or develop as werently expect and are subject to market risks, asfywhich could harm our
business, revenue and operating results.

To date, our revenue has been attributable to dermarour video and image processing SoCs in theeca and infrastructure markets
and the growth of these overall markets. We injtifdcused on the infrastructure market, and tlemetaged our knowledge and experience to
design solutions for the camera market. We detieestibstantial majority of our revenue from the esarmarket, and our operating results are
increasingly affected by trends in the camera maiKeese trends include demand for higher resaluticcreasing functionality, longer battery
life, greater storage and connectivity requirementsle accommodating more sophisticated standfardgdeo compression. We may be
unable to predict the timing or development of ¢hesrkets with accuracy. For example, the prolifenaof smartphones having the ability to
capture high-quality video and still images hasigigantly impacted the camera market in a reldgiahort period of time and continues to
impact this market. In the Internet Protocol, ord€curity camera market, a slower than expectegdtamh rate for digital technology in place
analog solutions could slow the demand for ourtsmts. If our target markets, such as wearable casnautomotive aftermarket cameras, IP
security cameras, and UAV cameras, do not groveseldp in ways that we currently expect, demandiorvideo and image processing S
may not materialize as expected and our businessperating results could suffer.

Fluctuations in our operating results on a quartgrland annual basis could cause the market priceoaf ordinary shares to decline.

Our revenue and operating results have fluctuatgdficantly from period to period in the past aae likely to do so in the future. In
particular, our business tends to be seasonalhigtier revenue in our third quarter as our custemggically increase their production to meet
yearend demand for their products. We may also expeeieseasonally lower demand in our first quartéh@Asia-based portion of the IP
security camera market as a result of industryaedsy and the impact of ODM and OEM factory clessiassociated with the Chinese New
Year holiday. As a result, you should not rely emnipd-to-period comparisons of our operating resatt an indication of our future
performance. In future periods, our revenue andltesf operations may be below the expectatiorenafysts and investors, which could c¢
the market price of our ordinary shares to decline.

Factors that may affect our operating results iheiu
. fluctuations in demand, sales cycles, product iaad prices for our products;
. the forecasting, scheduling, rescheduling or caabeh of orders by our customers;

. shifts in consumer preferences and any resultaamgshin demand for video and image capture deintesvhich our solutions are
incorporated

. changes in the competitive dynamics of our marketd,iding new entrants or pricing pressures;

. delays in our customers’ ability to manufacture ahgb products that incorporate our solutions cdumseinternal and external
factors beyond our contrc

. our ability to successfully define, design and askenew solutions in a timely manner that meetastomers’ needs;

. changes in manufacturing costs, including wafest, aad assembly costs, mask costs, manufacturahdsyand product quality and
reliability;

. timely availability of adequate manufacturing capafrom our manufacturing subcontractors;

. the timing of product announcements by our competior by us;

. incurrence of research and development and refeedproducts expenditures;

. write-downs of inventory for excess quantities éaxhnological obsolescence;

. future accounting pronouncements and changes ouatiag policies;

. volatility in our share price, which may lead tghér stock-based compensation expense;

. general socioeconomic and political conditionshia tountries where we operate or where our produetsold or used; and

. costs associated with litigation, especially reldteintellectual property.
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Moreover, the semiconductor industry has histoigda¢en cyclical in nature, reflecting overall eoaric conditions as well as budgeting
and buying patterns of consumers. We expect thedieal conditions to continue. As a result, ouaderly operating results are difficult to
predict, even in the near term. Our expense levelselatively fixed in the short term and are bage part, on our expectations of future
revenue. If revenue levels are below our expectatiove may experience declines in margins andtptility or incur losses.

Achieving design wins is subject to lengthy comped selection processes that require us to incign#ficant costs. Even if we begin
product design, a customer may decide to cancattmnge its product plans, resulting in no revenueiin such expenditures

We are focused on selling our video and image psing solutions to ODMs and OEMs for incorporatimio their products at the
design stage. These efforts to achieve design typisally are lengthy, especially in new marketsintend to address, and in any case can
require us to both incur design and developmentsansd dedicate scarce engineering resources sniipof a single customer opportunity. We
may not prevail in the competitive selection pracasd, even when we do achieve a design win, weneagr generate any revenue despite
incurring development expenditures. For examplé¢hénpast we had achieved a significant designamhprojected substantial future revenue
from that end customer as a result of that design 8ubsequently, based on changes in that endroess assessment of the consumer ma
among other factors, the end customer abruptly gbwh its business unit with which we achieveddhsign win, with no notice to us.

These risks are exacerbated by the fact that sémer@nd customers’ products, particularly in taenera market, likely will have short
life cycles. Further, even after securing a desi@n we have experienced and may again experieglegslin generating revenue from our
solutions as a result of the lengthy product dgumlent cycle typically required, if we generate agyenue at all as a result of any such desigr
win.

Our customers generally take a considerable anufuithe to evaluate our solutions. The typical tifrmm early engagement by our
sales force to actual product introduction runsifitine to 12 months for the camera market, and 22ltmonths for the infrastructure market,
though it may take longer in new markets we intendddress. The delays inherent in these lengtleg sagcles increase the risk that a custc
will decide to cancel, curtail, reduce or delaypiteduct plans, causing us to lose anticipatedssiieaddition, any delay or cancellation of a
customer’s plans could harm our financial resaltsswe may have incurred significant expense andrgeed no revenue. Finally, our
customers’ failure to successfully market and thelir products could reduce demand for our SoCtisols and harm our business, financial
condition and results of operations. If we werehlado generate revenue after incurring substaexpénses to develop any of our solutions,
our business would suffer.

The average selling prices of video and image pssirg solutions in our target markets have histalty decreased over time and w
likely do so in the future, which could harm our venue and gross margins.

Average selling prices of semiconductor producth@émarkets we serve have historically decreasedtome, and we expect such
declines to continue to occur for our solutionsrdirae. Our gross margins and financial resultd suiffer if we are unable to offset reductions
in our average selling prices by reducing our caktseloping new or enhanced SoC solutions on elyilmasis with higher selling prices or
gross margins, or increasing our sales volumesitidddlly, because we do not operate our own mariufang, assembly or testing facilities,
we may not be able to reduce our costs as rapgdbpmpanies that operate their own facilities, amdcosts may even increase, which could
also reduce our gross margins. In the past, we tedweced the prices of our SoC solutions in arditigm of future competitive pricing
pressures, new product introductions by us or oorgetitors and other factors. Recently, we haverepced competitive pricing pressures at
the low ends of the automotive aftermarket cameaeket and China-based IP security camera markeeXyect that we will have to address
pricing pressures again in the future, which coelguire us to reduce the prices of our SoC solstamd harm our operating results.

We expect competition to increase in the future,iethcould have an adverse effect on our revenue andrket share.

The global semiconductor market in general, andritheo and image processing markets in particala highly competitive. We
compete in different target markets to various degron the basis of a number of competitive fachocfuding our solutions’ performance,
features, functionality, energy efficiency, sizase with which our solution may be integrated mto customers’ products, customer support,
reliability and price, as well as on the basis of @putation. We expect competition to increasgiatensify as more and larger semiconducto
companies enter our markets, and as the intersalirees of large OEMs grow. Increased competit@nccresult in price pressure, reduced
profitability and loss of market share, any of whaould harm our business, revenue and operatsutse
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Our competitors range from large, international pamies offering a wide range of semiconductor petglto smaller companies
specializing in narrow markets. In the wearablertsspeamera market, our primary competitors areicadly integrated divisions of camera
device OEMs, including Sony Corporation and Pan@sGorporation. In the IP security camera markat, grimary competitors include
HiSilicon Technologies Co., Ltd., Geo Semiconduchoc., Grain Media, Inc., Movidius Ltd., Sociondrt., a new entity created from the
merger of system LSI businesses of Fujitsu Ltd. Radasonic Corporation, and Texas Instruments pocated, as well as vertically integrated
divisions of IP Security camera device OEMSs, inaligdAxis Communications AB, and Sony. In the marfiketautomotive aftermarket
cameras, we compete against Alpha Imaging Techgdlagp., Core Logic, Inc., Novatek Microelectroniésrp. and Sunplus Technology Co.
Ltd. Our primary competitors in the infrastructumarket include Intel Corporation, Magnum Semicordydnc. and Texas Instruments
Incorporated. Certain of our customers and supphso have divisions that produce products cortipgetivith ours. We expect competition in
our current markets to increase in the future &stiag competitors improve or expand their procafftrings and as potential new competitors,
such as Broadcom Corporation, MediaTek, Inc., NVA@lorporation, Qualcomm Incorporated and SamsuegtEinics Co., Ltd., enter these
markets.

Our ability to compete successfully depends on etfgmboth within and outside of our control, inéhglindustry and general economic
trends. Many of our competitors are substantiaigér, have greater financial, technical, marketitigtribution, customer support and other
resources, are more established than we are aedsignificantly better brand recognition and braogateduct offerings which may enable
them to develop and enable new technology intoymrbsiolutions better or faster than us and to betitlistand adverse economic or market
conditions in the future. Our ability to competdlwepend on a number of factors, including:

. our ability to anticipate market and technologyntte and successfully develop solutions that meekehaeeds;
. our success in identifying and penetrating new ®@rlkapplications and customers;

. our ability to understand the price points and ganance metrics of competing products in the matkee;

. our solutions’ performance and cost-effectivenesative to that of competing products;

. our ability to gain access to leading design taold product specifications at the same time as@uwpetitors;
. our ability to develop and maintain relationshipgghvkey OEMs and ODMs;

. our products’ effective implementation of video pessing standards;

. our ability to protect our intellectual property;

. our ability to expand international operations itinaely and cost-efficient manner;

. our ability to deliver products in volume on a tisnbasis at competitive prices;

. our ability to support our customers’ incorporatfrour solutions into their products; and

. our ability to recruit design and application eregirs with expertise in image video and image pgingdechnologies and sales .
marketing personne

Our competitors may also establish cooperativdiogiships among themselves or with third partieaaguire companies that provide
similar products to ours. As a result, new compegdior alliances may emerge that could acquirefgignt market share. Any of these factors,
alone or in combination with others, could harm business and result in a loss of market shareandcrease in pricing pressure.

We are dependent on sales of a limited number aea and image processing solutions, and a declmenarket adoption of these
solutions could harm our busines

From inception through January 31, 2015, our regdras been generated primarily from the sale wfigeld number of high-definition,
or HD, video and image processing SoC solutiorteéncamera and infrastructure markets. Moreoverureently derive a substantial major
of our revenue from the sale of our SoCs for usbéncamera market and we expect to do so foreReseveral years. As a result, continued
market adoption of our SoC solutions in the canmeaaket is critical to our future success. If deméordour SoC solutions were to decline, or
demand for products incorporating our solutiondides, does not continue to grow or does not grewgected, our revenue would decline
and our business would be harmed.
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If we fail to develop and introduce new or enhancedlutions on a timely basis, our ability to attraand retain customers could be
impaired and our competitive position could be hagth

We operate in a dynamic environment characterizedpidly changing technologies and technologidaadescence. To compete
successfully, we must design, develop, market aticecshanced solutions that provide increasingljhbr levels of performance and
functionality and that meet the cost expectatidnsup customers. Our existing or future solutionsld be rendered obsolete by the
introduction of new products by our competitorsnpwergence of other markets, such as smartphon#ispwinto the camera market; the ma
adoption of products based on new or alternatigkrtelogies; or the emergence of new industry stalsd@r video compression. In addition,
the markets for our solutions are characterizefitdmyuent introduction of nexgeneration and new products, short product lifdesydancreasin
demand for added functionality and significant raompetition. If we or our customers are unablmamage product transitions in a timely
and cost-effective manner, our business and restutiperations would suffer.

Our failure to anticipate or timely develop newesthanced solutions in response to technologicfibstould result in decreased revenue
and our competitors achieving design wins that eeeght. In particular, we may experience difficutigith product design, development of
new software, manufacturing, marketing or qualifma that could delay or prevent our developmaenrttoduction or marketing of new or
enhanced solutions. In addition, delays in develapnecould impair our relationships with our custosnend negatively impact sales of our
solutions under development. Moreover, it is pdedifsat our customers may develop their own produetdopt a competitor’s solution for
products that they currently buy from us. If wd faiintroduce new or enhanced solutions that rtteeheeds of our customers or penetrate
markets in a timely fashion, we will lose markeaihand our operating results will be adverselgaéd.

If we fail to penetrate new markets, our revenuedafinancial condition could be harmed.

In the past several years, a significant amouwuofrevenue was generated from sales of our predacddEMs and ODMs of high
definition, or HD, video cameras and broadcastiritastructure equipment. Our future revenue groviémy, will depend in part on our abili
to expand within these markets with our video andge processing SoC solutions, particularly forraele sports cameras, automotive
aftermarket cameras, IP security cameras, andtés raw markets such as the non-sports wearablereamarket and the UAV market. Each
of these markets presents distinct and substaigia and, in many cases, requires us to develapsofware to address the particular
requirements of that market. If any of these marklet not develop as we currently anticipate orafare unable to penetrate them successfully
our revenue could decline.

Some of these markets are primarily served by arfgw large, multinational OEMs with substantiajotating power relative to us ai
in some instances, with internal solutions thatcampetitive to our products. Meeting the techniegjuirements and securing design wins \
any of these companies will require a substantigstment of our time and resources. We cannotagsu that we will secure design wins
from these or other companies or that we will aohimeaningful revenue from the sales of our sahgtioto these markets.

If we fail to penetrate these or other new marketsare targeting, our revenue likely will decreaser time and our financial condition
could suffer.
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We do not have long-term supply contracts with dhird-party manufacturing vendors, and they may naliocate sufficient capacity
to us at reasonable prices to meet future demaratsoiur solutions.

The semiconductor industry is subject to intensapetitive pricing pressure from customers and cditges. Accordingly, any increase
in the cost of our solutions, whether by adverselpase price variances or adverse manufacturingveoisinces, will reduce our gross margins
and operating profit. We currently do not have kegn supply contracts with most of our primarydhparty vendors, and we negotiate
pricing with our main vendors on a purchase ordepirchase order basis. Therefore, they are nagatield to perform services or supply
product to us for any specific period, in any sfiecjuantities, or at any specific price, exceptrees/ be provided in a particular purchase or
Availability of foundry capacity has in the recquast been limited due to strong demand. The alafigur foundry vendors to provide us wit
product, which is sole sourced at each foundrmiged by their available capacity, existing olatgpns and technological capabilities. Four
capacity may not be available when we need it oe@tonable prices. None of our third-party fourmrassembly and test vendors has
provided contractual assurances to us that adegapseity will be available to us to meet our dptited future demand for our solutions. Our
foundry and assembly and test vendors may allaagiacity to the production of other companies’ piatd while reducing deliveries to us on
short notice. In particular, other companies thatlarger and better financed than we are or the¢ flong-term agreements with our foundry ol
assembly and test vendors may cause our foundrgsambly and test vendors to reallocate capacttyetn, decreasing the capacity available
to us. Converting or transferring manufacturingira primary location or supplier to a backup foynekendor could be expensive and would
likely take at least two or more quarters. Theedarly a few foundries, including Samsung Elecsr@o., Ltd., or Samsung, and Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Co., Ltd., or TSMC tthee currently available for certain advanced pssdechnologies that we may utilize.
we transition to more advanced process nodes be3®ménometer, or nm, we will be increasingly dejgen upon such foundries.

If, in the future, we enter into arrangements witppliers that include additional fees to expedékvery, nonrefundable deposits or
loans in exchange for capacity commitments or camenits to purchase specified quantities over extgmperiods, such arrangements may be
costly, reduce our financial flexibility and be taxrms unfavorable to us, if we are able to secuck srrangements at all. Moreover, if we are
able to secure foundry capacity, we may be obldytdause all of that capacity or incur penaltiesede penalties could harm our financial
results. To date, we have not entered into any auemgements with our suppliers. If we need aolditi foundry or assembly and test
subcontractors because of increased demand anah#ify to obtain timely and adequate deliveriesf our current vendors, we may not be
able to do so cost-effectively, if at all.

A substantial portion of our revenue is processédaugh a single logistics provider and the losstbfs logistics provider may cause
disruptions in our shipments, which may adverselje&t our operations and financial condition.

We sell most of our solutions through a single $tigs provider, Wintech Microelectronics Co., Ltok,Wintech, which serves as our
non-exclusive sales representative in Asia, othan tlapan. Approximately 57%, 56% and 63% of ouenmae was derived from sales through
Wintech for the fiscal years ended January 31, 20054 and 2013, respectively. We anticipate thagaificant portion of our revenue will
continue to be derived from sales through Wintectihne foreseeable future. Our current agreemeit Wintech is effective until September
2015, unless it is terminated earlier by eithetypfor any or no reason with 90 days written noticéoy failure of the breaching party to cure a
material breach within 30 days following writtentice of such material breach by the non-breachamtyp Our agreement with Wintech will
automatically renew for additional successive 1thderms unless at least 60 days before the etiiedhen-current term either party
provides written notice to the other party thatlécts not to renew the agreement. Terminatioh®f¢lationship with Wintech, either by us or
by Wintech, could result in a temporary or permaness of revenue. We may not be successful inrilpguitable alternative logistics
providers on satisfactory terms, or at all, and tiwuld adversely affect our ability to effectivelgll our solutions in certain geographical
locations or to certain end customers. Additionaflyve terminate our relationship with Wintech, way be obligated to repurchase unsold
product, which could be difficult or impossibledell to other end customers. Furthermore, Winteclany successor or other logistics
providers we do business with, may face issuesrabtacredit, which could impair their ability toake timely payments to us.

Deterioration of the financial conditions of our cstomers could adversely affect our operating result

Deterioration of the financial condition of our Istics providers or customers could adversely irhpac collection of accounts
receivable. We regularly review the collectabibityd creditworthiness of our logistics providers andtomers to determine an appropriate
allowance for doubtful receivables. Based on ouierg of our logistics providers and customers, waently have no reserve for uncollectible
accounts. If our uncollectible accounts, howeverento exceed our current or future allowance &rxdful receivables, our operating results
would be negatively impacted.
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If we do not sustain our growth rate, we may not &iele to execute our business plan and our opergtiesults could suffer.

We have experienced significant growth in a shertqal of time. Our revenue increased from $21.%ionilin fiscal year 2008 to $218.3
million in fiscal year 2015, including growth rate638% and 30% in the last two fiscal years. We mat achieve similar growth rates in
future periods. You should not rely on our revegtmwth, gross margins or operating results for jamgr quarterly or annual periods as an
indication of our future operating performancew# are unable to maintain adequate revenue grauttfinancial results could suffer and our
stock price could decline.

If we are unable to manage any future growth, we ynaot be able to execute our business plan and operating results could suffe

Our business has grown rapidly. Our future opegatasults depend to a large extent on our abiityuccessfully manage any expansior
and growth, including the challenges of managitcgmpany with headquarters in the United Stategttamdnajority of its employees in Asia.
To manage our growth successfully and handle thgoresibilities of being a public company, we bedieve must effectively, among other
things:

. recruit, hire, train and manage additional qualifiangineers for our research and development gesivparticularly in our offices
in Asia and especially for the positions of semubactor design and systems and applications engig:

. add additional sales and business developmentpezko
. add additional finance and accounting personnel;
. implement and improve our administrative, finaneiatl operational systems, procedures and contnodk;

. enhance our information technology support for gamise resource planning and design engineerinadayting and expanding our
systems and tool capabilities, and properly trgjmiew hires as to their us

We are increasing our investment in research amdlolgment and other functions to grow our businéés.are likely to incur the costs
associated with these increased investments etitiarsome of the anticipated benefits, and themain these investments, if any, may be
lower, may develop more slowly than we expect oy mat materialize.

If we are unable to manage our growth effectivelg,may not be able to take advantage of marketrtypies or develop new
solutions, and we may fail to satisfy customer picicbr support requirements, maintain product dyadixecute our business plan or respor
competitive pressures.

We may have difficulty accurately predicting ourtiure revenue and appropriately budgeting our expesas

The rapidly evolving nature of the markets in whieh sell our solutions, combined with substantiatertainty concerning how these
markets may develop and other factors beyond autraio limits our ability to accurately forecastagterly or annual revenue. In addition,
because we record a significant portion of our neeefrom sales when we have received notificatiomfour logistics providers that they have
sold our products, some of the revenue we recoadgnarter may be derived from sales of produdfspsld to our logistics providers during
previous quarters. This revenue recognition metlomgolimits our ability to forecast quarterly orraral revenue accurately. We are currently
expanding our staffing and increasing our expenelitin anticipation of future revenue growth. If oevenue does not increase as anticipatec
we could incur significant losses due to our higisguense levels if we are not able to decreasexpenses in a timely manner to offset any
shortfall in future revenue.

While we intend to continue to invest in researchchdevelopment, we may be unable to make the suitistainvestments that are
required to remain competitive in our business.

The semiconductor industry requires substantiaéstment in research and development in order tgha market new and enhanced
solutions. Our research and development expens&®86 million, $48.8 million and $42.8 million fiscal year 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. We expect to increase our researdidamelopment expenditures as compared to pridogeens part of our strategy of focusing
on the development of innovative and sustainaldewiand image processing solutions. We do not kmbether we will have sufficient
resources to maintain the level of investment seagch and development required to remain comyeetitior example, development in the
latest process nodes, such as 14 or 16 nm, casigagtcantly more than required to develop in28. This added cost could prevent us from
being able to maintain a technology advantage lawger competitors that have significantly moreoreses to invest in research and
development. In addition, we cannot assure youttteatechnologies which are the focus of our reteand development expenditures will
become commercially successful or generate anynteve
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We may experience difficulties demonstrating thduato customers of newer, higher priced and highmargin solutions if they
believe existing solutions are adequate to meet enstomer expectations.

As we develop and introduce new solutions, we fheeaisk that customers may not value or be willmdpear the cost of incorporating
these newer solutions into their products, pardidulif they believe their customers are satisfigth current solutions. Regardless of the
improved features or superior performance of theamesolutions, customers may be unwilling to admptnew solutions due to design or
pricing constraints. Owing to the extensive time agsources that we invest in developing new smigtiif we are unable to sell customers
generations of our solutions, our revenue couldimie@nd our business, financial condition, opagtiesults and cash flows could be
negatively affected.

The complexity of our solutions could result in unfeseen delays or expenses from undetected defextss or bugs in hardware or
software which could reduce the market adoptionaafr new solutions, damage our reputation with cunieor prospective customers ai
adversely affect our operating costs.

Highly complex SoC solutions such as ours freqyesdhtain defects, errors and bugs when they eseifitroduced or as new versions
are released. We have in the past and may in tbeefaxperience these defects, errors and bugsyldf our solutions have reliability, quality
or compatibility problems, we may not be able tocassfully correct these problems in a timely maoneat all. In addition, if any of our
proprietary features contain defects, errors oshwigen first introduced or as new versions of @lutfons are released, we may be unable to
timely correct these problems. Consequently, oput@ion may be damaged and customers may beaatuotbuy our solutions, which could
harm our ability to retain existing customers atichat new customers, and could adversely affecfinancial results. In addition, these
defects, errors or bugs could interrupt or deldgssto our customers. If any of these problemsatdound until after we have commenced
commercial production of a new product, we may irgignificant additional development costs and paidecall, repair or replacement costs.
These problems may also result in claims againbyusur customers or others.

The loss of any of our key personnel could seriguebarm our business, and our failure to attract oetain qualified management,
engineering, sales and marketing talent could impaur ability to grow our business.

We believe our future success depends in largeupar the continuing services of the members ofsenior management team and
various engineering and other technical persomhehe or more of our senior executives or other frersonnel are unable or unwilling to
continue in their present positions, we may noalbe to replace them easily or at all, our busimeag be disrupted, and our financial condi
and results of operations may be materially ancessbly affected. In addition, if any member of eanior management team or any of our
other key personnel joins a competitor or formsmeting company, we may experience material dismpf our operations and
development plans and lose customers, know-hovkepgrofessionals and staff members, and we mayr increased operating expenses as
the attention of other senior executives is divetterecruit replacements for key personnel. Odustry is characterized by high demand and
intense competition for talent, and the pool oflifieal candidates is very limited. While we plandontinue to recruit software and system
engineers with expertise in video processing teldgies, primarily in Taiwan and China, we may netduccessful in attracting, retaining and
motivating sufficient numbers of technical and ewgiring personnel to support our anticipated growtle competition for qualified
engineering personnel in our industry, and pardidulin Asia, is very intense. If we are unabléni, train and retain qualified engineering
personnel in a timely manner, our ability to grow business will be impaired. In addition, if weamable to retain our existing engineering
personnel, our ability to maintain or grow our newe will be adversely affected.

Camera manufacturers incorporate components supg@lt®y multiple third parties, and a supply shortagedelay in delivery of these
components could delay orders for our solutionsdayr customers.

Our customers purchase components used in the aw@nrd of their cameras from various sources oplsypften involving several
specialized components, including lenses and sen&ay supply shortage or delay in delivery bydhirarty component suppliers, or a third-
party supplier’'s cessation or shut down of its bess, may prevent or delay production of our custshproducts. In addition, replacement or
substitute components may not be available on cawially reasonable terms, or at all. As a resull@fays in delivery or supply shortages of
third-party components, orders for our solutiongy/iba delayed or canceled and our business mayrbeedaSimilarly, errors or defects within
a camera system or in the manner in which the uarimmponents interact could prevent or delay potiolu of our customers’ products, which
could harm our business.

26




We outsource our wafer fabrication, assembly andtieg operations to third parties, and if these pias fail to produce and deliver
our products according to requested demands in $ipeation, quantity, cost and time, our reputatiocustomer relationships and operating
results could suffer.

We rely on third parties for substantially all afrananufacturing operations, including wafer fahtiimn, assembly and testing. Currently,
majority of our SoCs are supplied by Samsung intsKorea, from whom we have the option to purchash fully assembled and tested prod
as well as tested die in wafer form for assembdyn&ing subcontracts the assembly and initial tesfithe assembled chips it supplies to us to
Signetics Corporation and STATS ChipPAC Ltd. In¢hse of purchases of tested die from Samsungomieact the assembly to Advanced
Semiconductor Engineering, Inc., or ASE. We alseeh@oducts supplied by Global UniChip CorporationGUC, in Taiwan, from whom we
purchase fully assembled and tested products. Hfersvused by GUC in the assembly of our produetsreanufactured by TSMC in Taiwan. 1
assembly is done by GUC subcontracted assemblyistgpASE, and Powertech Technology Inc, or PThaktesting of all of our products is
handled by King Yuan Electronics Co., Ltd. or S@y@orporation under the supervision of our engimeafe depend on these third parties to
supply us with material of a requested quantitg timely manner that meets our standards for yaeldt and manufacturing quality. We do not
have any long-term supply agreements with any ofirtanufacturing suppliers. If one or more of thesedors terminates its relationship with us,
or if we encounter any problems with our manufantusupply chain, our ability to ship our solutidnsour customers on time and in the quantity
required would be adversely affected, which in oold cause an unanticipated decline in our saldsdamage our customer relationships.

If our foundry vendors do not achieve satisfactoyields or quality, our reputation and customer rélanships could be harmed.

The fabrication of our video and image processia@ Solutions is a complex and technically demangimgess. Minor deviations in t
manufacturing process can cause substantial desreagields, and in some cases, cause productiba suspended. Our foundry vendors,
from time to time, experience manufacturing defeetd reduced manufacturing yields, including inféd®ication of our SoCs. Changes in
manufacturing processes or the inadvertent usefettive or contaminated materials by our foundrgdors could result in lower than
anticipated manufacturing yields or unacceptabléopmance of our SoCs. Many of these problems dfiewt to detect at an early stage of -
manufacturing process and may be time consumingapensive to correct. Poor yields from our foundeypdors, or defects, integration iss
or other performance problems in our solutions)decause us significant customer relations andriassi reputation problems, harm our
financial results and give rise to financial oretllamages to our customers. Our customers migisecpiently seek damages from us for theil
losses. A product liability claim brought against aven if unsuccessful, would likely be time cansw and costly to defend.

Each of our SoC solutions is manufactured at desilogation. If we experience manufacturing prokdesha particular location, we
would be required to transfer manufacturing to & taxation or supplier. Converting or transferrimgnufacturing from a primary location or
supplier to a backup fabrication facility could éeensive and could take two or more quarters.figusich a transition, we would be required
to meet customer demand from our thexisting inventory, as well as any partially finkshgoods that could be modified to the requiredipet
specifications. We do not seek to maintain suffitiaventory to address a lengthy transition petiedause we believe it is uneconomical to
keep more than minimal inventory on hand. As altes«e may not be able to meet customer needs glgtich a transition, which could delay
shipments, cause production delays, result in fndein our sales and damage our customer reldtipas

We may experience difficulties in transitioning teew wafer fabrication process technologies or inhéeving higher levels of design
integration, which may result in reduced manufactag yields, delays in product deliveries and incseal costs.

We aim to use the most advanced manufacturing psaeehnology appropriate for our products thavalable from our third-party
foundries. As a result, we periodically evaluate bienefits of migrating our solutions to smalleometry process technologies in order to
improve performance and reduce costs. We beligsestiategy will help us remain competitive. Thesgoing efforts require us from time to
time to modify the manufacturing processes formnaducts and to redesign some products, whichrinrhay result in delays in product
deliveries. We may face difficulties, delays ancrégased expense as we transition our productst@recesses, such as 14nm or 16nm pre
nodes, and potentially to new foundries. We degmm8amsung and TSMC, as the principal foundriesdomproducts, to transition to new
processes successfully. We cannot assure you éinagigg or TSMC will be able to effectively managehstransitions or that we will be able
to maintain our relationship with Samsung or TSMGevelop relationships with new foundries. Morepws we transition to more advanced
process nodes beyond 28nm, we will be increasidgbendent upon Samsung and TSMC, who are two détihéoundries currently available
for certain advanced process technologies. If weuoffoundry vendors experience significant delaysansitioning to smaller geometries or
fail to efficiently implement transitions, we couwdperience reduced manufacturing yields, delaysaduct deliveries and increased costs, all
of which could harm our relationships with our @mers and our operating results. As new processamie more prevalent, we expect to
continue to integrate greater levels of functidyalks well as more end-customer and third-patsilectual property, into our solutions. We
may not be able to achieve higher levels of desitggration or deliver new integrated solutionsagimely basis.
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We rely on third-party vendors to supply softwareveélopment tools to us for the development of oamnproducts, and we may be
unable to obtain the tools necessary to develogiminance new or existing products.

We rely on third-party software development toolsssist us in the design, simulation and verificadf new products or product
enhancements. To bring new products or productrer@ments to market in a timely manner, or at adl need software development tools tha
are sophisticated enough or technologically advduecmugh to complete our design, simulations amdicegions. In the future, the design
requirements necessary to meet consumer demanawferfeatures and greater functionality from alusons may exceed the capabilities of
available software development tools. Unavailapibt software development tools may result in oigsimg design cycles or losing design
wins, either of which could result in a loss of k&trshare or negatively impact our operating result

Because of the importance of software developnais to the development and enhancement of outisody our relationships with
leaders in the computer-aided design industryuitiolg Cadence Design Systems, Inc., Mentor Gragbacporation and Synopsys, Inc., are
critical to us. We have invested significant resagrto develop relationships with these industagées. We believe that utilizing next-
generation development tools to design, simulatevanify our products will help us remain at thegfioont of the video compression market,
and develop solutions that utilize leading-edgénetogy on a rapid basis. If these relationshijsrent successful, we may be unable to
develop new products or product enhancementsimedyt manner, which could result in a loss of madteare, a decrease in revenue or
negatively impact our operating results.

Our failure to adequately protect our intellectuaroperty rights could impair our ability to competffectively or defend ourselves
from litigation, which could harm our business, famcial condition and results of operation

Our success depends, in part, on our ability téggtaur intellectual property. We rely primarilp patent, copyright, trademark and
trade secret laws, as well as confidentiality aod-disclosure agreements and other contractuatgiiohs, to protect our proprietary
technologies and know-how, all of which offer ofityited protection. The steps we have taken togmtovur intellectual property rights may
not be adequate to prevent misappropriation ofpooprietary information or infringement of our ifieetual property rights, and our ability to
prevent such misappropriation or infringement isartain, particularly in countries outside of theildd States. As of January 31, 2015, we
forty-two issued and allowed patents in the Uniates plus twenty additional continuation patetht®e issued patents in China, one issued
patent in Japan and twenty-six pending and provaipatent applications in the United States. Ef/#re pending patent applications are
granted, the rights granted to us may not be mgénlior provide us with any commercial advantaga. €&xample, these patents could be
opposed, contested, circumvented, designed aroppdricompetitors or be declared invalid or unecdable in judicial or administrative
proceedings. The failure of our patents to adedyatetect our technology might make it easierdar competitors to offer similar products or
technologies. Our foreign patent protection is geliyenot as comprehensive as our U.S. patent giioteand may not protect our intellectual
property in some countries where our products alce@ may be sold in the future. Many U.S.-basehganies have encountered substantial
intellectual property infringement in foreign cotias, including countries where we sell productgerkif foreign patents are granted, effective
enforcement in foreign countries may not be avéglabor example, the legal environment relatingtellectual property protection in China is
relatively weak, often making it difficult to creaaind enforce such rights. We may not be ableféatdfely protect our intellectual property
rights in China or elsewhere. If such an imperrbigsuse of our intellectual property or trade sexcveere to occur, our ability to sell our
solutions at competitive prices may be adversdlcsfd and our business, financial condition, ofegaesults and cash flows could be
materially and adversely affected.

The legal standards relating to the validity, eoéability and scope of protection of intellectusdgerty rights are uncertain and
evolving. We cannot assure you that others willdetelop or patent similar or superior technologieducts or services, or that our patents,
trademarks and other intellectual property will hetchallenged, invalidated or circumvented by gthe

Unauthorized copying or other misappropriation of proprietary technologies could enable thirdiparto benefit from our
technologies without paying us for doing so, whiclild harm our business. Monitoring unauthorizes afsour intellectual property is diffict
and costly. Although we are not aware of any unanzkd use of our intellectual property in the péss possible that unauthorized use of our
intellectual property may have occurred or may oegthout our knowledge. We cannot assure youtihaisteps we have taken will prevent
unauthorized use of our intellectual property. €ilure to effectively protect our intellectual perty could reduce the value of our technolog)
in licensing arrangements or in cross-licensingotiagons.
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We may in the future need to initiate infringemelatims or litigation in order to try to protect ontellectual property rights. Litigation,
whether we are a plaintiff or a defendant, canxpessive, time-consuming and may divert the effoftsur technical staff and management,
which could harm our business, whether or not ditigation results in a determination favorableus Litigation also puts our patents at risl
being invalidated or interpreted narrowly and oatemt applications at risk of not issuing. Additdyp, any enforcement of our patents or othel
intellectual property may provoke third partiesagsert counterclaims against us. If we are unalpedtect our proprietary rights or if third
parties independently develop or gain access t@osimilar technologies, our business, revenyaytagion and competitive position could be
harmed.

Third parties’ assertions of infringement of theintellectual property rights could result in our hang to incur significant costs and
cause our operating results to suffer.

The semiconductor industry is characterized by nage protection and pursuit of intellectual propeights and positions, which has
resulted in protracted and expensive litigationrffiany companies. Certain of our customers havevett@nd, particularly as a public
company, we expect that in the future we may regeismmunications from others alleging our infrimgt of their patents, trade secrets or
other intellectual property rights. In additionrteén of our end customers have been the subjdetafuits alleging infringement of intellectual
property rights by products incorporating our siolus, including the assertion that the allegednigiement may be attributable, at least in part.
to our technology. Lawsuits resulting from suclegdltions could subject us to significant liabifitly damages and invalidate our proprietary
rights, though this has not occurred to date. Aoteptial intellectual property litigation also cdubrce us to do one or more of the following:

. stop selling products or using technology that aomnthe allegedly infringing intellectual property;

. lose the opportunity to license our technologytttees or to collect royalty payments based uporessful protection and assert
of our intellectual property against othe

. incur significant legal expenses;
. pay substantial damages to the party whose inteiéproperty rights we may be found to be infrirgi
. redesign those products that contain the allegedfiinging intellectual property; or

. attempt to obtain a license to the relevant intéliel property from third parties, which may notéhailable on reasonable terms or
at all.

Any significant impairment of our intellectual preqpy rights from any litigation we face could haoor business and our ability to
compete.

Any potential dispute involving our patents or othiatellectual property could affect our customenshich could trigger our
indemnification obligations to them and result irubstantial expense to us.

In any potential dispute involving our patents tirew intellectual property, our customers coula ddscome the target of litigation.
Certain of our customers have received notices tiord parties claiming to have patent rights int@@ technology and inviting our customers
to license this technology, and certain of our emstomers have been the subject of lawsuits aligiginingement of patents by products
incorporating our solutions, including the assertioat the alleged infringement may be attributahtdeast in part, to our technology. Because
we indemnify our customers for intellectual progeraims made against them for products incorpogatiur technology, any litigation could
trigger technical support and indemnification oatigns under some of our license agreements, wiuald result in substantial expense to us.
Although we have not incurred indemnity expensésted to intellectual property claims to date, méi@pate that we will receive requests for
indemnity in the future pursuant to our licenseeagnents with our customers. In addition, otheramasts or end customers with whom we do
not have formal agreements requiring us to indeyrthiém may ask us to indemnify them if a claim &sd® as a condition to awarding future
design wins to us. Because some of our ODMs and ©& larger than we are and have greater resaimaesve do, they may be more lik
to be the target of an infringement claim by ttpaities than we would be, which could increasectiances of becoming involved in a future
lawsuit. Although we have not yet been subjecuithsclaims, if any such claims were to succeedmnigit be forced to pay damages on be
of our ODMs or OEMs that could increase our expsndisrupt our ability to sell our solutions andwee our revenue. In addition to the time
and expense required for us to supply supportaermification to our customers, any such litigathoild severely disrupt or shut down the
business of our customers, which in turn could burtrelations with our customers and cause theafabur products to decrease.
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A breach of our security systems may have a matadverse effect on our business.

Our security systems are designed to maintain llysipal security of our facilities and informatiepstems and protect our customers’,
suppliers’ and employees’ confidential informatiéwcidental or willful security breaches or otherauthorized access by third parties to our
facilities or our information systems or the exigte of computer viruses in our data or softwarddceMpose us to a risk of information loss
and misappropriation of proprietary and confiddritiformation. Security breaches, computer malwaare computer hacking attacks have
become more prevalent and sophisticated. Experdecmaputer programmers and hackers may be ablenetiate our security controls and
misappropriate or compromise our confidential infation or that of third parties or create systesmugitions. Computer programmers and
hackers also may be able to develop and deploges;uvorms and other malicious software programtsatiack our information systems and
cause disruptions of our business. Data securitgdbres may also result from non-technical meangx@mple, actions by an employee. Any
theft or misuse of this information could result@mong other things, unfavorable publicity, damegeur reputation, difficulty in marketing
our products, allegations by our customers thahawe not performed our contractual obligationgation by affected parties and possible
financial obligations for liabilities and damagesated to the theft or misuse of this informatiany of which could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, oyputation, and our relationships with our custonaard partners. We also rely on a number of
third-party “cloud-based” service providers of cor@te infrastructure services relating to, amoigothings, human resources, electronic
communication services and some finance functiand,we are, of necessity, dependent on the sesystgms of these providers. Any
security breaches or other unauthorized accedsituygarties to the systems of our cloud-basedieeproviders or the existence of computer
viruses in their data or software could exposeowsrisk of information loss and misappropriatidrconfidential information. Since the
techniques used to obtain unauthorized accesssatintage systems change frequently and are dfteecognized until launched against a
target, we may be unable to anticipate these tgaksior to implement adequate preventative measures

We rely on third parties to provide services andtrology necessary for the operation of our busieeAny failure of one or more of
our vendors, suppliers or licensors to provide swsgrvices or technology could harm our business.

We rely on third-party vendors to provide critisarvices, including, among other things, serviedsted to accounting, human
resources, information technology and network nawimity that we cannot or do not create or provideselwres. We depend on these vendors t«
ensure that our corporate infrastructure will cetesitly meet our business requirements. The aloffithese third-party vendors to successfully
provide reliable and high-quality services is sabje technical and operational uncertainties éinatbeyond our control. While we may be
entitled to damages if our vendors fail to perfamaer their agreements with us, our agreementsthéthe vendors limit the amount of
damages we may receive. In addition, we do not kwbether we will be able to collect on any awardiafages or that these damages woul
be sufficient to cover the actual costs we woutdiimas a result of any vendor’s failure to perfamder its agreement with us. Upon expiration
or termination of any of our agreements with thpattty vendors, we may not be able to replace théces provided to us in a timely manne
on terms and conditions, including service leveld eost, that are favorable to us, and a transitimm one vendor to another vendor could
subject us to operational delays and inefficienaigd the transition is complete.

Additionally, we incorporate third-party technologyo some of our products, and we may do so iaréuproducts. The operation of our
products could be impaired if errors occur in thiedtparty technology we use. It may be more difidor us to correct any errors in a timely
manner, if at all, because the development andter@ance of the technology is not within our contwide cannot assure you that these third
parties will continue to make their technologyjraprovements to the technology, available to ushat they will continue to support and
maintain their technology. Further, due to the t@dinumber of vendors of some types of technoliiggay be difficult to obtain new licenses
or replace existing technology. Any impairmentlaf technology of or our relationship with thesedigarties could harm our business.

Failure to comply with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Prdices Act, or FCPA, and similar laws associatedwaur activities outside of the
United States could subject us to penalties andesthdverse consequences.

We face significant risks if we fail to comply withe FCPA and other anti-corruption laws that podghimproper payments or offers of
payment to foreign governments and political parbig us for the purpose of obtaining or retainingibess. In many foreign countries,
particularly in countries with developing economiigsnay be a local custom that businesses operatisuch countries engage in business
practices that are prohibited by the FCPA or ottpglicable laws and regulations. We recently imgetad our FCPA compliance program
cannot assure you that all of our employees andtagas well as those companies to which we outsotertain of our business operations,
not take actions in violation of our policies ampkcable law, for which we may be ultimately hed$ponsible. Any violation of the FCPA or
other applicable anti-corruption laws could resuiéevere criminal or civil sanctions and, in tlese of the FCPA, suspension or debarment
from U.S. government contracting, which could haveaterial and adverse effect on our reputatiosiness, financial condition, operating
results and cash flows.
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We, our customers and third-party contractors angbgect to increasingly complex environmental regtitans and compliance with
these regulations may delay or interrupt our opdmats and adversely affect our business.

We face increasing complexity in our procuremeasigin, and research and development operationsessila of requirements relating
to the materials composition of our products, idalg the European Union’s (EU’s) Restriction on tee of Certain Hazardous Substances it
Electrical and Electronic Equipment (RoHS) direetiwhich restricts the content of lead and cervéirer hazardous substances in specified
electronic products put on the market in the EU sindlar Chinese legislation relating to markingetéctronic products which became
effective in March 2007. Failure to comply with #eeand similar laws and regulations could subjsdbuines, penalties, civil or criminal
sanctions, contract damage claims, and take-backmompliant products, which could harm our bes#) reputation and operating results.
The passage of similar requirements in additiomasgglictions or the tightening of these standandsiiisdictions where our products are alre
subject to such requirements could cause us ta giguoificant expenditures to make our products jglent with new requirements, or could
limit the markets into which we may sell our prottuc

Some of our operations, as well as the operatibosirocontract manufacturers and foundry vendodsather suppliers, are also
regulated under various other federal, state, Jdoedign and international environmental laws aaguirements, including those governing,
among other matters, the management, disposallihgndse, labeling of, and exposure to hazardobstances, and the discharge of pollut
into the air and water. Liability under environmedriaws can be joint and several and without regaiwbmparative fault. We cannot assure
that violations of these laws will not occur in fiwture, as a result of human error, accident, ggent failure or other causes. Environmental
laws and regulations have increasingly become msimirggent over time. We expect that our products @perations will be affected by new
environmental requirements on an ongoing basis;lwill likely result in additional costs, which alol adversely affect our business.

Our failure to comply with present and future eomimental, health and safety laws could cause ito substantial costs, result in
civil or criminal fines and penalties and decreasaenue, which could adversely affect our opegatesults. Failure by our foundry vendors
other suppliers to comply with applicable enviromta¢ laws and requirements could cause disrupimasdelays in our product shipments,
which could adversely affect our relations with @DMs and OEMs and adversely affect our businedsesults of operations.

New regulations related to “conflict minerals” mafprce us to incur additional expenses, may make supply chain more complex
and may result in damage to our reputation with ¢amers.

Pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform aadsimer Protection Act of 2010, or the Dodd-Fraik, he Securities and
Exchange Commission has adopted new requirementefiopanies that use certain minerals and metatsyk as conflict minerals, in their
products, whether or not these products are matwréatby third parties. These requirements reqrorapanies to diligence, disclose and
report whether or not such minerals originate ftbeDemocratic Republic of Congo and adjoining ¢nes. The implementation of these n
requirements could adversely affect the sourcimgilability and pricing of minerals used in the raéacture of semiconductor devices,
including our products. In addition, we have inedirand will continue to incur, additional coststamply with the disclosure requirements,
including costs related to determining the soufcany of the relevant minerals and metals usedumpooducts. Since our supply chain is
complex, we may not be able to sufficiently vetifig origins for these minerals and metals usediirpooducts through the due diligence
procedures that we implement, which may harm cputation. In such event, we may also face diffieglin satisfying customers who require
that all of the components of our products areiftexitas conflict mineral free.

We are subject to warranty and product liabilityaiins and to product recalls.

From time to time, we are subject to warranty cktimt may require us to make significant expenelittio defend these claims or pay
damage awards. In tHieture, we may also be subject to product liabititgims resulting from failure of our solutions.thre event of a warran
claim, we may also incur costs if we compensataffexted customer. We maintain product liabilitgurance, but this insurance is limited in
amount and subject to significant deductibles. €hgmo guarantee that our insurance will be abkglar adequate to protect against all claims
We also may incur costs and expenses relatingdoal of one of our customers’ products contairong of our devices. The process of
identifying a recalled product in consumer devittes have been widely distributed may be lengthy r@guire significant resources, and we
may incur significant replacement costs, contrarhdge claims from our customers and reputatioah h@osts or payments made in
connection with warranty and product liability cte and product recalls could harm our financialdition and results of operations.
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Rapidly changing industry standards could make otideo and image processing solutions obsolete, Whiould cause our operating
results to suffer.

We design our video and image processing solutmesnform to video compression standards, inclgditPEG-2 and H.264, set by
industry standards setting bodies such as ITU-e¥i@oding Experts Group and the ISO/IEC MovingWREExperts Group. Generally, our
solutions comprise only a part of a camera or braatinfrastructure equipment device. All compogaitthese devices must uniformly
comply with industry standards in order to opegdfiiently together. We depend on companies thatide other components of the device
support prevailing industry standards. Many of ghesmpanies are significantly larger and more eritial in driving industry standards than
we are. Some industry standards may not be wididpted or implemented uniformly, and competing déads may emerge that may be
preferred by our customers or by consumers. Ifoostomers or the suppliers that provide other @gesaamponents adopt new or competing
industry standards with which our solutions areaahpatible, or if the industry groups fail to atlefandards with which our solutions are
compatible, our existing solutions would becoms léssirable to our customers. As a result, oussabtald suffer, and we could be requiret
make significant expenditures to develop new Sdatisms. In addition, existing standards may belehged as infringing upon the
intellectual property rights of other companiesray be superseded by new innovations or standards.

Products for communications applications are baseitdhdustry standards that are continually evolvidgr ability to compete in the
future will depend on our ability to identify andseire compliance with these evolving industry séadsl, including any new video compres:
standards. The emergence of new industry standardd render our solutions incompatible with praguteveloped by other suppliers. As a
result, we could be required to invest significtimie and effort and to incur significant expenseetbesign our solutions to ensure compliance
with relevant standards. If our solutions are natampliance with prevailing industry standardsdaignificant period of time, we could miss
opportunities to achieve crucial design wins, wtgohild harm our business.

We are subject to the cyclical nature of the senmidactor industry.

The semiconductor industry is highly cyclical ardharacterized by constant and rapid technologltahge, rapid product
obsolescence, price erosion, evolving standardst phoduct life cycles and wide fluctuations iguct supply and demand. The industry
experienced a significant downturn during the régéobal recession. These downturns have been dieaizzed by diminished product dema
production overcapacity, high inventory levels aiedelerated erosion of average selling prices. fshyre downturns could harm our business
and operating results. Furthermore, any significgttirn in the semiconductor industry could reBulhcreased competition for access to third
party foundry and assembly capacity. We are deperatethe availability of this capacity to manufaet and assemble our SoC solutions.
None of our thir-party foundry or assembly contractors has provaeslirances that adequate capacity will be avaitahls in the future.

The use of open source software in our productspgesses and technology may expose us to additiosies and compromise our
proprietary intellectual property

Our products, processes and technology sometinieze @nd incorporate software that is subjectriampen source license. Open source
software is typically freely accessible, usable amatlifiable. Certain open source software licensesh as the GNU General Public License,
require a user who intends to distribute the opemce software as a component of the user’s sadtieadisclose publicly part or all of the
source code to the user’s software. In additiortageopen source software licenses require theafssich software to make any derivative
works of the open source code available to othertgioms unfavorable to us or at no cost. This cdnjest previously proprietary software to
open source license terms.

While we monitor the use of open source softwareunproducts, processes and technology and epsare that no open source
software is used in such a way as to require aistdose the source code to the related produstesses or technology when we do not wit
do so, such use could inadvertently occur. Addéllyn if a third-party software provider has incorpted certain types of open source softwar
into software we license from such third-party dor products, processes or technology, we couldeucertain circumstances, be required to
disclose the source code to our products, procesgeshnology. This could harm our intellectuadgerty position and our business, results of
operations and financial condition.
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Some of our operations and a significant portion ofir customers and our subcontractors are locatadside of the United States,
which subjects us to additional risks, includingéneased complexity and costs of managing internatiboperations and geopolitical
instability.

We have research and development design centetsuaimess development offices in China, Japan,hS¢otea and Taiwan, and we
expect to continue to conduct business with congsathiat are located outside the United Statedcpkatly in Asia. Even customers of ours
that are based in the United States often useantranufacturers based in Asia to manufacture fineducts, and these contract
manufacturers typically purchase products direfttyn us. As a result of our international focus, faee numerous challenges and risks,
including:

. increased complexity and costs of managing intenat operations;
. longer and more difficult collection of receivahles

. difficulties in enforcing contracts generally;

. geopolitical and economic instability and militargnflicts;

. limited protection of our intellectual property aather assets;

. compliance with local laws and regulations and ticgated changes in local laws and regulationdpgting tax laws and
regulations

. trade and foreign exchange restrictions and hitdréfs;
. travel restrictions;

. timing and availability of import and export licesssand other governmental approvals, permits aeddes, including export
classification requirement

. foreign currency exchange fluctuations relatingtio international operating activities;

. restrictions imposed by the U.S. government onadiility to do business with certain companies ozértain countries as a resul
international political conflicts

. transportation delays and other consequences étinocal infrastructure, and disruptions, sucheage scale outages or
interruptions of service from utilities or telecomnications providers

. difficulties in staffing international operations;

. heightened risk of terrorist acts;

. local business and cultural factors that diffenfrour normal standards and practices;
. differing employment practices and labor relations;

. regional health issues and natural disasters; and

. work stoppages.

Our third-party contractors and their suppliers amoncentrated in South Korea, Taiwan and Japan,egion subject to earthquakes
and other natural disasters. Any disruption to tloperations of these contractors could cause sigrafit delays in the production or
shipment of our products

The majority of our products are manufactured byeaeive components from thighrty contractors located in South Korea, Taiwath
Japan. The risk of an earthquake or tsunami intBidatea, Taiwan, Japan and elsewhere in the Pa&iificregion is significant due to the
proximity of major earthquake fault lines. For exae) in December 2006 a major earthquake occurrda@iwan and in March 2011 a major
earthquake and tsunami occurred in Japan. Altheweggare not aware of any significant damage suffegedur third-party contractors as a
result of such natural disasters, the occurrenealditional earthquakes or other natural disastentd result in the disruption of our foundry
vendor or assembly and test capacity. Any disruptgsulting from such events could cause signifidatays in the production or shipment of
our products until we are able to shift our mantifing, assembling or testing from the affectedtastor to another third-party vendor. We
may not be able to obtain alternate capacity ooriahle terms, or at all.
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If our operations are interrupted, our business amédputation could suffer.

Our operations and those of our manufacturers @restable to interruption caused by technical bdeakns, computer hardware and
software malfunctions, software viruses, infradinee failures, fires, earthquakes, floods, powssés, telecommunications failures, terrorist
attacks, wars, Internet failures and other eveay®hd our control. Any disruption in our serviceperations could result in a reduction in
revenue or a claim for substantial damages agafstegardless of whether we are responsible &trfdilure. We rely on our computer
equipment, database storage facilities and otHeeaéquipment, which are located primarily in #ssmically active San Francisco Bay Area
and Taiwan. If we suffer a significant databaseetwork facility outage, our business could experéedisruption until we fully implement our
back-up systems.

Our management has limited public company experienés a result of becoming a public company, we subject to additional
regulatory compliance requirements, including Semti 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and if fai to maintain an effective system
of internal controls, we may not be able to accugbt report our financial results or prevent fraud.

We became a public company on October 10, 201hawe and will continue to incur significant legatcounting and other expenses
that we did not incur as a private company. Théviddals who constitute our management team hawiédd experience managing a publicly
traded company, and limited experience complyintt Wie increasingly complex and changing laws jp@rtg to public companies. Our
management team and other personnel will needvotéle substantial amount of time to compliancd,\ea may not effectively or efficiently
manage our transition into a public company. Addiilly, for fiscal year 2015, we ceased to be ane¥ying growth company”, as defined in
the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act, or theSI@&. As a result, we are now, and will continadé, subject to additional disclosure and
compliance requirements associated with being igobmpany going forward, including but not lindtéo compliance with the auditor
attestation requirement of Section 404 of the SsbaDxley Act of 2002, or the Sarbanes-Oxley Astdescribed below.

Rules and regulations such as the Sarbanes-Oxlelya¥e increased our legal and finance compliansésand made some activities
more time consuming and costly. For example, Seet®! of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires that camagement report on, and our
independent auditors attest to, the effectivenéssiointernal control structure and proceduresfiftancial reporting. Effective internal contr
are necessary for us to provide reliable finan@pbrts and effectively prevent fraud. Section d6¢hpliance may divert internal resources anc
take a significant amount of time and effort to gdate. We may not be able to successfully completgorocedures and certification and
attestation requirements of Section 404 by the tiraewill be required to do so. In addition, theselfaines-Oxley Act requirements may be
modified, supplemented or amended from time to timglementing these changes may take a signifisarttunt of time and may require
specific compliance training of our personnel.Ha future, we may discover areas of our internatrods that need improvement. If our
auditors or we discover a material weakness oiifgignt deficiency, the disclosure of that facteavf quickly remedied, could reduce the
market’s confidence in our financial statements lazan our stock price. Any inability to provideiedile financial reports or prevent fraud
could harm our business. We may not be able tatfedy and timely implement necessary control demand employee training to ensure
continued compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Adt@ther regulatory and reporting requirements. @aent growth rate could present
challenges to maintain the internal control andldsure control standards applicable to public canigs. If we fail to successfully complete
the procedures and certification and attestatignirements of Section 404, or if in the future Qinief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer or independent registered public accounfing determines that our internal controls oveaficial reporting are not effective as defi
under Section 404, we could be subject to sanctomsvestigations by The NASDAQ Stock Market, Becurities and Exchange Commiss
or SEC, or other regulatory authorities. Furthermarvestor perceptions of our company may suffed, this could cause a decline in the
market price of our ordinary shares. We cannotrasgou that we will be able to fully comply withelequirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Aci
or that management or our auditors will concludsg thur internal controls are effective in futureipds. Irrespective of compliance with
Section 404, any failure of our internal contratelid have a material adverse effect on our stasdlts of operations and harm our reputation.
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If we fail to hire additional finance personnel, sgingthen our financial reporting systems and inframcture, and effectively use our
enterprise resource planning system, we may noabke to timely and accurately report our financiabsults or comply with the
requirements of being a public company, includingrapliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and SEC repwg requirements, which in turn
would significantly harm our reputation and our busess.

Although we have hired additional accounting américe personnel with system implementation expegi@md Sarbanes-Oxley Act
compliance expertise, the continued growth of th&ifess may require additional trained resourcesdet the requirements of being a public
company. Any inability to recruit and retain suaihce personnel would have an adverse impact pahility to accurately and timely prepi
our financial statements. We may be unable to éaatl hire qualified professionals with requisiehinical and public company experience
when and as needed. In addition, new employeegenyjllire time and training to learn our business @perating processes and procedures. If
our finance and accounting organization is unaiefy reason to respond adequately to the inadedesmands that will result from being a
public company, the quality and timeliness of anaficial reporting may suffer, which could resulthe identification of material weaknesses
in our internal controls. Any consequences resgifiom inaccuracies or delays in our reported faialnstatements could cause the trading
price of our ordinary shares to decline and coalidrhour business, operating results and financiatlition.

If we fail to strengthen our financial reportingsggms, infrastructure and internal control oveafficial reporting to meet the demands
that will be placed upon us as a public comparglugting the requirements of the Sarbaf@edey Act, we may be unable to report our finan
results timely and accurately and prevent fraud.éifgect to continue incur significant expense aenbte substantial management effort
toward ensuring compliance with Section 404.

We recently substantially completed implementatibthe core modules of a new enterprise resouienghg, or ERP, system. This
project has required and may continue to requivestment of capital and human resources, the rexeagng of processes of our business an
the attention of many employees who would othenbiséocused on other aspects of our business. Afigiehcies in the design and
implementation of the new ERP system could resuttatentially much higher costs than we had inclened could adversely affect our ability
to develop and launch solutions, provide serviftdfill contractual obligations, file reports witthe SEC in a timely manner, otherwise operate
our business or otherwise impact our controls emirent. Any of these consequences could have arsaleffect on our results of operations
and financial condition.

Changes to financial accounting standards may affear results of operations and could cause us t@nge our business practices.

We prepare our consolidated financial statement®mdorm to generally accepted accounting prinsipte GAAP, in the United States.
These accounting principles are subject to intéagion by the American Institute of Certified Pebfccountants, the SEC and various bodies
formed to interpret and create accounting rulesragdlations. Changes in those accounting rulediaae a significant effect on our financial
results and may affect our reporting of transastioompleted before a change is announced. Chamigfesse rules or the questioning of cur
practices may adversely affect our reported firaneisults or the way we conduct our business.

The complexity of calculating our tax provision magsult in errors that could result in restatemend$ our financial statements.

We are incorporated in the Cayman Islands and perations are subject to income and transactiogstaxthe United States, China,
Hong Kong, Japan, South Korea, Taiwan and oth&dietions in which we do business. Due to the dexify associated with the calculation
of our tax provision, we have hired independentadxisors to assist us. If we or our independenattvisors fail to resolve or fully understand
certain issues, there may be errors that couldtriesus having to restate our financial statemeRtsstatements are generally costly and could
adversely impact our results of operations or leawegative impact on the trading price of our cadjrshares.

Changes in effective tax rates or adverse outcomessilting from examination of our income tax retusicould adversely affect our
results.

Our future effective tax rates could be adverséflgceed if earnings are lower than anticipatedonmries where we have lower statut
rates and higher than anticipated in countries @/a@r have higher statutory rates, by changes imadh@tion of our deferred tax assets and
liabilities, or by changes in tax laws, regulatioascounting principles or interpretations theréofaddition, our income tax returns are subject
to continuous examination by the Internal RevenaiwiBe, or IRS, and other tax authorities. We ragulassess the likelihood of adverse
outcomes resulting from these examinations to deter the adequacy of our provision for income ta¥és cannot assure you that the
outcomes from these continuous examinations willhawe an adverse effect on our operating resotidiaancial condition.
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Unfavorable tax law changes, an unfavorable goverantal review of our tax returns, changes in our ggaphical earnings mix or
imposition of withholding taxes on repatriated eangs could adversely affect our effective tax rated our operating results.

Our operations are subject to certain taxes, sséhcame and transaction taxes, in the Caymands|ahe United States, China, Hong
Kong, Japan, South Korea, Taiwan and other juriigafis in which we do business. A change in thddass in the jurisdictions in which we do
business, including an increase in tax rates @daerse change in the treatment of an item of ikconmexpense, possibly with retroactive
effect, could result in a material increase indheunt of taxes we incur. In particular, past psgt® have been made to change certain U.¢
laws relating to foreign entities with U.S. conneas, which may include us. For example, previoyshyposed legislation has considered
treating certain foreign corporations as U.S. ddinesrporations (and therefore taxable on alhgfit worldwide income) if the management
and control of the foreign corporation occurs, diseor indirectly, primarily within the United Sties. If such legislation were enacted, we
could, depending on the precise form, be subjettk & taxation notwithstanding our domicile outside United States. In addition, the U.S.
government has proposed various other changeg td.®. international tax system, certain of whiohld adversely impact foreign-based
multinational corporate groups, and increased epfoent of U.S. international tax laws. Although earf these proposed U.S. tax law char
has yet been enacted, and they may never be enadtesir current forms, it is possible that thesether changes in the U.S. tax laws could
significantly increase our U.S. income tax lialilih the future.

We are subject to periodic audits or other revibws$ax authorities in the jurisdictions in which wenduct our activities. Any such
audit, examination or review requires managemeimis, diverts internal resources and, in the ewfain unfavorable outcome, may result in
additional tax liabilities or other adjustmentsotar historical results.

Because we conduct operations in multiple jurisoint, our effective tax rate is influenced by theoants of income and expense
attributed to each such jurisdiction. If such antswere to change so as to increase the amounts ofet income subject to taxation in higher
tax jurisdictions, or if we were to commence opers in jurisdictions assessing relatively higheer tates, our effective tax rate could be
adversely affected. In addition, we may determive it is advisable from time to time to repatriatgnings from subsidiaries under
circumstances that could give rise to impositiopatentially significant withholding taxes by theisdictions in which such amounts were
earned, without our receiving the benefit of anfgetting tax credits, which could also adverselpaat our effective tax rate.

We may be classified as a passive foreign investngempany which could result in adverse U.S. feddarecome tax consequences for
U.S. holders of our ordinary shares.

Based on the current and anticipated valuatioruofssets and the composition of our income aret®sse do not expect to be
considered a passive foreign investment companyF€, for U.S. federal income tax purposes for2Qt5 fiscal year or the foreseeable
future. However, a separate determination must &eenat the close of each taxable year as to whethare a PFIC for that taxable year, and
we cannot assure you that we will not be a PFI®Eor2016 fiscal year or any future taxable yeardét current law, a non-U.S. corporation
will be considered a PFIC for any taxable yeaittier (a) at least 75% of its gross income is pasgicome or (b) at least 50% of the value of
its assets, generally based on an average of eiréegly values of the assets during a taxable yeatiributable to assets that produce or are
held for the production of passive income. PFIQustalepends on the composition of our assets aodni@ and the value of our assets (which
may be based in part on the value of our ordinaayess which may fluctuate), including, among othargro rata portion of the income and
assets of each subsidiary in which we own, direatlindirectly, at least 25% by value of the sul@igs equity interests, from time to time.
Because we currently hold, and expect to contind®td, a substantial amount of cash or cash elgnitg and because the calculation of the
value of our assets may be based in part on thee\adlour ordinary shares which may fluctuate dfiex offering and may fluctuate
considerably given that market prices of technologynpanies historically often have been volatile,may be a PFIC for any taxable year. If
we were treated as a PFIC for any taxable yeandwrhich a U.S. holder held ordinary shares, ceddiverse U.S. federal income tax
consequences could apply for such U.S. holder.
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Fluctuations in exchange rates between and among tlurrencies of the countries in which we do busisemay adversely affect our
operating results.

Our sales have been historically denominated in to#ars. An increase in the value of the U.Slatakelative to the currencies of the
countries in which our end customers operate cifir the ability of our end customers to coseefively integrate our SoCs into their
devices which may materially affect the demandoiar solutions and cause these end customers toaedeir orders, which would adversely
affect our revenue and business. We may experi@negn exchange gains or losses due to the vityatil other currencies compared to the
U.S. dollar. A significant portion of our solutioase sold to camera manufacturers located outsEl®hited States, primarily in Asia. Sales to
customers in Asia accounted for approximately 91%uo revenue in fiscal year 2015. Because mosuofend customers or their ODM
manufacturers are located in Asia, we anticipaaé ahmajority of our future revenue will continedome from sales to that region. Although ¢
large percentage of our sales are made to customAssa, we believe that a significant numberha# products designed by these customers
and incorporating our SoCs are then sold to conssiglebally.

A significant number of our employees are locatedsia, principally Taiwan and China. Thereforgaation of our payroll as well as
certain other operating expenses are paid in cciegmther than the U.S. dollar, such as the NewdraDollar and the Chinese Yuan
Renminbi. Our operating results are denominatdd. $ dollars and the difference in exchange ratese period compared to another may
directly impact period-to-period comparisons of operating results. Furthermore, currency exchaages have been especially volatile in the
recent past and these currency fluctuations mayentalifficult for us to predict our operating résu

We have not implemented any hedging strategiedttgate risks related to the impact of fluctuationgurrency exchange rates. Even if
we were to implement hedging strategies, not eggppsure can be hedged and, where hedges areglatsbased on expected foreign
exchange exposure, they are based on forecasth wiaig vary or which may later prove to have beagéarate. Failure to hedge successfully
or anticipate currency risks accurately could aselraffect our operating results.

We may make acquisitions in the future that coulsiipt our business, cause dilution to our shareldets, reduce our financial
resources and harm our business.

In the future, we may acquire other businessesiymts or technologies. We have not made any atiguisito date and do not have any
agreements or commitments for any specific acqoirstt this time. Our ability to make and succeldgintegrate acquisitions is unproven. If
we complete acquisitions, we may not strengthercoapetitive position or achieve our goals in agliyrmanner, or at all, and these
acquisitions may be viewed negatively by our custianfinancial markets or investors. In additiamy acquisitions we make could lead to
difficulties in integrating personnel, technologaw operations from the acquired businesses araddaiming and motivating key personnel
from these businesses. Acquisitions may disrupbogoing operations, divert management from theimary responsibilities, subject us to
additional liabilities, increase our expenses ahkbesely impact our business, operating resutignitial condition and cash flows. Acquisitic
may also reduce our cash available for operatiodsogher uses, and could also result in an incriseamortization expense related to
identifiable assets acquired, potentially dilutisguances of equity securities or the incurrenagebt, any of which could harm our business.

We cannot predict our future capital needs, and meay not be able to obtain additional financing tarfd our operations.

We may need to raise additional funds in the futdrey required additional financing may not be éafalie on terms acceptable to us, or
at all. If we raise additional funds by issuing kg gecurities or convertible debt, investors magezience significant dilution of their
ownership interest, and the newly-issued securitiag have rights senior to those of the holdemuofordinary shares. If we raise additional
funds by obtaining loans from third parties, thene of those financing arrangements may includeiieg covenants or other restrictions on
our business that could impair our operationalifigity and would also require us to incur interegpense. If additional financing is not
available when required or is not available on ptafgle terms, we may have to scale back our opesatr limit our production activities, and
we may not be able to expand our business, dewlephance our products, take advantage of busopgestunities or respond to competit
pressures which could result in lower revenue addce the competitiveness of our products.

Our marketable securities portfolio could experiema decline in market value, which could materiabyd adversely affect our
financial results.

As of January 31, 2015, we had approximately $4dltlon in securities investments. The investmesdasisted primarily of money
market funds, commercial paper, asset-backed siesusind debt securities of corporations whichfecesed on the preservation of our capital
We currently do not use derivative financial ingtents to adjust our investment portfolio risk azdme profile.
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These investments, as well as any cash depositehiaccounts, are subject to general creditidity) market and interest rate risks,
which may be exacerbated by unusual events, suttteaurozone crisis and the U.S. debt ceilingssnshich have affected various sectors of
the financial markets and led to global credit Agdidity issues. If the global credit market contés to experience volatility or deteriorates,
investment portfolio may be impacted and some lasfadur investments may experience other-than-tmamy impairment which could
adversely impact our financial results and position

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Ordinary Shares
The market price of our ordinary shares may be wilks, which could cause the value of your investméa decline.

Since our initial public offering in October 201Be market price of our ordinary shares has begimhiolatile. The trading price of our
ordinary shares is likely to remain volatile andiicbbe subject to wide fluctuations in price inpesse to various factors, some of which are
beyond our control. These factors include:

. changes in financial estimates, including our gbtth meet our future revenue and operating paofloss projections;

. fluctuations in our operating results or those thieo semiconductor or comparable companies;

. fluctuations in the economic performance or maviatiations of companies perceived by investorstadmparable to us;
. economic developments in the semiconductor indwstrg whole;

. general economic conditions and slow or negatieevtr of related markets;

. announcements by us or our competitors of acqmisifinew products, significant contracts or ordessimercial relationships or
capital commitments

. our ability to develop and market new and enharscdations on a timely basis;
. commencement of or our involvement in litigation;

. disruption to our operations;

. any major change in our board of directors or manat;

. political or social conditions in the markets where sell our products;

. changes in governmental regulations; and

. changes in earnings estimates or recommendatiossduyities analysts.

In addition, the stock market in general, and tlzekat for semiconductor and other technology corgsaim particular, have experient
extreme price and volume fluctuations that haverofieen unrelated or disproportionate to the ojpgragerformance of those companies.
These broad market and industry factors may cduesmarket price of our ordinary shares to decraag@rdless of our actual operating
performance. These trading price fluctuations may make it more difficult for us to use our ordipnahares as a means to make acquisitions
or to use options to purchase our ordinary sharasttact and retain employees. If the market pofoeur ordinary shares declines, you may
realize any return on your investment in us and foag some or all of your investment. In additionthe past, following periods of volatility
in the overall market and the market price of a pany’s securities, securities class action litigathas often been instituted against these
companies. This litigation, if instituted against gould result in substantial costs and a divarsfoour management’s attention and resources

If securities analysts or industry analysts downgeour ordinary shares, publish negative researatreports or fail to publish
reports about our business, our stock price anddirag volume could decline.

The trading market for our ordinary shares williduenced by the research and reports that industsecurities analysts publish about
us, our business and our market. If one or moréystsaadversely changes their recommendation regaalr stock or our competitors’ stock,
our stock price would likely decline. If one or reanalysts cease coverage of us or fail to regutanblish reports on us, we could lose
visibility in the financial markets which in turald cause our stock price or trading volume tdidec
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Our actual operating results may differ significalytfrom our guidance and investor expectations, whiwould likely cause our stock
price to decline

From time to time, we may release guidance in amniags releases, earnings conference calls onaide regarding our future
performance that represent our management’s estinagtof the date of release. If given, this guidawhich will include forward-looking
statements, will be based on projections prepayeslib management. Projections are based upon aetushlassumptions and estimates that,
while presented with numerical specificity, areérdntly subject to significant business, economit @ompetitive uncertainties and
contingencies, many of which are beyond our confrbé principal reason that we expect to releasdagee is to provide a basis for our
management to discuss our business outlook witlystsaand investors. With or without our guidar@ealysts and other investors may pub
expectations regarding our business, financialoperdnce and results of operations. We do not a@gptesponsibility for any projections or
reports published by any such third persons.

Guidance is necessarily speculative in nature jiaceh be expected that some or all of the assumgif the guidance furnished by us
will not materialize or will vary significantly fnm actual results. If our actual performance dogsmeet or exceed our guidance or investor
expectations, the trading price of our ordinaryrehas likely to decline.

The price of our ordinary shares could decreaseaaesult of shares being sold in the market.

Sales of a substantial number of our ordinary shisréhe public market, or the perception thateéh&ses might occur, could cause the
market price of our ordinary shares to declinet&@etholders of our ordinary shares are entitledgbts with respect to registration of such
shares under the Securities Act pursuant to atratjia rights agreement between such holders antf such holders, by exercising their
registration rights, sell a large number of shattesmarket price for our ordinary shares coul@ddbecrsely affected. If we file a registration
statement for the purpose of selling additionateti&o raise capital and are required to includeeshheld by these holders pursuant to the
exercise of their registration rights, our abilityraise capital may be impaired.

We filed registration statements on Form S-8 ulderSecurities Act to register shares for issuamcker our 2004 Stock Plan, 2012
Equity Incentive Plan and 2012 Employee Stock PageHPlan. Our 2012 Equity Incentive Plan and 20hpl&yee Stock Purchase Plan
provide for automatic increases in the shares veddor issuance under these plans which couldtresadditional dilution to our shareholde
These shares can be freely sold in the public maken issuance and vesting, subject to restristmovided under the terms of the applicable
plan and/or the option agreements entered into @ytlon holders.

We may also issue ordinary shares or securitiegestible into ordinary shares from time to timeconnection with a financing,
acquisition or otherwise. Any such issuance coeflilt in substantial dilution to our existing sheielers and cause the trading price of our
stock to decline.

We do not intend to pay dividends on our ordinatyases and, consequently, a shareholder’s abilityatchieve a return on its
investment will depend on appreciation in the priokour ordinary shares.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsioordinary shares and do not currently intenda so for the foreseeable future.
We currently intend to invest our future earnin§any, to fund our growth. Therefore, shareholdmes not likely to receive any dividends on
their ordinary shares for the foreseeable futudkthe success of an investment in our ordinaryeshaill depend upon any future appreciation
in their value. There is no guarantee that ournangi shares will appreciate in value or even mairttee price at which our shareholders have
purchased their shares. Investors seeking castiediets should not purchase our ordinary shares.

Provisions of our memorandum and articles of assatadn and Cayman Islands corporate law may discogesor prevent an
acquisition of us which could adversely affect thelue of our ordinary shares.

Provisions of our memorandum and articles of asdimei and Cayman Islands law may have the effedetzying or preventing a
change of control or changes in our managemenselpeovisions include the following:

. the division of our board of directors into thréasses;

. the right of our board of directors to elect a diioe to fill a vacancy created by the expansionwfboard of directors or due to the
resignation or departure of an existing board merr

. prohibition of cumulative voting in the election difectors which would otherwise allow less thamaority of shareholders to
elect director candidate

. the requirement for the advance notice of nomimatior election to our board of directors or fooposing matters that can be
acted upon at a shareholc’ meeting;
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. the ability of our board of directors to issue,hwitit shareholder approval, such amounts of predershares as the board of
directors deems necessary and appropriate withsteetnby our board of directors, which rights ccagdsenior to those of our
ordinary shares

. the elimination of the rights of shareholders tth aspecial meeting of shareholders and to takiermby written consent in lieu of
a meeting; an

. the required approval of a special resolution efshareholders, being a two-thirds vote of shaeés by shareholders present and
voting at a shareholder meeting, to alter or anmbadrovisions of our pc-offering memorandum and articles of associat

Holders of our ordinary shares may face difficulsdan protecting their interests because we are immrated under Cayman Islands
law.

Our corporate affairs are governed by our amendddestated memorandum and articles of associdfiothe Companies Law (as the
same may be supplemented or amended from timm#&) Bf the Cayman Islands and by the common latk@fCayman Islands. The rights of
our shareholders and the fiduciary responsibilitiesur directors under Cayman Islands law areasatlearly established as under statutes or
judicial precedent in existence in jurisdictionghe United States. In particular, the Cayman tiddmas a less developed body of securities
than the U.S. and provides significantly less prioda to investors. There is no legislation speaify dedicated to the rights of investors in
securities and thus no statutorily defined priveetase of action specific to investors such as thoseded under the Securities Act of 1933 or
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 of the U.Saddition, shareholders of Cayman Islands compan#gsnot have standing to initiate
shareholder derivative actions in U.S. federal tourherefore, you may have more difficulty in geting your interests in the face of actions
by our management, directors or controlling shadsrs than would shareholders of a corporationnpa@ted in a jurisdiction in the United
States due to the comparatively less developedaafiCayman Islands law in this area.

Shareholders of Cayman Islands exempted compamniels,as our company, have no general rights unaigm@n Islands law to inspect
corporate records and accounts or to obtain cayfiksts of shareholders of the company. Our doechave discretion under our articles of
association to determine whether or not, and unthat conditions, our corporate records may be iciggeby our shareholders, but are not
obliged to make them available to our shareholdérs may make it more difficult for you to obtaime information needed to establish any
facts necessary for a shareholder motion or taisplioxies from other shareholders in connectidtin & proxy contest.

Subject to limited exceptions, under Cayman Isldads a minority shareholder may not bring a ddnxaaction against the board of
directors.

Holders of our ordinary shares may have difficulgbtaining or enforcing a judgment against us because are incorporated under
the laws of the Cayman Islands.

It may be difficult or impossible for you to brirag action against us in the Cayman Islands if yaiebe your rights have been infring
under U.S. securities laws. There is no statutecpgnition in the Cayman Islands of judgments olediin the United States, although the
courts of the Cayman Islands will in certain cir@iamces recognize and enforce a non-penal judgofi@nforeign court of competent
jurisdiction without retrial on the merits. Whiledre is no binding authority on this point, thidikely to include, in certain circumstances
nonpenal judgment of a United States court imposingpaetary award based on the civil liability prowiss of the U.S. federal securities la
The Grand Court of the Cayman Islands may staygadiogs if concurrent proceedings are being broelgietvhere. There is uncertainty as to
whether the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands woeddgnize or enforce judgments of United Statestsmbtained against us predicated
upon the civil liability provisions of the secuet laws of the United States or any state themafrhether the Grand Court of the Cayman
Islands would hear original actions brought in @syman Islands against us predicated upon theiSesuaws of the United States or any s
thereof.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
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Our principal executive offices are located in Sa@tara, California, consisting of approximately@® square feet of office space ur
a lease that expires in April 2018. This faciliscammodates our principal sales, marketing, rebeand development, finance, and
administration activities. We lease approximately0®0 square feet of office space in Hsinchu, Taiwader lease agreements that
automatically renew each year. The Taiwan faclifiecommodate research and development, businesiepiment, operations, and
administration support. We lease approximately @7 $quare feet of office space in Shanghai and Bteen China, under leases that expire in
November 2017 and April 2016, respectively, to suppesearch and business development. We lea#@adtfacilities in Hong Kong fo
sales and inventory warehousing and in Japan aunth $@rea for our local business development persbn

We believe that our existing facilities are wellintained and in good operating condition, and afécent for our needs for the
foreseeable future. The following table lists owjon locations and primary usage as of Januar@15:

Approximate

Square
Major Locations Footage Usage
United States
Santa Clara, California 35,00C Corporate Headquarters; Sales; Marketing; ReseardlDevelopment; Finance;
Administration
Asia Pacific:
Hsinchu, Taiwatr 54,000 Research and Development; Business Developmentames; Administratiot
Shanghai, Chin 15,00C Research and Development; Business Develop
Shenzhen, Chin 12,00C Research and Development; Business Develop
Kowloon, Hong Kong 4,00C Sales; Warehousir
Shir-Yokohama, Japa 4,00C Business Developme
SeongNam, South Kor¢ 2,00C Business Developme

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not engaged in any material legal procesdanghis time.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Price Range of Ordinary Shares

Our ordinary shares have been traded on the NASBAgDal Market under the symbol “AMBA” since Octolids, 2012. Prior to that
date, there was no public trading market for odirary shares. The following table sets forth,tfer periods indicated, the high and low sales
prices per ordinary share as reported by the NASHAGbal Market:

Price Range
High Low

Year Ended January 31, 20:

Fourth Quarte $ 63.2C $ 44.2C

Third Quartel $ 46.7¢ $ 27.4C

Second Quarte $ 3381 % 21.6C

First Quartel $ 35.3€ $ 24.47
Year Ended January 31, 20:

Fourth Quarte $ 36.4¢ $ 19.5¢

Third Quartel $ 2267 $ 13.1€

Second Quarte $ 19.44 $ 12.94

First Quartel $ 16.0C $ 9.04

On March 23, 2015, there were 46 shareholdersoofrdeholding our ordinary shares. We cannot es#rttag number of beneficial
owners since many brokers and other institutiodd bor shares on behalf of shareholders. On Ma&;2@15, the last reported sale price of
our stock was $72.25 per ordinary share as repbstetle NASDAQ Global Market.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsioordinary shares and do not currently intenda so in the foreseeable future.

Performance Graph

This performance graph shall not be deemed to dlecittng material” or “filed” or incorporated byeference in future filings with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, or subjedtadiabilities of Section 18 of the Securities Eanpe Act of 1934, as amended, or the
Exchange Act, except as shall be expressly sét fiyrtspecific reference in such filing.
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The following graph shows a comparison from Octdli®r2012 (the date our ordinary shares commenmadig on the NASDAQ)
through January 31, 2015 of the cumulative totlrrefor our ordinary shares, the NASDAQ Compobitdex and the Philadelphia
Semiconductor Index. The comparisons in the graptistorical and are not intended to forecasteoindicative of possible future
performance of our ordinary shares.

Comparison of 27 months Cumulative Total Return

1,000
900 ’ 4
800 /
700 /

600 /

500 A /

400 / \/

300 //

=& 2 o ey -
100 E¥ = Ll

10/10/2012 10/31/2012 1/31/2013 4/30/2013 7/31/2013 10/31/2013 1/31/2014 4/30/2014 7/31/2014 10/31/2014 1/31/2015

=== Ambarella, Inc. == NASDAQ Composite == PHLX Semiconductor Index
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Ambarella, Inc 100 119.1 164.4 226.1 273.C 339.1 528.f 4101 472.1 730.¢ 912.7
NASDAQ Composite 100 97.6 103.C 109.1 118.€ 128.4 1345 134.¢ 143.2 151.7 151.¢
PHLX Semiconductor Inde 100 99.7 112.z 120.¢ 129.¢€ 137.€¢ 143.¢ 156.€ 165.2 1742 177.€

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer

None.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selected financiatadas of and for the last five fiscal years, amlfd be read in conjunction with Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations,” and ltemR8nancial Statements and
Supplementary Datagnd other financial data included elsewhere inrdyrt. Our historical results of operations asemecessarily indicati
of results of operations to be expected for anyriuperiod.

Selected Consolidated Statements of Operations Data

Year Ended January 31,
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(in thousands, except per share data)

Revenue $ 218,27¢ $ 157,60t $ 121,066 $ 97,257 $ 94,73¢
Income from operation $ 51861 $ 27917 $ 19,906 $ 11,258 $ 1547
Net income $ 50571 $ 2565/ $ 18,18t $ 9,821 $ 13,92¢
Net income per share attributable to ordinary shalders:
Basic $ 1.7C $ 093 $ 064 $ 032 $ 0.54
Diluted $ 157 $ 085 $ 060 $ 0.3C $ 0.5C




Selected Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

As of January 31,

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(in thousands)
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable sect $ 207,99 $ 14339« $ 100,49 $ 58,94/ $ 41,89€
Working capital 229,88¢ 151,83« 108,31¢ 54,87t 35,76¢
Total asset 284,28« 183,30 138,60: 81,73¢ 64,13t
Total liabilities 47,07: 26,94¢ 26,271 24,39( 25,96¢
Redeemable convertible preference sh — — 50,90( 39,27:
Total shareholders' equity (defic 237,211 156,36 112,33 6,44¢ (1,109

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview

We are a leading developer of semiconductor praegs®lutions for video that enable higefinition, or HD, video capture, sharing ¢
display. We combine our processor design capaslitiith our expertise in video and image procesaiggrithms and software to provide a
technology platform that is designed to be easilable across multiple applications and enablelrapd efficient product development. Our
system-on-a-chip, or SoC, designs fully integral®\itleo processing, image processing, audio praogssd system functions onto a single
chip, delivering exceptional video and image qyaliifferentiated functionality and low power congption.

We sell our solutions to leading original desigmunfacturers, or ODMs, and original equipment mactufiers, or OEMs, globally. We
refer to ODMSs as our customers and OEMSs as oucestbmers, except as otherwise indicated or asahtxt otherwise requires. In the
camera market, our solutions enable the creatidnigbf-quality video content primarily for wearalslports cameras, Internet Protocol, or IP,
security cameras, and automotive aftermarket caambrahe infrastructure market, our solutionsaidintly manage IP video traffic, broadcast
encoding, transcoding and IP video delivery apiltices.

Our sales cycles typically require a significantastment of time and a substantial expendituresdurces before we can realize reve
from the sale of our solutions, if any. Our typisales cycle consists of a multi-month sales andldpment process involving our customers’
system designers and management along with ows gafsonnel and software engineers. If succeghfslprocess culminates in a customer’s
decision to use our solutions in its system, wiriehrefer to as a design win. Our sales effortdygrieally directed to the OEM of the product
that will incorporate our video and image procegsolution, but the eventual design and incorporatif our SoC into the product may be
handled by an ODM on behalf of the OEM. Volume pettbn may begin within six to 18 months after aiga win, depending on the
complexity of our customer’s product and otherdestupon which we may have little or no influen©ece one of our solutions has been
incorporated into a customer’s design, we beliénat our solution is likely to remain a componentha customer’s product for its life cycle
because of the time and expense associated wigkiggiing a product or substituting an alternatsletson. Conversely, a design loss to a
competitor will likely preclude any opportunity fas to generate future revenue from such custorpesduct.

Fiscal Year 2015 Financial Highlights and Trends

. We recorded revenue of $218.3 million, an increHs@8.5% as compared to fiscal year 2014. The asgever the prior year was
primarily due to strong demand for our A5S, A7L &®ISoCs in the IP security, wearable sports artdmaotive aftermarket
camera markets. In addition, the initial ramp of ABS and A9 chips into the unmanned aerial vebjabe UAV, market also
contributed to the revenue growth in fiscal yeat®20The increase was partially offset by a year gear decline in the
infrastructure market as a result of continued weakket conditions in the United States and Eurampsystem manufacturers have
delayed investment in network upgrades to the ne26%icompression technolog

. We recorded operating income of $51.9 million, meréase of 85.8% as compared to fiscal year 2Gimaply due to continuing
growth in revenue, as well as efficient contropodduct costs and operating expen

. We generated cash flows from operating activitied52.3 million in fiscal year 2015, as compare&84.4 million in fiscal year
2014. The increase was primarily due to increasgdnicome, adjusted for increased non-cash stoskebeompensation, and
increased liabilities associated with the timingpafments to suppliers as well as income tax page
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The increase in cash flows from operating actisitias partially offset by increased accounts retsBé/associated with higher
revenues and the timing of payments from custoniecsgased inventory purchases to support contingimowth of sales, increas
deferred tax assets as a result of higher stockebasmpensation, as well as decreased deferredueyeom the timing of
shipments to our logistics provider and resultiali-through revenue recognitio

. In fiscal year 2015, we invested $40.0 million ighiy liquid, short-term marketable securities. W#d these investments as
available-for-sale securities. As of January 31,%2@he debt securities had a fair value of appnately $40.1 million with
insignificant unrealized losses caused by flucaretiin market value and interest ra

Factors Affecting Our Performance

Design WinsWe closely monitor design wins by customer andrmadket. We consider design wins to be criticaluo foture success,
although the revenue generated by each designaminvary significantly. Our long-term sales expeaota are based on forecasts from
customers and internal estimations of customer ddrfectoring in the expected time to market for enstomer products incorporating our
solutions and associated revenue potential.

Pricing, Product Cost and MargifQur pricing and margins depend on the volumes heddatures of the solutions we provide to our
customers. Additionally, we make significant invaents in new solutions for both cost improvements mew features that we expect to drive
revenue and maintain margins. In general, solutiocerporated into more complex configurations hsas those used in the infrastructure
market, have higher prices and higher gross maagrmpared to solutions sold into the camera eha@ur average selling price, or ASP,
can vary by market and application due to market#ig supply and demand, the maturation of proslleninched in previous years and the
launch of new products.

We continually monitor the cost of our solutions we rely on third-party manufacturers for the puatébn of our products, we maintain
a close relationship with these suppliers to caraity monitor production yields, component costd design efficiencies.

Shifting Consumer Preferenc&ur revenue is subject to consumer preferenceardegy form factor and functionality, and how those
preferences impact the video and image capturéretecs that we support. For example, improved $ph@ne video capture capabilities, and
the rapid adoption by consumers, led to the dedfrpocket video cameras aimed at the video andémapture market. The current video an
image capture market is now characterized by agrealume of more specialized video and imageweapdevices that are less likely to be
replaced with smartphones, such as wearable spatsras, IP security cameras and automotive aftketn@ameras. This increasing
specialization of video capture devices has chaongedustomer base and end markets and has impaatedvenue. In the future, we expect
further changes in the market to continue to impactbusiness performance.

Continued Concentration of Revenue by End Matkistorically, our revenue has been significantipoentrated in a small number of
end markets. In fiscal year 2010, the majority of eevenue came from the pocket video, camcordeirgrastructure markets. Over the last
five years, we have continued to provide solutifamghe camcorder and infrastructure markets, lad have expanded our focus to include the
wearable sports, IP security and automotive camenkets. We believe our entry into these markeliscamtinue to facilitate revenue growth
and customer diversification. While we will contento expand our end market exposure, such as tgpuns wearable cameras and unmai
aerial vehicles, or UAV, we anticipate that sates fimited number of end markets will continueatount for a significant percentage of our
total revenue for the foreseeable future. Our eadkat concentration may cause our financial peréoroe to fluctuate significantly from peri
to period based on the success or failure of theoscapture markets in which we compete. In additiee derive a significant portion of our
revenue from a limited number of ODMs who buildgwots on behalf of a limited number of OEMs andhrfra limited number of OEMSs to
whom we ship directly. We believe that our opemgtiesults for the foreseeable future will continoelepend on sales to a relatively small
number of customers.

Ability to Capitalize on Connectivity Trenlobile connected devices are ubiquitous today dayl an increasingly prominent role in
consumers’ lives. The constant connectivity proditg these devices has created a demand for catheleictronic peripherals such as video
and image capture devices. Our ability to capiatin these trends by supporting our end customdheidevelopment of connected periphe
that seamlessly cooperate with other connectedtdswnd allow consumers to distribute and shaeovéahd images with online media
platforms is critical for our success. We have add&eless communication functionality into ourwidns for wearable sports cameras, IP
security and automotive aftermarket cameras. Thebaaation of our compression technology with wissl@onnectivity enables wireless vic
streaming and uploading of videos and images tdnfeenet. Our solutions enable IP security cansgstems to stream video content to either
cloud infrastructure or connected mobile devices, aur solutions for wearable sports cameras atlomsumers to quickly stream or upload
video and images to social media platforms.
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Sales VoluméA typical design win can generate a wide rangeafifssvolumes for our solutions, depending on thierearket demand
for our customers’ products. This can depend oerséVactors, including the reputation of the endtomer, market penetration, product
capabilities, size of the end market that the pcodddresses and our end customers’ ability talseit products. In certain cases, we may
provide volume discounts on sales of our solutizrfgch may be offset by lower manufacturing costated to higher volumes. In general, out
customers with greater market penetration and iietéanding tend to develop products that genesaiget volumes over the product life cycle.

Customer Product Life CyclgVe estimate our customers’ product life cycles Basethe customer, type of product and end mahket.
general, products launched in the camera market slaorter life cycles than those sold into theastiucture market. We typically commence
commercial shipments from six to 18 months follogvandesign win; however, in some markets, moretlgngroduct and development cycles
are possible, depending on the scope and natihe @froject. A portable consumer device typicalg la product life cycle of six to 18 months.
In the infrastructure market, the product life &chn range from 24 to 60 months.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth our historical op@érg results for the periods indicated:

Year Ended January 31,

2015 2014 2013
(dollars in thousands)
Revenue $ 218,27¢ $ 157,60¢ $ 121,06¢
Cost of revenu 79,14: 57,761 40,40¢
Gross profit 139,13¢ 99,841 80,661
Operating expense
Research and developme 57,97¢ 48,77 42,82¢
Selling, general and administrati 29,291 23,15¢ 17,92¢
Total operating expens 87,27¢ 71,93( 60,75t
Income from operatior 51,861 27,917 19,90¢
Other income (loss), ni 175 (22) 136
Income before income tax 52,03¢ 27,89t 20,04z
Provision for income taxe 1,46F 2,241 1,854
Net income $ 50,571 $ 25,65¢ $ 18,18¢

The following table sets forth our historical op@érg results as a percentage of revenue of eaehitém for the periods indicated:

Year Ended January 31,

2015 2014 2013
Revenue 100% 100% 100%
Cost of revenu 36 37 33
Gross profit 64 63 67
Operating expense
Research and developme 27 31 35
Selling, general and administrati 13 15 15
Total operating expens 40 46 50
Income from operatior 24 17 17
Other income (loss), ni — — —
Income before income tax 24 17 17
Provision for income taxe 1 1 2
Net income 23% 16% 15%
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Revenue

We derive substantially all of our revenue from slage of HD video and image processing SoC solstiorOEMs and ODMs, either
directly or through our logistics providers. OurGSsolutions have been used in the camera and infchisre markets, and we expect these will
be the primary markets for our solutions for theefgeable future. We derive a substantial portfauorevenue from sales made indirectly
through our logistics provider, Wintech Microelextics Co., Ltd., or Wintech, and directly to onegaODM customer, Chicony Electronics
Co., Ltd., or Chicony.

We typically experience seasonal fluctuations inaguarterly revenue with our third fiscal quartermally being the highest revenue
quarter. This fluctuation has been driven primdpijyincreased sales in the camera market as otorass build inventories in preparation for
the holiday shopping season. More generally, oarage selling prices fluctuate based on the mixunfsolutions sold in a period which
reflects the impact of both changes in unit safesxwting solutions as well as the introduction @ales of new solutions. Our solutions are
typically characterized by a life cycle that begivith higher average selling prices and lower vasirfollowed by broader market adoption,
higher volumes and average selling prices thaloaver than initial levels.

The end markets into which we sell our productsrseen significant changes as consumer preferéavesevolved in response to new
technologies. As a result, the composition of @wenue may differ meaningfully during periods afteology or consumer preference chan
We expect shifts in consumer use of video captudhtinue to change over time, as more specialisedcases emerge and video capture
continues to proliferate.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Margin

Cost of revenue includes the cost of materials sisclvafers processed by third-party foundries scassociated with packaging,
assembly and test, and our manufacturing supperatipns such as logistics, planning and qualispece. Cost of revenue also includes
indirect costs such as warranty, inventory valuatgserves and other general overhead costs.

We expect that our gross margin may fluctuate fp@mod to period as a result of changes in avesaliimg price, product mix and the
introduction of new products by us or our compesitdn general, solutions incorporated into mommplex configurations, such as those used
in the infrastructure market, have higher priced ligher gross margins, as compared to solutioldsistm the camera market. As
semiconductor products mature and unit volumes teotdistomers increase, their average selling ptigaically decline. These declines may
be paired with improvements in manufacturing yiedds lower wafer, packaging and test costs, whifdebsome of the margin reduction that
could result from lower selling prices. We beligkiat our gross margin will decline in the futurevas continue to penetrate the highly
competitive camera market and as we launch outisnhiinto new markets.

Research and Development

Research and development expense consists prinohplgrsonnel costs, including salaries, stock-hasenpensation and employee
benefits. The expense also includes costs of dpredat incurred in connection with our collaborasievith our foundry vendors, costs of
licensing intellectual property from third parties product development, costs of development édtvgare and hardware tools, cost of
fabrication of mask sets for prototype productsl aliocated depreciation and facility expensesrédearch and development costs are
expensed as incurred. We expect our research ametbgenent expense to increase in absolute doliavgeacontinue to enhance and expanc
product features and offerings.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expense canpistnarily of personnel costs, including salarsteck-based compensation and
employee benefits for our sales, marketing, finahcenan resources, information technology and aidinative personnel. The expense also
includes professional service costs related towattng, tax, legal services, and allocated deptieciaand facility expenses. We expect our
selling expense to increase in absolute dollargeasxpand the size of our sales and marketing @gion to support our anticipated growth.
We expect our general and administrative expengetease in absolute dollars but remain relatifiglyas a percentage of revenue as we
continue to develop the infrastructure necessapptrate as a public company, which includes irr@@audit and legal fees, costs to comply
with the Sarbane®xley Act of 2002, the rules and regulations aggtlle to companies listed on The NASDAQ Stock Marketestor relation
costs, and higher insurance premiums.

Other Income (Loss), Net

Other income (loss), net consists primarily of istveent interest income and gains and losses froeigio currency transactions and
remeasurements.
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Provision for Income Taxes

We are incorporated in the Cayman Islands and adrmisiness in several countries such as the UBiteeés, China, Taiwan, Hong
Kong, South Korea and Japan, and we are subjeéakation in those jurisdictions. As such, our waiilde operating income is subject to
varying tax rates and our effective tax rate idhhiglependent upon the geographic distributionwfearnings or losses and the tax laws and
regulations in each geographical region. Consetyyamé have experienced lower effective tax ratea aubstantial percentage of our
operations are conducted in lower-tax jurisdictidhsur operational structure was to change irhsmenanner that would increase the amount
of operating income subject to taxation in highretjurisdictions, or if we were to commence operagiin jurisdictions assessing relatively
higher tax rates, our effective tax rate couldtihate significantly on a quarterly basis and/oabeersely affected.

Comparison of the Fiscal Years Ended January 311802014 and 2013

Revenue
Change
Year Ended January 31, 2015 2014
2015 2014 2013 Amount % Amount %
(dollars in thousands)
Revenue $218,27¢ $157,60¢ $121,066 $ 60,67( 38.5% $ 36,547 30.2%

Revenue increased for the fiscal year ended Jardiarg015 compared to the fiscal year ended Jar813r2014 primarily due to strong
demand for our A5S, A7L and A9 SoCs in the IP sigguvearable sports and automotive aftermarketararmarkets. In addition, the initial
ramp of our A5S and A9 chips into the UAV markedoatontributed to the revenue growth in fiscal y#@it5. The increase was partially offset
by a year over year decline in the infrastructuegkat as a result of continued weak market comtio the United States and Europe as
system manufacturers have delayed investment wanktupgrades to the new H.265 compression teclyyolo

Revenue increased for the fiscal year ended Jardiarg014 compared to the fiscal year ended Jar@igr@013 primarily due to
continuing adoption by new and existing customerstuir IP security and wearable sports camera nsrgattially offset by a year over year
decline in revenues from the automotive and infuzs$tire markets. The decline in revenue from theraotive market was primarily due to the
late roll out of the new A7LA based camera prodaurad competitive pressures at the low end of the&ketaf he decreased revenue in the
infrastructure market was due to weak market cantitin the United States and Europe in this ingustsulting in lower capital expenditures
for video encoding capital equipment.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Margin

Change
Year Ended January 31, 2015 2014
2015 2014 2013 Amount % Amount %
(dollars in thousands)
Cost of revenu $ 79,14z $ 57,761 $ 40,40t $ 21,381 37.0% $ 17,35¢ 43.C%
Gross profit 139,13¢ 99,84 80,661 39,28¢ 39.3%  19,18¢ 23.8%
Gross margir 63.7% 63.4% 66.6% — 0.3% — (3.2%

Cost of revenue increased for the fiscal years@ddauary 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, primdrike to increases in the number of
SoCs sold into the camera markets. The increasespegtially offset by cost reductions receivedrrsuppliers for certain SoCs due to
increased purchase volumes.

Gross margin increased for the fiscal year endadalg 31, 2015 compared to the fiscal year endedais 31, 2014 primarily due to
increased revenues associated with higher grosgimfaom the ramp in shipments of our A7L and A9shinto the wearable sports,
automotive, and UAV camera markets. The increasepaatially offset by continuing reduction in thigher gross margin infrastructure
business. Infrastructure revenue declined as a&ptage of total revenue from 12% for the fiscalry@aled January 31, 2014 to 6% for the
fiscal year ended January 31, 2015.

Gross margin declined for the fiscal year endedidgn31, 2014 compared to the fiscal year endedalgr81, 2013 primarily due to a
significant reduction in the higher gross margifiastructure business. Infrastructure revenue dedlas a percentage of total revenue from
22% for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2012¢% for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2014.
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Research and Development

Change
Year Ended January 31, 2015 2014
2015 2014 2013 Amount % Amount %
(dollars in thousands)
Research and developme $ 57,97¢ $ 48,777 $ 42,82¢ $ 9,201 18.8% $ 5,94¢ 13.9%

Research and development expense increased ffis¢thkyear ended January 31, 2015 compared tbhste year ended January 31,
2014 primarily due to increases in engineering headt, foundry development costs and facility adlimn costs. Our research and
development engineering headcount increased t@B&&nuary 31, 2015 compared to 358 at Januard034, resulting in an increase in salary
related expenses of approximately $2.7 millionisedl year 2015. The increases were also attribeitaladditional stock-based compensation
of approximately $3.6 million in fiscal year 20X5 a result of the issuance of options and resttistock units for newly hired employees, our
annual evergreen stock program for existing emmsyad the employee stock purchase plan. Theghtgt foundry costs expended on the
development of our next generation SoCs increagepproximately $1.9 million in fiscal year 2015helincreased development costs were
partially offset by a $0.9 million in payment framne customer who agreed to share development tositscal year 2014, we entered into a
lease agreement for our new headquarters locat8drita Clara, California and in fiscal year 2015cemrtinued the expansion of our enterprise
resource planning system, resulting in additionallity allocation costs of approximately $1.8 naifi for the fiscal year ended January 31,
2015.

Research and development expense increased ffisthkyear ended January 31, 2014 compared tbhste year ended January 31,
2013 primarily due to increases in engineering headt, foundry development costs and facility adlimn costs. Our research and
development engineering headcount increased t@B3&nuary 31, 2014 compared to 334 at Januar303B, resulting in an increase in salary
related expenses of approximately $1.7 millioniscdl year 2014. The increase of salary relate@esgs was partially offset by $0.4 million
for a one-time IPO bonus accrued for China emplsyediscal year 2013, which was not repeatedsodi year 2014. Beginning from the
initial public offering date in the third quarteffiscal year 2013, we granted restricted stocksuand offered participation in an employee
stock purchase plan, resulting in an increasedicksbased compensation expense of approximate®yriillion in fiscal year 2014. Our third
party foundry costs related to the developmentunfrext generation SoCs increased by approxim&® million in fiscal year 2014. The
increased development costs were partially offget $1.0 million one-time payment from a customépwagreed to fund custom software
development, which we had no expectations or comanits for future product revenues or developmaenjepts with this customer. In fiscal
year 2014, we entered into a lease agreement farew Santa Clara, California headquarters andémphted the initial phase of an
enterprise resource planning system, resultingniadditional facility allocation cost of approxireat $1.3 million.

Selling, General and Administrative

Change
Year Ended January 31, 2015 2014
2015 2014 2013 Amount % Amount %
(dollars in thousands)
Selling, general and administrati $ 29,297 $ 23,15 $ 17,92¢ $ 6,144 26.5% $ 5,227 29.2%

Selling, general and administrative expense ine@#asr the fiscal years ended January 31, 20138ad primarily due to an additional
$5.7 million and $4.0 million, respectively, in cpensation as a result of increases in headcourstanbased compensation from issuanc
options and restricted stock units for newly hiesaployees, our annual evergreen stock progranmxistirg employees and the employee s
purchase plan. In addition, we incurred approxitye$6.7 million and $1.2 million of additional expeitures on outside professional services
to support the continued development of our enisgpesource planning system, to meet the requiresyd the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, and the
compliance requirements of being a public companyHe fiscal years ended January 31, 2015 and, 263gectively.

Other Income (Loss), Net

Change
Year Ended January 31, 2015 2014
2015 2014 2013 Amount % Amount %
(dollars in thousands)
Other income (loss), ni $ 175 $ 22) $ 136 $ 197 895.5% $ (158) (116.2)%
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The increase in other income (loss), net, for theaf year ended January 31, 2015 compared toste fyear ended January 31, 2014
was primarily due to approximately $150,000 of in&trest income from marketable security investraent

The decrease in other income (loss), net, foridwfyear ended January 31, 2014 compared taste fyear ended January 31, 2013
was primarily due to net income impact from revétuaof warrants to purchase redeemable convertitdéerence shares in fiscal year 2013
which was converted into warrants to purchase argishares upon our IPO in the third quarter afdfigear 2013 and, as a result, there we
future impact to net income from revaluation oftswarrants thereafter.

Provision for Income Taxes

Change
Year Ended January 31, 2015 2014
2015 2014 2013 Amount % Amount %
(dollars in thousands)
Provision for income taxe $ 1465 $ 2241 $ 1854 $ (776) (34.6)% $ 387 20.8%
Effective tax rate 3% 8% 9% — (5)% — (1)%

Income tax expense and effective tax rate decreadestal year 2015 as compared to fiscal yeard2@imarily due to a favorable
change in our geographic mix of profits as welhasncrease in federal research and experimenit,cpadtially offset by non-deductible stock-
based compensation expenses.

Income tax expense increased in fiscal year 20bbempared to fiscal year 2013 primarily due toraréase in profitability and non-
deductible stock-based compensation expensesalpadifset by a favorable change in our geogramhiic of profits. The effective tax rate
decreased for fiscal year 2014 as compared td fygea 2013 primarily due to a favorable changelngeographic mix of profits, partially
offset by non-deductible stock-based compensatiper@ses.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows

The following table summarizes our cash flows fa periods indicated:

Year Ended January 31,

2015 2014 2013
(in thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 52,25¢ $ 34,35( $ 10,51«
Net cash used in investing activiti (40,067) (1,68¢) (1,019
Net cash provided by financing activiti 14,70(C 10,23¢ 32,05(
Net increase in cas $ 26,897 $ 4290( $  41,55C

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Fiscal year 2015 compared to fiscal year 20C&sh provided by operating activities increasenharily due to increased net income,
adjusted for increased non-cash stock-based comi@msand increased liabilities associated withttting of payments to suppliers as well
as income tax payables. The increase in cash fimas operating activities was partially offset mgieased accounts receivable associatec
higher revenues and the timing of payments frontoznsrs, increased inventory purchases to suppatinzong growth of sales, increased
deferred tax assets as a result of higher stockebesmpensation, as well as decreased deferreduevym the timing of shipments to our
logistics provider and resulting sell-through rewemecognition.

Fiscal year 2014 compared to fiscal year 20C3ish provided by operating activities increasenharily due to increased net income,
adjusted for increased non-cash stock-based comi@msind depreciation expenses. The increase ls@stributable to improved accounts
receivable collection from our major customers snuleased deferred revenue. The increase in cashdperating activities was partially
offset by increased inventory purchases to suppttinuing growth of sales and a decrease in addiabilities associated with the timing of
payments to suppliers.
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Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Fiscal year 2015 compared to fiscal year 20\t cash used in investing activities increasecharily due to $40.0 million investments
in highly liquid, short-term marketable securitiast of cash receipts from the sale or maturitg pbrtion of these investments.

Fiscal year 2014 compared to fiscal year 200N&t cash used in investing activities increasecharily due to approximately $0.7
million of leasehold improvements expendituresdor new headquarters located in Santa Clara, Caii#@and approximately $0.6 million of
investment in a new enterprise resource plannistegay to manage our business operations.

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Fiscal year 2015 compared to fiscal year 20t cash provided by financing activities increapacharily due to an additional $2.1
million in cash proceeds from option exercises emtributions from participants in the employeecktpurchase plan and an additional $2.4
million of recognized excess tax benefits from @aged stock-based compensation .

Fiscal year 2014 compared to fiscal year 20N&t cash provided by financing activities decregsdmarily due to $30.4 million of net
cash proceeds from selling of our ordinary sharennection with our IPO in fiscal year 2013. Teerease was partially offset by an
additional $7.8 million of cash receipts from emye stock option exercises, contributions fromipignts in the employee stock purchase
plan, and from the exercise of warrants to purcloadmary shares in fiscal year 2014.

Sources of Liquidity

As of January 31, 2015 and 2014, we had cash,ampshalents and marketable securities of approxp&208.0 million and $143.4
million, respectively. In fiscal year 2015, we isted $40.0 million in highly liquid, shoterm marketable securities. We hold these invests
as available-fosale securities and mark them to market. As ofdigndl, 2015, these securities had a fair valueppfoximately $40.1 millio
with insignificant unrealized losses caused bytflations in market value and interest rates.

Operating and Capital Expenditure Requirements

We have generated net income in each quarter begimith the first quarter of fiscal year 2010, amd have generated cash from
operations in each of fiscal years 2009 to 2015 baleve that our anticipated cash generated frpemaiions and our existing cash balances
will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cashuiegments through at least the next 12 monthdérfuture, we expect our operating and
capital expenditures to increase as we increasdcbaat, expand our business activities, implemedtenhance our information technology
platforms and to meet the requirements of the S&mb@Oxley Act. We expect our accounts receivabteiaventory balances to increase, and
could be partially offset by increases in accoyatgable, which will result in a greater need forkwog capital. If our available cash balances
are insufficient to satisfy our future liquidityqeirements, we may seek to sell equity or conviertilebt securities or borrow funds
commercially. The sale of equity and convertibletdecurities may result in dilution to our shaldlos and those securities may have rights
senior to those of our ordinary shares. If we raid@itional funds through the issuance of conviertilebt securities, these securities could
contain covenants that would restrict our operatide may require additional capital beyond ourenity anticipated amounts. Additional
capital may not be available to us on reasonabtesteor at all.

Our short- term and long-term capital requiremevitsdepend on many factors, including the follogin
. our ability to generate cash from operations;

. our ability to control our costs;

. the emergence of competing or complementary tecigies or products;

. the costs of filing, prosecuting, defending andoecihg any patent claims and other intellectuapprty rights, or participating in
litigation-related activities; an

. our acquisition of complementary businesses, prisdared technologies.
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Contractual Obligations, Commitments and Contingenies
The following table summarizes our outstanding c@sttial obligations as of January 31, 2015:

Payment Due by Period as of January 31, 2015
(in thousands)

Less than More than All
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years Other
Contractual Obligations
Facilities under operating leastt) $ 4981 $ 1,821 $ 292 $ 237 $ — % —
Technology license or other obligations under
operating lease@ 7,08¢ 3,667 3,421 — — —
Purchase obligatior® 27,547 27,547 — — — —
Uncertain tax liabilitie<4) 1,391 — — — — 1,391
Total $ 41007 $ 33,03 $ 6,344 $ 237  $ — $ 1391

(1) Facilities under operating leases represaegilitfas with initial lease terms in excess of grear. They are located in Santa Clara
(California), China, Hong Kong, and Japan. Theddas our Santa Clara headquarters has a fivetgearand terminates in fiscal year
2019. The lease for our Shanghai facility has @serear term and terminates in fiscal year 201&. [€ase for our Shenzhen facility has
a two-year term and terminates in fiscal year 20h& Hong Kong facility has a three-year term archinates in fiscal year 2017. The
leases for our Japan facilities have -year terms and terminate in fiscal year 2016 ari¥ 2espectively

(2) Technology license obligations under operat@ages represent future cash payments for softwasther technology licenses which are
used in product design or daily operati

(3) Purchase obligations consist primarily of inventptychase obligations with our independent contrzantufacturers

(4) Uncertain tax liabilities represent our liabilititss uncertain tax positions as of January 31, 2016 are unable to reasonably estimatt
timing of payments in individual years due to unaities in the timing of the effective settlemehtax positions

Stock Options and Restricted Stock Units

Grants of stock-based awards are key componetie afompensation packages we provide to attractetath certain employees to
align their interests with the interests of exigtshareholders. We recognize that these stock-tmgadis dilute existing shareholders and hav
sought to limit the number of shares granted whitasziding competitive compensation packages. A¥apfuary 31, 2015, a total of 4.3 million
outstanding stock options and unvested restridtmzk sunits, or RSUs, will potentially dilute ourreangs per share. This potential dilution will
only result if outstanding options vest and arereised and RSUs vest and are settled. As of Jar8iar§015, 100% of our outstanding options
had exercise prices less than the current marias pf our ordinary shares.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of January 31, 2015, we did not engage in afipafince sheet arrangements, including the ustrwétured finance, special purpose
entities or variable interest entities.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1, “Organization and Summary of Signifigsccounting Policies—Recent Accounting Pronouncetsieof the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Rartem 15 of this report, for a full descriptiai recent accounting standards, including th
respective dates of adoption and effects on ousaatated financial position, results of operatiansl cash flows.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Managenent Estimates

The preparation of audited consolidated finandetiesnents in conformity with U.S. generally accdpmecounting principles, or GAAP,
requires us to make estimates, judgments and assunsthat affect the reported amounts of assiatsijities, revenue, expenses and related
disclosures. On an ongoing basis, we evaluatedtima&tes, judgments and assumptions including tredaged to (i) the collectability of
accounts receivable; (ii) write down for excess ahsdolete inventories; (iii) the estimated useiftgd of long-lived assets; (iv) impairment of
long-lived assets and financial instruments; (vjrasaty obligations; (vi) the valuation of stock-bdscompensation awards and marketable
securities; (vii) the probability of performancej@dtives achievement; (viii) the realization of @ssets and estimates of tax liabilities,
including reserves for uncertain tax positions; érplthe recognition and disclosure of contingkatbilities. We may engage third-party
valuation specialists to assist with estimategedl#o the valuation of financial instruments asdeds associated with various contractual
arrangements. Such estimates often require theteelef appropriate valuation methodologies amphificant judgment. These estimates,
judgments and assumptions are based on historipalience and on various other factors that weebelto be reasonable under
circumstances. Our actual results could differ ftbese estimates under different assumptions afittons, and such differences could be
material.

We believe that the accounting policies discusstdvbare critical to understanding our historicadl duture performance, as these
policies relate to the more significant areas imir@) management’s judgment and estimates:

Revenue Recognition

We generate revenue from the sales of our SoC&MIr ODMs, either directly or through logistiaopiders. Revenue from sales
directly to OEMs and ODMs is recognized upon shiptpgovided persuasive evidence of an arrangemastselegal title to the products and
risk of ownership have transferred, the fee isdire determinable, and collection of the resultiageivable is reasonably assured. We provide
our logistics providers with the rights to retuncess levels of inventory and to future price atiients. Given the inability to reasonably
estimate these price changes and returns, revernlueoats related to shipments to logistics prowdee deferred until we have received
notification from our logistics providers that thiegive sold our products. Information reported biylogistics providers includes product resale
price, quantity and end customer shipment inforomaéis well as remaining inventory on hand. At threetof shipment to a logistics provider,
we record a trade receivable as there is a legaligrceable right to receive payment, reduce irmgrfor the value of goods shipped as legal
titte has passed to the logistics provider andrdide related margin as deferred revenue in thealaated balance sheets. Any price
adjustments are recorded as a change to deferredue at the time the adjustments are agreed upon.

Arrangements with certain OEM customers providepficing that is dependent upon the end produdtsvithich our SoCs are used.
These arrangements may also entitle us to a shéne product margin ultimately realized by the OEMie minimum guaranteed amount of
revenue related to the sale of products subjetttewe arrangements is recognized when all otheregits of revenue recognition are met. Any
amounts at the date of shipment invoiced in exoé#fse minimum guaranteed contract price are defleuntil the additional amounts we are
entitled to are fixed or determinable. Additionad@unts earned by us resulting from margin sharirgngements and determination of the enc
products into which the products are ultimatelyomporated are recognized when end customer salesgads reported to us.

We sell a limited amount of software under perpdicanses that include post-contract customer stppr PCS. We do not have
evidence of fair value for the PCS and, accordinliggnse revenue is recognized ratably over thiemated supporting period in accordance
with ASC 985, Software Revenue Recognition. We alster into development agreements with certaitocusrs. Revenue is deferred for any
amounts billed prior to delivery of developmentéess. However, if we retain the intellectual prageyenerated from these development
agreements, receipts and costs related to themsg@ments are included in research and developmwpanse. The revenue from those license
and services was not material for the fiscal yeaded January 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

We consider all highly liquid investments with arigl maturities of less than three months at thne tof purchase to be cash equivalents
Investments that are highly liquid with original tugaties at the time of purchase greater than thteaths are considered as marketable
securities.
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We classify these investments as “available-foe’ss¢curities carried at fair value, based on qiliatarket prices of similar assets, with
the unrealized gains or losses reported, net ofasa separate component of shareholders’ equitynegluded in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) in the consolidatedriza sheets. The amortization of security premiamasaccretion of discounts and the
realized gains and losses are both recorded im tbeme (loss), net in the consolidated statemehtperations. We review our investments
for possible other-than-temporary impairments oagular basis. If any loss on investment is belieteebe other-than-temporary, a charge will
be recorded and a new cost basis in the investmiiite established. In evaluating whether a los@®ecurity is other-than-temporary, we
consider the following factors: (1) general marg@tditions, (2) the duration and extent to whioh fiir value is less than cost and (3) our
intent and ability to hold the investment.

For securities in an unrealized loss position whgctieemed to be other-than-temporary, the difisgdretween the security’s then-
current amortized cost basis and fair value isreged into (i) the amount of the impairment relai@the credit loss (i.e., the credit loss
component) and (ii) the amount of the impairmetsateal to all other factors (i.e., the non-cred#d@omponent). The credit loss component is
recognized in earnings. The non-credit loss compbisarecognized in accumulated other comprehersise Due to the relative short term
nature of the investments, there have been no-thhertemporary impairments recorded to date.

Inventory Valuation

We record inventories at the lower of cost or markie cost includes materials and other produatmsts and is computed using
standard cost on a first-in, first-out basis. Ineen reserves are recorded for estimated obsolesa@nunmarketable inventories based on
forecast of future demand and market conditionactéial market conditions are less favorable thajepted, or if future demand for our
products decrease, additional inventory write-domiay be required. Once inventory is written downega accounting cost basis has been
established and, accordingly, any associated resgmot reversed until the inventory sold or speah There have been no material inventory
losses recognized to date.

Stock-Based Compensation

We measure stock-based compensation for equitydsvgaanted to employees and directors based aestimated fair value on the
grant date, and recognize that compensation aegpesing the straight-line attribution methoddervice condition awards or using the
gradedvesting attribution method for awards with performoa conditions over the requisite service peridaictvis typically the vesting peric
of each award. We estimate the fair value of retetti stock units, or RSUs, based on the fair mardete of our ordinary shares on the grant
date. We use the Black-Scholes option pricing moaldetermine the fair value of stock options. Drefaing the fair value of stock options on
the grant date requires the input of various assiomg including stock price of the underlying araliy share, the exercise price of the stock
option, expected volatility, expected term, riskdrinterest rate and dividend rate. The expecteditecalculated using the simplified method
as prescribed in the guidance provided by the S&z1and Exchange Commission, as neither relevigidrical experience nor other relevant
data are available to estimate future exercise\behda he expected volatility is based on the hist volatilities of similar companies whose
share prices are publicly available for a periochoeensurate with the expected term. The risk-freerést rate is derived from the average U.S
Treasury constant maturity rates during the respeperiods commensurate with the expected terra.eXpected dividend yield is zero
because we have not historically paid dividendstena: no present intention to pay dividends. Wehisterical data to estimate pre-vesting
award forfeitures and record stock-based compeansatily for those awards that are expected to ¥esfeitures are estimated at the time of
grant and revised if necessary in subsequent peif@ttual forfeitures differ from estimates.

We recognize non-employee stock-based compensatjpense based on the estimated fair value of thitydgstrument. The fair value
of the non-employee awards is remeasured at eaoftireg period until services required under tha@gement are completed, which is the
vesting date.

Prior to the initial public offering, we engagediadependent appraiser to assist us in the valuafiour ordinary share price. Our bo.
of directors directed these regular valuationslaamiiinput into determining the relevant objectind aubjective factors accounted for and
relevant approaches in each valuation. After tt@, e exercise price of stock option awards ismeined based on the closing price of our
ordinary shares traded on The NASDAQ Global Madgethe grant date.
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Net Income Per Ordinary Share

We apply the two-class method to calculate andgmtaset income per ordinary share. Under the tagsciethod, net income is
allocated between ordinary shares and other gaaiticig securities based on their participatingtagRarticipating securities are defined as
securities that may participate in undistributerthgrys with ordinary shares, whether that partitgrais conditioned upon the occurrence of a
specified event or not. Basic net income per omgishare is computed by dividing net income alldedb ordinary shares by the weighted-
average number of ordinary shares outstandinchéoperiod. Diluted net income per ordinary shamismputed by dividing net income
allocable to ordinary shares and income allocablearticipating securities, to the extent theydihative, by the weighted-average number of
ordinary shares outstanding, including the dilut¥fects of participating securities on an if-cortgd basis plus the dilutive effects of ordinary
shares. Our potential dilutive ordinary share egjaints consist of incremental ordinary shares tdsuapon the exercise of options, upon the
issuance of shares pursuant to the Employee Stackh&se Plan, or ESPP, upon the release of vesgtritted stock units, upon the conver:
of our redeemable convertible preference sharesipad the exercise of warrants.

We perform an assessment as to whether instrurgeamsed in stock-based payment transactions atieipating securities. Stockasec
payment awards that have not yet vested meet firétia of a participating security provided thight to receive the dividend is non-
forfeitable and norcontingent. These participating securities shoeldhisluded in the computation of basic net incomegrdinary share und
the two-class method. We have concluded that omvested early-exercised options meet the defimitiba participating security and should
be included in the computation of basic net incgaeordinary share.

Income Taxes

We record income taxes using the asset and liabiléthod, which requires the recognition of deféiiax assets and liabilities for the
expected future tax consequences of events thatlheen recognized in our financial statementsorgturns. In estimating future tax
consequences, generally all expected future ewthés than enactments or changes in the tax laates are considered. Valuation allowance
are provided when necessary to reduce deferregssets to the amount expected to be realized.

We apply authoritative guidance for the accounforguncertainty in income taxes. The guidance nexpuihat tax effects of a position be
recognized only if it is “more likely than not” te sustained based solely on its technical mesitsf ¢he reporting date. Upon estimating our
tax positions and tax benefits, we consider andLat@ numerous factors, which may require periadistments and which may not reflect
final tax liabilities. We adjust our financial statents to reflect only those tax positions thataoee likely than not to be sustained under
examination.

As part of the process of preparing consolidatedrfcial statements, we are required to estimatéagas in each of the jurisdictions in
which we operate. We estimate actual current tmosxre together with assessing temporary diffeenesulting from differing treatment of
items, such as accruals and allowances not cuyrdatiuctible for tax purposes. These differencesltén deferred tax assets, which are
included in our consolidated balance sheets. Iegdndeferred tax assets represent future taxfitet®be received when certain expenses
previously recognized in the consolidated statemehbperations become deductible expenses ungécalple income tax laws, or loss or
credit carryforwards are utilized.

In assessing whether deferred tax assets may limerbave consider whether it is more likely thaot that some portion or all of
deferred tax assets will be realized. The ultinmatdization of deferred tax assets is dependent tipogeneration of future taxable income.

We make estimates and judgments about our futiedba income based on assumptions that are comsigith our plans and estimates.
Should the actual amounts differ from estimates amount of valuation allowance could be materiatigacted. Any adjustment to the
deferred tax asset valuation allowance would berded in the income statement for the periods iirthvthe adjustment is determined to be
required.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

We had cash, cash equivalents and marketable Sesudtaling $208.0 million and $143.4 millionJatnuary 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. Our cash is deposited in standarét banounts and certificates of deposit. The casiivatents and marketable securities consist
primarily of investments in debt securities. Ouslttés held for working capital purposes. We doerger into investments for trading or
speculative purposes.
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Interest Rate Fluctuation Risk

The primary objectives of our investment activitége to preserve principal, provide liquidity andximize income without significantly
increasing risk. Some of the securities we investre subject to market risk. This means that aghan prevailing interest rates may cause th
principal amount of the investment to fluctuate.rfimimize this risk, we maintain our portfolio dicrt-term investments in a variety of debt
securities with high liquidity. We do not enterdritvestments for trading or speculative purpo8ek0% change in interest rates will not have
a material impact on our future interest incoméwestment fair value. The risk associated witletiliating interest rates is limited to our
investment portfolio.

Foreign Currency Risk

To date, all of our product sales and inventorychases have been denominated in U.S. dollars. @/efthre have not had any foreign
currency risk associated with these two activitidge functional currency of all of our entitiesl® U.S. dollar. Our operations outside of the
United States incur operating expenses and hoktsaaad liabilities denominated in foreign curresciprincipally the New Taiwan Dollar and
the Chinese Yuan Renminbi. Our results of operatamd cash flows are, therefore, subject to fluina due to changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. Given that the operating expehaesve incur in currencies other than U.S. dolterge not been a significant percentage of
our total revenue, we believe that the exposufertign currency fluctuation risk from operatingpexses is insignificant at this time. As we
grow our operations, our exposure to foreign cuayaisk could become more significant. To date hage not entered into any foreign
currency exchange contracts and currently do no¢&xo enter into foreign currency exchange catgréor trading or speculative purposes.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Financial Statements

The financial statements required by this Itemsateforth as a separate section of this Annual RepoForm 10-K. See Item 15 for a
listing of financial statements provided in thetgattitled “Financial Statements.”

Supplementary Data (Unaudited)

The following table sets forth unaudited suppleragntjuarterly financial data for the two year pdremded January 31, 2015. In
managemens opinion, the unaudited data has been prepar#teosame basis as the audited information anddeslall adjustments necess
for a fair presentation of the data for the peripdssented.

For the Three Months Ended

Apr. 30, Jul. 31, Oct. 31, Jan. 31, Apr. 30, Jul. 31, Oct. 31, Jan. 31,
2014 2014 2014 2015 2013 2013 2013 2014
(in thousands, except per share data)
Revenue $40,921 $46,96¢ $65,68¢ $64,70( $33,941 $37,71C $4599C $39,96i
Cost of revenu 15,32¢ 16,43: 24,13( 23,25¢ 12,24¢ 14,41¢ 16,68¢ 14,40¢
Gross profit 25,59¢ 30,53¢ 41,55¢ 41,44~ 21,69¢ 23,291 29,301 25,562
Operating expense

Research and developmt 12,914 13,49i 15,58 15,98: 11,317 10,97¢ 13,47¢ 13,01(
Selling, general and administrati 6,755 6,87E 7,324 8,343 5,157 5,38E 5,761 6,85(
Total operating expens 19,66¢ 20,37z 22,90¢ 24,32¢ 16,474 16,35¢ 19,23 19,86(
Income from operation 5,927 10,16¢ 18,651 17,11¢ 5,21¢ 6,932 10,06¢ 5,70z
Other income (loss), ni 49 39 40 47 (5) (11) (12) 6
Income before income tax 5,97€ 10,20z 18,691 17,16¢ 5,214 6,921 10,05z 5,70¢
Provision for income taxe 716 893 364 (508) 473 667 926 175
Net income $ 526C $ 9,31C $18,327 $17,67¢ $ 4,741 $ 6,254 $ 9,12¢ $ 5,53¢

Net income per share attributable

ordinary shareholder

Basic $ 018 $ 032 $ 061 $ 058 $ 017 $ 028 $ 033 $ 0.19
Diluted $ 017 $ 02¢ $ 057 $ 053 $ 016 $ 021 $ 03C $ 0.18

Net income per ordinary share for the year is caegbindependently and may not equal the sum ofjtiaeterly net income per ordinary
share.
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Our quarterly revenues and operating results dfieudt to forecast. Therefore, we believe thatipdfto-period comparisons of our
operating results will not necessarily be meanihgfd should not be relied upon as an indicaticiutoire performance. Also, operating res
may fall below our expectations and the expectatmfranalysts or investors in one or more futurartgus. If this were to occur, the market
price of our ordinary shares would likely declif@r further information regarding the quarterlyctiuation of our revenues and operating
results, see Item 1A, “Risk Factors—Fluctuationsun operating results on a quarterly and annusiblmuld cause the market price of our
ordinary shares to decline”.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNT ANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Clagécutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, rasluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of the etloegberiod covered by this Annual Report on Fof¥K1 The term “disclosure controls and
procedures” (as defined in Rules 13a- 15(e) and 15)) under the Exchange Act, means controlsodimer procedures of a company that ar
designed to ensure that information required tdibelosed by a company in the reports that it filesubmits under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported nvtftbitime periods specified in the SEC's rules famchs. Disclosure controls and
procedures include, without limitation, controlsigarocedures designed to ensure that informatiguired to be disclosed by a company in the
reports that it files or submits under the Exchafigeis accumulated and communicated to the compangnagement, including its principal
executive and principal financial officers, as agprate to allow timely decisions regarding reqdidésclosure. Management recognizes that
any controls and procedures, no matter how welbdesl and operated, can provide only reasonabigasse of achieving their objectives and
management necessarily applies its judgment iruatiag the cost-benefit relationship of possiblatoals and procedures.

Based upon such evaluation, our Chief Executivéc®&ffand Chief Financial Officer have concluded,tha of January 31, 2015, our
disclosure controls and procedures were effectitkeareasonable assurance level.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for a@stdaby and maintaining adequate internal contr@rdinancial reporting as defined
in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15(d)-15(f) under the ExgjeAct. The Company’s internal control over finaheeporting is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynafitial reporting and the preparation of finansiatements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfes: Because of its inherent limitations, intém@ntrol over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements. Projections ofeaajuation of effectiveness to future periodssarngject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, bthidalegree of compliance with the policies orcpaures may deteriorate.

Management has evaluated the effectiveness ohtemial control over financial reporting based foa framework irinternal Control-
Integrated Framework (2015, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinataf the Treadway Commission (“COSQ”"). Based s th
evaluation, management has concluded that ouniiteontrol over financial reporting was effecta® of January 31, 2015.

The effectiveness of our internal control over ficial reporting as of January 31, 2015 has beeitealdy PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP, an independent registered public accounting,fas stated in their report, which appears herein

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There were no changes in our internal control dwancial reporting during the Company’s fiscal geaended January 31, 2015 that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, the Company’s internal cohtreer financial reporting.
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Inherent Limitations of Disclosure Controls and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Because of their inherent limitations, our disctescontrols and procedures and our internal cootret financial reporting may not
prevent material errors or fraud. A control systemmatter how well conceived and operated, cawmigheconly reasonable, not absolute,
assurance that the objectives of the control systenmet. The effectiveness of our disclosure otstaind procedures and our internal control
over financial reporting is subject to risks, irdileg that the controls may become inadequate beaafushanges in conditions or that the de
of compliance with our policies or procedures matedorate.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable.
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PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPO RATE GOVERNANCE

The information responsive to this item is incogded herein by reference to our Proxy Statemerdo2015 annual meeting of
shareholders to be filed with the Securities andharge Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A riet than 120 days after the end of the
fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on FofrKl

We have a Code of Business Conduct and Ethicdlfof aur directors, officers and employees. Wendlave a Code of Ethics for
Finance Team applicable to our Chief Executive @ffi Chief Financial Officer and other Senior FiciahOfficers. These documents are
available on our website at http://investor.ambaredm/governance.cfm. To date, there have beewaingers under our Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics and Code of Ethics for FinareanT. We will post any amendments or waivers, if @hdn granted, of our Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics and Code of EthicBif@ance Team on our website.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information responsive to this item is incogied herein by reference to our Proxy Statemerddo2015 annual meeting of
shareholders to be filed with the Securities andharge Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A riet than 120 days after the end of the
fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on FofrKl

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information responsive to this item is incoagded herein by reference to our Proxy Statemermdo2015 annual meeting of
shareholders to be filed with the Securities andharnge Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A ret than 120 days after the end of the
fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on FofvKl

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information responsive to this item is incogied herein by reference to our Proxy Statemerddo2015 annual meeting of
shareholders to be filed with the Securities andharge Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A riet than 120 days after the end of the
fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on FofrKl

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information responsive to this item is incoagded herein by reference to our Proxy Statemerdo2015 annual meeting of
shareholders to be filed with the Securities andharnge Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A ret than 120 days after the end of the
fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on FofvKl
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDUL ES
(& (1) Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statementshaf Registrant and Report of PricewaterhouseCodpd?s Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm, are included herewith:

Financial Statement Description Page
» Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimm 61
Consolidated Balance Sheets As of January 31, 20d501¢ 62
Consolidated Statements of Operations For the Yieaded January 31, 2015, 2014 and 2 63

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomss{Leor the Years Ended January 31, 2015, 2012618 64
Consolidated Statements of Redeemable Convertiglief@nce Shares and ShareholdEruity For the Years

Ended January 31, 2015, 2014 and 2 65
» Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows For the Yeadsd January 31, 2015, 2014 and 2 66
* Notes to Consolidated Financial Statems 67

(@ (2) Financial Statement Schedule

Financial statement schedules are omitted bechegeare not applicable or the required informatsoshown in the Financial Stateme
or the notes thereto.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Aralt&rinc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statemfeopei@tions, of comprehensive income
(loss), of redeemable convertible preference sterdshareholders’ equity and of cash flows prefsary, in all material respects, the
financial position of Ambarella, Inc. and its subiaries at January 31, 2015 and January 31, 2@t4the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the peginded January 31, 2015 in conformity with accimgnprinciples generally accepted in the
United States of America. Also in our opinion, tiempany maintained, in all material respects,atiffe internal control over financial
reporting as of January 31, 2015, based on crigstiablished itnternal Control - Integrated Framework (201i8sued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway CommisfBfdSO). The Company's management is responsibtadse financial statements, for
maintaining effective internal control over finaalcieporting and for its assessment of the effectdss of internal control over financial
reporting, included in Management's Report on l@kControl over Financial Reporting appearing uritlen 9A. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statement®aride Company's internal control over financiglorting based on our audits (which was an
integrated audit in fiscal year 2015). We conduatedaudits in accordance with the standards oPilidic Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards requiteatbglan and perform the audits to obtain reaslenafsurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement amdh&h effective internal control over financial ogfing was maintained in all material
respects. Our audits of the financial statemamtsided examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accountingiptas used and significant estimates made by neanagt, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. Our audit cdrimal control over financial reporting included @ibing an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk thataderial weakness exists, and testing and evafygtie design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. @uitsaalso included performing such other proceslasewe considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provideaaonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsiéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (fppeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsofdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readnaassurance regarding prevention or timely detectf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers L

San Jose, Californi
March 30, 201!
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AMBARELLA, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Marketable securitie
Accounts receivable, n
Inventories
Restricted cas
Deferred tax assets, curre
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Deferred tax assets, r-current
Other asset
Total asset

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Income taxes payab
Deferred tax liabilities, curretl
Deferred revenue, curre
Total current liabilities
Deferred revenue, n-current
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Shareholders' equit

Preference shares, $0.00045 par value per shaB8®000 shares authorized and no
shares issued and outstanding at January 35,8t January 31, 2014, respectiv

Ordinary shares, $0.00045 par value per sharep@0MO0 shares authorized at
January 31, 2015 and January 31, 2014, respégtR0,837,529 shares issued and
outstanding at January 31, 2015; 28,748,513shasued and outstanding at

January 31, 201
Additional paic-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive income (li

Retained earning
Total shareholde’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders' equ

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&sients.
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January 31, January 31,
2015 2014
$ 170,29 $ 143,39¢
37,70: —
40,18( 18,83
21,69 10,452
8 3
1,99C 1,59¢
3,50¢€ 2,951
275,37 177,23¢
3,07t 3,01¢€
3,93¢ 1,134
1,90z 1,91¢
$ 284,28« 183,301
21,03¢ 8,321
18,69¢ 11,70¢
748 545
92 —
4,907 4,831
45,48 25,402
198 —
1,39:¢ 1,544
47,073 26,94¢€
14 13
140,56¢ 110,28¢
) —
96,634 46,06
237,21 156,36!
$ 284,28¢ 183,301




AMBARELLA, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Year Ended January 31,

2015 2014 2013

Revenue $ 218,27¢  $ 157,60¢ $ 121,06¢
Cost of revenu 79,142 57,761 40,40¢
Gross profit 139,13¢ 99,84 80,661
Operating expenses:

Research and developmt 57,97¢ 48,771 42,82¢

Selling, general and administrati 29,297 23,15: 17,92¢
Total operating expens 87,27¢ 71,93( 60,75¢
Income from operation 51,861 27,917 19,90¢
Other income (loss), ni 175 (22) 136
Income before income taxes 52,03¢ 27,89 20,04z
Provision for income taxe 1,46E 2,241 1,854
Net income $ 50,571 $ 25,65¢ $ 18,18¢
Net income per share attributable to ordinary sthalcers:

Basic $ 170 $ 093 $ 0.64

Diluted $ 157 $ 085 $ 0.60
Weighted-average shares used to compute net inpenghare

attributable to ordinary shareholde
Basic 29,742,65. 27,680,77! 13,511,64
Diluted 32,278,12 30,172,56. 15,016,98!

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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AMBARELLA, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (1S3B)
(in thousands)

Year Ended January 31,

2015 2014 2013
Net income $ 50,571 $ 25,65¢ % 18,18¢
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gains (losses) on investme (1) — —
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of 1) — —
Comprehensive income $ 50,57C $ 25,65¢ $ 18,18¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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AMBARELLA, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLEREFERENCE SHARES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Balance--January 31, 2012
Conversion of redeemable convertible prefere
shares to ordinary shar
Issuance of shares in connection with initial
public offering, net of issuance cc
Conversion of preference share warrants to
ordinary share warran
Exercise of stock options, dollar amounts net «
unvested stock options exercised e
Vesting of early exercised stock optic
Stock-based compensation expense related tc
stock awards granted to employees and
consultant:
Excess income tax benefit associated with sto
based compensatic
Net income

Balance--January 31, 2013

Exercise of stock options, dollar amounts net «
unvested stock options exercised e
Vesting of early exercised stock optic
Vesting of restricted stock uni
Employee stock purchase pl
Exercise of warrants to purchase ordinary sh
Stock-based compensation expense related tc
stock awards granted to employees and
consultant:
Excess income tax benefit associated with sto
based compensati
Net income

Balance--January 31, 2014
Exercise of stock options, dollar amounts net «
unvested stock options exercised e
Vesting of early exercised stock optic
Vesting of restricted stock uni
Employee stock purchase pl
Stock-based compensation expense related tc
stock awards granted to employees and
consultant:
Excess income tax benefit associated with sto
based compensati
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments -
of taxes
Net income

Balance--January 31, 2015

(in thousands, except share data)

Redeemable Accumulated
Convertible Outstanding Additional Other
Preference Share: Ordinary Shares Paid-in Comprehensive Retained
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Earnings Total
13,315,72° $ 50,90(C 7,600,86¢ $ 3 $ 422 % — $ 2,221 $ 6,44¢
(13,315,72) (50,900 | 13,315,72 6 50,89¢ — — 50,90(
— — 5,804,65!: 3 30,412 — — 30,41¢
— — — — 110 — — 110
— — 313,82i — 950 — — 950
— — — — 314 — — 314
— — — — 4,99¢ — — 4,99¢
— — — — 7 — — 7
— — — — — — 18,18¢ 18,18¢
— — 27,035,07- 12 91,911 — 20,40¢ 112,33
— — 1,160,28t¢ 1 6,91¢ — — 6,92C
— — — — 143 — — 143
— — 174,88¢ — — — — —
— — 341,97: — 1,744 — — 1,744
— — 36,292 — 130 — — 130
— — — — 8,53¢ — — 8,53¢
— — — — 903 — — 903
— — — — — — 25,654 25,654
— — 28,748,51. 13 110,28t — 46,06: 156,36
— — 1,456,94. 1 8,507 — 8,50¢
— — — — 59 — 59
— — 484,29¢ — — — —
— — 147,77¢ — 2,73¢ — 2,735
— — — — 15,69: — 15,69-
— — — — 3,28¢ — 3,28€
— — — — — = (1)
— — — — — 50,571 50,571
— 3 — 30,837,52! $ 14 $140,56¢ $ (1) $96,63¢ $237,21]

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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AMBARELLA, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended January 31,

2015 2014 2013
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 50,571 $ 25,65¢ 18,18¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating
activities:
Depreciation of property and equipmi 1,33t 1,09¢€ 737
Amortization/accretion of marketable securii 675 — —
Loss on disposal of lor-lived asset: 21 13 4
Amortization of other intangible asst — — 270
Stocl-based compensatic 15,692 8,53E 4,99¢
Excess income tax benefits associated with -based compensatic (3,286) (903) 7
Other nol-cash items, ne 26 — (149)
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (21,349 1,31€ (10,66¢)
Inventories (11,247) (1,539 (2,132
Prepaid expenses and other current a: (563) (375) (1,139
Deferred tax asse (3,199 (433) (871)
Other asset 307 63 (443)
Accounts payabl 12,71¢ 1,27C 45
Accrued liabilities 6,68¢€ (2,539 6,65€
Income taxes payab 3,49C 807 (244)
Deferred tax liabilitie: 92 — —
Deferred revenu 274 1,38C (4,757)
Net cash provided by operating activit 52,25¢ 34,35( 10,514
Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment in a private compa (290) — —
Purchase of investmer (59,807) — —
Sales of investmen 8,72¢ — —
Maturities of investment 12,66¢ — —
Net proceeds from disposal of fixed ast — 13 —
Purchase of property and equipm (1,367) (1,703) (1,52¢)
Restricted Cas — — 514
Net cash used in investing activiti (40,06)) (1,68€) (1,014
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock options, warramd,employee
stock purchase plan, net of repurchase of stptikns 11,414 9,36( 1,61C
Payment for initial public offering co — (25) (1,950
Proceeds from initial public offering, net of unaeiting discounts
and commission — — 32,39(
Excess income tax benefits associated with -based compensatic 3,28¢ 903 —
Net cash provided by financing activiti 14,70C 10,23¢ 32,05(
Net increase in cash and cash equival 26,897 42,90(¢ 41,55(C
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 143,39 100,49 58,94
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 170,29 $ 143,39« 100,49
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for income tax $ 1,06 $ 1,76€ 3,40z
Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing acthies:
Increase in accrued liabilities related to -monetary assets purcha: $ 75 % 24 122
Supplemental disclosure of noncash financing actities:
Increase in accrued liabilities related to -monetary financing activitie $ — 3 — 25
Conversion of redeemable convertible preferenceestta ordinary share $ — 3 = 50,90(
Conversion of redeemable convertible preferenceesharrants to ordinary
share warrani $ —  $ — 110

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsients
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AMBARELLA, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accountig Policies
Organization

Ambarella, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporatedhie Cayman Islands on January 15, 2004. The Coyripandeveloper of
semiconductor processing solutions for video thatée high-definition video capture, sharing argptiiy. The Company combines its
processor design capabilities with its expertiseid®o and image processing, algorithms and soéw@provide a technology platform that is
designed to be easily scalable across multipleé@dfmns and enable rapid and efficient productettggment. The Company’s system-on-a-
chip, or SoC, designs fully integrate high-defimitivideo processing, image processing, audio psotgsind system functions onto a single
chip, delivering exceptional video and image qualiifferentiated functionality and low power congption.

The Company sells its solutions to leading origatedign manufacturers, or ODMs, and original eqeiptmanufacturers, or OEMs,
globally.

In October 2012, in connection with its initial pieloffering, or IPO, the Company completed theesafl 6,000,000 ordinary shares
inclusive of 1,095,349 shares sold by certain di@ders of the Company. In November 2012, a tdt&08,000 ordinary shares were sold to
the Company'’s IPO underwriters in connection wiitéit exercise of the over-allotment option. Thelmubffering price of the shares sold in
this offering was $6.00 per share. The total netgeds from the offering to the Company were apprately $30.4 million after deducting
underwriting discounts and commissions and othierioy expenses. Upon the completion of the IPOL&B15,727 outstanding redeemable
convertible preference shares converted into orgighares on a one-to-one basis and all outstavaimgants to purchase redeemable
convertible preference shares converted into westapurchase ordinary shares.

Basis of Consolidation

The Company'’s fiscal year ends on January 31. dhsalidated financial statements of the Companyi@mlbsidiaries have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted actimg principles in the United States (“U.S. GAAPAIl intercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesméntonformity with U.S. GAAP requires managenteninake estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts etassd liabilities, the disclosure of contingesgets and liabilities at the date of the financia
statements and the reported amounts of revenuexaahse during the reported periods. Actual resolitd differ from those estimates.

On an ongoing basis, management evaluates itsate8rand assumptions, including those related th€icollectability of accounts
receivable; (ii) write down for excess and obsolrtentories; (iii) the estimated useful lives ohy-lived assets; (iv) impairment of long-lived
assets and financial instruments; (v) warrantygatiions; (vi) the valuation of stock-based comp#gosawards and marketable securities;
(vii) the probability of performance objectives &slement; (viii) the realization of tax assets astimates of tax liabilities, including reserves
for uncertain tax positions; and (ix) the recogmtand disclosure of contingent liabilities. Theséimates and assumptions are based on
historical experience and on various other factdrieh the Company believes to be reasonable uhéecitcumstances. The company may
engage thirgparty valuation specialists to assist with estimadated to the valuation of financial instrumeantsl assets associated with var
contractual arrangements. Such estimates ofterireciipe selection of appropriate valuation methodis and significant judgment. Actual
results could differ from these estimates unddedéht assumptions or circumstances.

Concentration of Risk

The Company’s products are manufactured, asserablé@dested by third-party contractors located prilgnan Asia. The Company does
not have long-term agreements with these contracfosignificant disruption in the operations okamr more of these contractors would
impact the production of the Company’s productsoitdould have a material adverse effect on itsnmssi, financial condition and results of
operations.

67




A substantial portion of the Company’s revenueeswtd from sales through its logistics providein®ch Microelectronics Co., Ltd.,
or Wintech, which serves as its non-exclusive sapsesentative in Asia other than Japan, and ¢ffirame large direct ODM customer,
Chicony Electronics Co., Ltd., or Chicony. Termipatof the relationships with these two customensla result in a temporary or permanent
loss of revenue and obligation to repurchase ung@duct. Furthermore, any credit issues from thesecustomers could impair their abilities
to make timely payment to the Company. See Not®dadditional information regarding concentratiwith these two customers.

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@npany to concentrations of credit risk consignprily of cash, cash equivalents,
marketable securities and accounts receivable Cimepany maintains its cash primarily in checkindg aroney market accounts with repute
financial institutions. Cash deposits held withsthéinancial institutions may exceed the amountsfirance provided on such deposits. The
Company has not experienced any material losselepasits of its cash. The cash equivalents andeteble securities consist primarily of
money market funds, asset-backed securities, cooimh@aper and debt securities of corporations Whi@anagement assesses to be high cre
quality, in order to limit the exposure of eachestment. The Company does not hold or issue fiahimstruments for trading purposes.

The Company performs ongoing credit evaluationsaah of its customers and adjusts credit limitetagpon payment history and the
customer’s credit worthiness. The Company regulaadyitors collections and payments from its custame

Foreign Currency Transactions

The U.S. dollar is the functional currency for empany and its subsidiaries. Monetary assetsiahilities denominated in non-U.S.
currencies are re-measured to U.S. dollars usingicuexchange rates in effect at the balance sletet Nonmonetary assets and liabilities are
re-measured to U.S. dollars using historical exghaates. Monetary and other accounts aragasured to U.S. dollars using average exct
rates in effect during each period. Gains or logsas foreign currency re-measurement are includeather income (loss), net in the
consolidated statements of operations, and, tq Hatee not been material.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value accounting is applied to all finad@ssets and liabilities and non-financial asaatkliabilities that are recognized or
disclosed in the financial statements on a recgtoiasis. The carrying amounts reflected in the alideted balance sheets for cash equivalent
accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrueititiehand other current liabilities, approximdisgr value due to the short-term nature.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

The Company considers all highly liquid investmanith original maturities of less than three mordihshe time of purchase to be cash
equivalents. Investments that are highly liquidwatiginal maturities at the time of purchase gee#ttan three months are considered as
marketable securities.

The Company classifies these investments as “dlaifar-sale” securities carried at fair value, dd®n quoted market prices of similar
assets, with the unrealized gains or losses rahargt of tax, as a separate component of sharefsoéjuity and included in accumulated o
comprehensive income (loss) in the consolidatedrza sheets. The amortization of security premiamasaccretion of discounts and the
realized gains and losses are both recorded im mtbeme (loss), net in the consolidated statemehtperations. The Company reviews its
investments for possible other-than-temporary impants on a regular basis. If any loss on investnsdoelieved to be other-thaamporary,
charge will be recorded and a new cost basis ifntrestment will be established. In evaluating aleeta loss on a security is other-than-
temporary, the Company considers the followingdextl) general market conditions, 2) the duragind extent to which the fair value is less
than cost, 3) the Company’s intent and ability eddithe investment.

For securities in an unrealized loss position whéctieemed to be other-than-temporary, the difisgdretween the security’s then-
current amortized cost basis and fair value is sged into (i) the amount of the impairment relai@the credit loss (i.e., the credit loss
component) and (ii) the amount of the impairmetstsal to all other factors (i.e., the non-cred#éd@omponent). The credit loss component is
recognized in earnings. The non-credit loss compbiserecognized in accumulated other comprehereisse Due to the relative short term
nature of the investments, there have been no-tithertemporary impairments recorded to date.
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Trade Accounts Receivable and Allowances for Doulb#hccounts

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at thedada@mount and do not include finance charges Cdmpany performs ongoing cre
evaluation of its customers and generally requiesollateral. The Company assesses the needdaraaices for doubtful accounts for
estimated losses resulting from the inability efdtistomers to make required payments by consglé@tiors such as historical collection
experience, credit quality, aging of the accouat®ivable balances and current economic conditlatsmay affect a customer’s ability to pay.
There were no writeffs of accounts receivable for fiscal years 2B, 4 and 2013, respectively. There was no matalt@vance for doubtfi
accounts recorded as of January 31, 2015 and 2&dgkctively.

Inventories

The Company records inventories at the lower of cosnarket. The cost includes materials and gbheduction costs and is computed
using standard cost on a first-in, fiait basis. Inventory reserves are recorded fomastid obsolescence or unmarketable inventories ot
forecast of future demand and market conditionactéial market conditions are less favorable thajepted, or if future demand for the
Company'’s products decrease, additional inventoitevdowns may be required. Once inventory is erittlown, a new accounting cost basis
has been established and, accordingly, any assdaiaserve is not reversed until the inventoryld sr scrapped. There have been no materi
inventory losses recognized to date.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost and dafée using the straight-line method over thenestiéd useful life of three years for
computer equipment, computer software, machinapipement and furniture and fixture. Leasehold inyerents are amortized over the
shorter of the lease term or their estimated udized. Repairs and maintenance are charged tonerpas incurred.

Internal-Use Software

The Company capitalizes certain software thatdgiied and developed solely for internal use. Taqgtalization costs include fees for
services provided to develop software during thgieation development stage, costs incurred toinlstaftware, and certain costs for
employees who are directly associated with and difextly devote time to the project. The capitdi@a begins when the preliminary project
stage is completed and ceases no later than thegiovhich the project is substantially complatd eeady for its intended use after all
substantial testing is completed. The internalaafevare is amortized over its estimated usefal Repairs and maintenance are charged to
expense as incurred. As of January 31, 2015, timp@oy has capitalized approximately $1.6 millionndérnal-use software and has been
recorded in property and equipment, net on theal@sed balance sheets.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company records long-lived assets at cost eald&tes them for impairment whenever events ongésiin circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not baverable. Events or changes in circumstances thgtindicate that an asset is impaired
include significant decreases in the market vafuenasset, significant underperformance relativexipected historical or projected future
results of operations, a change in the extent ammiain which an asset is utilized, significantldess in the estimated fair value of the overall
Company for a sustained period, shifts in techngltass of key management or personnel, changé®iCompany’s operating model or
strategy and competitive forces. When the sumeettpected future undiscounted cash flows expdotbd generated by the related asset
group is less than its carrying amount, an impanthess would be recognized. Should impairmentteiti® impairment loss would be
measured based on the excess of the carrying arobthe asset over the asset'stimated fair value. There has been no occuerehevents ti
date that would trigger an impairment analysissAsh, no impairment charge has been recognizetiJasoary 31, 2015.

Cost Method Investment

The Company accounts for its investment in a pelyateld company under the cost method and repmetsivestment in other assets in
the consolidated balance sheets. The Company metite carrying value of the investment and recartsduction in carrying value when a
decline in value is deemed to be other than tenmpofa date, there have been no identified eventhanges in circumstances that may ha
significant adverse effect on the fair value oftimvestment and the Company has not recognizethgrgirment losses related to this
investment.
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Revenue Recognition

The Company generates revenue from the sales $6s to OEMs or ODMs, either directly or througbistics providers. Revenue
from sales directly to OEMs and ODMs is recogniapdn shipment provided persuasive evidence of mmgement exists, legal title to the
products and risk of ownership have transferreglfele is fixed or determinable, and collectionha tesulting receivable is reasonably assure
The Company provides its logistics providers with tights to return excess levels of inventory nfiiture price adjustments. Given the
inability to reasonably estimate these price charayel returns, revenue and costs related to shiprtelogistics providers are deferred until
the Company has received notification from its $tigs providers that they have sold the Companydsiycts. Information reported by the
Company’s logistics providers includes product leegaice, quantity and end customer shipment infdgirom as well as remaining inventory on
hand. At the time of shipment to a logistics pr@ridhe Company records a trade receivable as iherkegally enforceable right to receive
payment, reduces inventory for the value of godiisped as legal title has passed to the logistiogiger and defers the related margin as
deferred revenue in the consolidated balance sh&eysprice adjustments are recorded as a chandefeored revenue at the time the
adjustments are agreed upon.

Arrangements with certain OEM customers providepficing that is dependent upon the end produdtsvitnich the Company’s SoCs
are used. These arrangements may also entitledimp&hy to a share of the product margin ultimatedlized by the OEM. The minimum
guaranteed amount of revenue related to the sadeodiicts subject to these arrangements is recegimiben all other elements of revenue
recognition are met. Any amounts at the date qfraknt invoiced in excess of the minimum guaranteedract price are deferred until the
additional amounts the Company is entitled to axedfor determinable. Additional amounts earnedhgyCompany resulting from margin
sharing arrangements and determination of the ewalipts into which the products are ultimately iparated are recognized when end
customer sales volume is reported to the Company.

The Company sells a limited amount of software upeéepetual licenses that include post-contracioensr support, or PCS. The
Company does not have evidence of fair value felR8S and, accordingly, license revenue is recednitably over the estimated supporting
period in accordance with ASC 985, Software RevdReeognition. The Company also enters into develgragreements with certain
customers. Revenue is deferred for any amountsdiltior to delivery of development services. Hoereyf the Company retains the
intellectual property generated from these devekmragreements, receipts and costs related to sinesggements are included in research ar
development expense. The revenue from those lisears services was not material for the fiscalyeaded January 31, 2015, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue includes cost of materials, cast@ated with packaging and assembly, testing hipghsg, cost of personnel, stock-
based compensation, logistics and quality assuravereanty cost, royalty expense, write-downs @timories and allocation of overhead.

Warranty Costs

The Company typically provides warranty on its prod. The Company accrues for the estimated warcsts at the time when
revenue is recognized. The warranty accruals angdady monitored by management based upon histbeixperience and any specifically
identified failures. While the Company engagesxtersive product quality assessment, actual prddilate rates, material usage or service
delivery costs could differ from estimates and s@nis to the estimated warranty liability wouldrequired. The Company’s warranty accruals
have not been material to date.

Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed agdhand consist primarily of personnel costs, pobdlevelopment costs, which
include engineering services, development softaarkhardware tools, license fees, cost of fabdoatif masks for prototype products, other
development materials costs, depreciation of eqeigrased in research and development and allocatitatilities costs.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expense cansispersonnel costs, travel and trade show clestal expenses, other professional
services and occupancy costs. Advertising expemees not been material to date.
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Operating Leases

The Company recognizes rent expense on a straighbasis over the term of the lease. The diffexrdratween rent expense and rent
payment is recorded as deferred rent and is indlirdaccrued liabilities in the consolidated baksbeets.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company measures stdeksed compensation for equity awards granted tdogmeps and directors based on the estimated fhie
on the grant date, and recognizes that compensagienpense using the straight-line attributionhm@for service condition awards or using
the graded-vesting attribution method for award$ werformance conditions over the requisite serpieriod, which is typically the vesting
period of each award. The Company estimates thedhie of restricted stock units, or RSUs, basethe fair market value of its ordinary
shares on the grant date. The Company uses thk-Blawles option pricing model to determine the ¥alue of stock options. Determining
the fair value of stock options on the grant datguires the input of various assumptions, includitogk price of the underlying ordinary share
the exercise price of the stock option, expectddtiity, expected term, riskree interest rate and dividend rate. The expetetad is calculate
using the simplified method as prescribed in thiel@uce provided by the Securities and Exchange Jesiom, as neither relevant historical
experience nor other relevant data are availabdstimnate future exercise behavior. The expectéatility is based on the historical volatilities
of similar companies whose share prices are pyldichilable for a period commensurate with the etguterm. The risk-free interest rate is
derived from the average U.S. Treasury constanamtgtrates during the respective periods commeatsuvith the expected term. The
expected dividend yield is zero because the Compasynot historically paid dividends and has ne@néintention to pay dividends. The
Company uses historical data to estimate pre-vgstivard forfeitures and records stock-based conapiensonly for those awards that are
expected to vest. Forfeitures are estimated airtteeof grant and revised if necessary in subsequetiods if actual forfeitures differ from
estimates.

The Company recognizes non-employee stock-basegermsation expense based on the estimated fair ghthe equity instrument.
The fair value of the non-employee awards is renmegksat each reporting period until services regliirnder the arrangement are completed,
which is the vesting date.

Prior to the initial public offering, or IPO, theo@pany engaged an independent appraiser to as#is valuation of its ordinary share
price. The board of directors directed these regudhuations and had input into determining thevaht objective and subjective factors
accounted for and relevant approaches in eachti@u@fter the IPO, the exercise price of stocki@p awards is determined by the closing
price of the Company’s ordinary shares traded cm NASDAQ Global Market on the grant date.

Income Taxes

The Company records income taxes using the asdéiadnility method, which requires the recognitioideferred tax assets and
liabilities for the expected future tax consequenakevents that have been recognized in its fiiahstatements or tax returns. In estimating
future tax consequences, generally all expecteddigvents other than enactments or changes axHaw or rates are considered. Valuation
allowances are provided when necessary to redueereé tax assets to the amount expected to bizedal

The Company applies authoritative guidance forattmounting for uncertainty in income taxes. Thalgote requires that tax effects
position be recognized only if it is “more likelgan not” to be sustained based solely on its teethmerits as of the reporting date. Upon
estimating the Company’s tax positions and tax fisn¢he Company considered and evaluated numdantsrs, which may require periodic
adjustments and which may not reflect the finalliailities. The Company adjusts its financialtetaents to reflect only those tax positions
that are more likely than not to be sustained uegtamination.

As part of the process of preparing consolidatedrftial statements, the Company is required tonastiits taxes in each of the
jurisdictions in which it operates. The Companyreates actual current tax exposure together wisessing temporary differences result
from differing treatment of items, such as accraaid allowances not currently deductible for tagopses. These differences result in deferre
tax assets, which are included in the consolidbtddnce sheets. In general, deferred tax assetsseay future tax benefits to be received whe
certain expenses previously recognized in the dmteged statements of operations become deduaipenses under applicable income tax
laws, or loss or credit carryforwards are utilized.

In assessing whether deferred tax assets may limebananagement considers whether it is mordylitean not that some portion or all
of deferred tax assets will be realized. The ulterraalization of deferred tax assets is depengigon the generation of future taxable income.
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The Company makes estimates and judgments abdutute taxable income based on assumptions teat@rsistent with its plans and
estimates. Should the actual amounts differ frotimeges, the amount of valuation allowance couldnagerially impacted. Any adjustment to
the deferred tax asset valuation allowance woulceberded in the income statement for the perindghiich the adjustment is determined tc
required.

Net Income Per Ordinary Share

The Company applies the two-class method to cédkalad present net income per ordinary share. Uthéewo-class method, net
income is allocated between ordinary shares arnef gidrticipating securities based on their paréitiig rights. Participating securities are
defined as securities that may participate in unbdisted earnings with ordinary shares, whether plaaticipation is conditioned upon the
occurrence of a specified event or not. Basic metine per ordinary share is computed by dividingmame allocable to ordinary shares by
the weighted-average number of ordinary sharegandsg for the period. Diluted net income per nadly share is computed by dividing net
income allocable to ordinary shares and incomealite to participating securities, to the extenythre dilutive, by the weighted-average
number of ordinary shares outstanding, includirgdtutive effects of participating securities anigiconverted basis plus the dilutive effects
of ordinary shares. The Compasyiotential dilutive ordinary share equivalentssisinof incremental ordinary shares issuable uperekercis
of options, upon the issuance of shares pursughet&mployee Stock Purchase Plan, or ESPP, upeaseeof vested restricted stock units,
upon conversion of its redeemable convertible pegfee shares and upon exercise of warrants.

The Company performs an assessment as to whestermrents granted in stock-based payment transacéie participating securities.
Stock-based payment awards that have not yet vestetithe definition of a participating securitpyided the right to receive the dividend is
non-forfeitable and non-contingent. These partiidigasecurities should be included in the compatetf basic net income per ordinary share
under the two-class method. The Company has coedltitht its non-vested early-exercised options theedefinition of a participating
security and should be included in the computadioibasic net income per ordinary share.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) includes unrealizedsgai losses from available-for-sale securities @ha excluded from net income.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@dqaFASB”) issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue fromn@acts with Customers
(Topic 606). The new guidance clarifies the pritespand develops a common revenue recognition goafor U.S. GAAP and International
Financial Reporting Standards (the “IFRS”). Under hew guidance, an entity should recognize revemdepict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount tflatte the consideration to which the entity expdotbe entitled in exchange for those good:
or services. To achieve this core principle, anteshall identify the contract(s) with a customielentify the performance obligations in the
contract, determine the transaction price, allotdadransaction price to the performance obligetio the contract, and recognize revenue
when (or as) the entity satisfies a performanceabbn. The new guidance is effective for anneplarting periods beginning after
December 15, 2016, including interim periods witthiat reporting period. Early adoption is not peted. The new revenue guidance may be
applied retrospectively to each prior period préseior retrospectively with the cumulative effestagnized as of the date of adoption. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact of adwpbn its financial position, results of operasand disclosures.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15clisure of Uncertainties about an Entity’s AbililyContinue as a Going
Concern. In connection with each annual and intgémod, management is required to assess whétbir is substantial doubt about an
entity’s ability to continue as a going concernhiritone year after the issuance date, and to peaeldted footnote disclosures in certain
circumstances. The new guidance is effective fowahperiods ending after December 15, 2016, atediin periods within annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2016. Early adoptsgpeirmitted. This ASU is not expected to have guaich on the Company’s financial
statements or disclosures.
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2. Financial Instruments and Fair Value

Beginning in fiscal year 2015, the Company investgubrtion of its cash in marketable securities #na denominated in United States
dollars. The investment portfolio consists of monegrket funds, asset-backed securities, commepajadr and debt securities of corporations
All of the investments are classified as availdolesale securities and reported at fair valueghadonsolidated balance sheets as follows:

As of January 31, 201t

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(in thousands)
Money market fund $ 2,427 $ — 3 — 3 2,427
Commercial pape 1,497 — — 1,497
Corporate bond 32,35¢ 9 (20) 32,35t
Asse-backed securitie 3,851 — — 3,851
Total cash equivalents and marketable secul $ 40,131 $ 9 $ (100 $ 40,13(
As of
January 31,
2015
(in thousands)
Included in cash equivaler $ 2,427
Included in marketable securiti 37,70%
Total cash equivalents and marketable secul $ 40,13(

The contractual maturities of the investments atiday 31, 2015 were as follows:

As of

January 31,
2015

(in thousands)

Due within one yea $ 37,55¢
Due within one to two yeal 2,571
Total cash equivalents and marketable secul $ 40,13(

The unrealized losses on the available-for-salargtees were caused by fluctuations in market valnd interest rates as a result of the
economic environment. As the decline in market @alas attributable to changes in market conditaansnot credit quality, and because the
Company neither intended to sell nor was it mdeelyi than not that it will be required to sell thaavestments prior to a recovery of par value
the Company did not consider these investments wilter-than temporarily impaired as of January2815.

The following fair value hierarchy is applied fasdosure of the inputs used to measure fair valbhés hierarchy prioritizes the inputs
into three broad levels as follows:
Level 1—Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices irvaatiarkets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2—Inputs are quoted prices for similar asaets liabilities in active markets or inputs theg abservable for the assets or
liabilities, either directly or indirectly througharket corroboration, for substantially the fulinteof the financial instruments.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs based on the Compawisassumptions used to measure assets and iegbditfair value. The inputs
require significant management judgment or estiomati

The Company measures the fair value of money méwkels using quoted prices in active markets fentital assets and classifies tr
within Level 1. The fair value of the Company’s @siments in other debt securities are obtaineddb@seuoted prices for similar asserts in
active markets, or model driven valuations usimggidicant inputs derived from or corroborated bysetvable market data and are classified
within Level 2.
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The following table presents the fair value of timancial instruments measured on a recurring kesisf January 31, 2015:

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in thousands)
Money market fund $ 2427 $ 2427 $ — 3 —
Commercial pape 1,497 — 1,497 —
Corporate bond 32,35t — 32,35t —
Asse-backed securitie 3,851 — 3,851 —
Total cash equivalents and marketable secul $ 40,13C $ 2,427 $ 37,70 $ —

3. Inventories
Inventories at January 31, 2015 and 2014 consistdte following:

As of January 31,

2015 2014
(in thousands)
Work-in-progress $ 13,80t $ 5,11¢
Finished good 7,88¢ 5,333
Total $ 21,69 $ 10,45z

4. Property and Equipment, net

Depreciation expense was approximately $1.3 millgin1 million and $0.7 million for the years endkthuary 31, 2015, 2014 and 2(
respectively. Property and equipment at Januarg@15 and 2014 consisted of the following:

As of January 31,
2015 2014
(in thousands)

Computer equipment and softw: $ 531C $ 4,521
Machinery and equipme 2,234 2,114
Furniture and fixture 456 411
Leasehold improvemen 1,21¢ 1,19¢
Construction in progres 64 —
9,27¢ 8,244
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortize (6,204) (5,22€)
Total property and equipment, r $ 3,07t $ 3,01¢

In March 2013, the Company entered into a leaseesgent of approximately 35,000 square feet fanets headquarters located in Se
Clara, California with an initial five-year termuBuant to the lease agreement, the Company atrgeay certain construction costs. As of
January 31, 2014, the Company had capitalized appately $0.7 million of leasehold improvementsaa®sult of the construction, which is
being depreciated over the term of the lease.

In August 2012, the Company began implementatiatsanterprise resources planning (“ERP”) systamof January 31, 2015, the
Company capitalized approximately $1.6 million mfernal-use software related to the ERP implemiemtgiroject and amortized over an
estimated economic useful life of three years uadgraight-line method.
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5. Accrued Liabilities
Accrued liabilities at January 31, 2015 and 201dsggted of the following:

As of January 31,

2015 2014
(in thousands)
Accrued employee compensati $ 11,31¢ $ 8,10¢
Accrued warrant 203 269
Accrued rebate 254 270
Accrued product development co 5,004 1,904
Other accrued liabilitie 1,92C 1,154
Total accrued liabilitie: $ 18,69¢ $ 11,70¢

6. Deferred Revenue and Deferred Cost

Deferred revenue and related cost at January 35 @0d 2014 consisted of the following:

As of January 31,
2015 2014
(in thousands)
Deferred revenue on product shipme $ 4,66 $ 5,174
Deferred revenue from licenses & servi 1,61C 1,02z
Deferred cost of revenue on product shipm: (1,16€) (1,36€)
Total deferred revenue, n $ 5,10t $ 4,831

7. Capital Stock
Initial Public Offering

In October 2012, in connection with its initial piehoffering, or IPO, the Company completed theesafl 6,000,000 ordinary shares
inclusive of 1,095,349 shares sold by certain di@ders of the Company. In November 2012, a tdt&08,000 ordinary shares were sold to
the Company’s IPO underwriters in connection whtéit exercise of over-allotment option. The publifering price of the shares sold in this
offering was $6.00 per share. The total net proséexn the offering to the Company were approxinya$80.4 million after deducting
underwriting discounts and commissions and othierioy expenses. Upon the completion of the IPOL&B15,727 outstanding redeemable
convertible preference shares converted into orgighares on a one-to-one basis and all outstavaimgants to purchase redeemable
convertible preference shares converted into westanpurchase ordinary shares.

Preference shares

After completion of the IPO, a total of 20,000,q@¥@ference shares, with a $0.00045 par value @eestvere authorized. There were nc
shares issued and outstanding as of January 3%,a8212014, respectively.

Warrants

In connection with a financing agreement in 2004, Company issued warrants to purchase 36,292medse convertible preference
shares at an exercise price of $3.582 per share.

Prior to the closing of IPO, the Company utilizee Black-Scholes option pricing model to determivefair value of the warrants,
including the consideration of underlying ordinahare price, a risk-free interest rate, expected sad expected volatilities. Certain inputs
used in the model were unobservable. As a resgityaluation of warrants was categorized as Lewelsé@cordance with ASC 820, Fair Value
Measurement. The warrants were revalued up toltising of IPO and any change in fair value had breeorded in other income (loss).

Upon the completion of the IPO, the warrants tachase redeemable convertible preference sharegrtedvo warrants to purchase
ordinary shares. As a result, $110,000 of aggrefgatenarket value was reclassified from liabilgtito shareholders’ equity. As of January 31,
2014, the warrants were fully exercised and werknger outstanding.
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Ordinary shares

200,000,000 ordinary shares were authorized atadgardi, 2015 and 2014, respectively. As of JanBar2015 and 2014, the following
ordinary shares were reserved for future issuance:

As of January 31,
2015 2014
Shares reserved for options and restricted stoitk 5,055,84! 5,699,53(
Shares reserved for employee stock purchase 667,99( 456,41(

8. Employee Benefits and Stock-based Compensation
401(k) Plan

The Company maintains a defined contribution 40p{&h (the “401(k) Plan”) for all of its eligible.8. employees. Under the 401(k)
Plan, eligible employees may contribute up to titerhal Revenue Service annual contribution lindtatThe Company is responsible for
administrative costs of the Plan. The Company lba$iad any matching contributions to date.

Stock Option Plans

2004 Stock PlanThe board of directors adopted, and the sharetokjggroved, the 2004 Stock Plan, as amended, Z661“Plan”).
The 2004 Plan was last amended on August 28, 2022004 Plan provides for the grant of incentieels options (“ISOs”) within the
meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Gdd®86, as amended (the “Code”), nonstatutorgkstgptions (“NSOs”), stock purchase
rights to acquire restricted stock and restrictedlsunits. Upon the completion of the IPO, no &ddal awards will be granted under the 2004
Plan and the 2004 Plan was terminated. Howeveousditanding stock options and other awards preWyagranted under the 2004 Plan will
remain subject to the terms of the 2004 Plan.

2012 Equity Incentive PlanThe board of directors adopted, and the shareroljgsroved, the 2012 Equity Incentive Plan, (the"E
The EIP became effective on October 8, 2012. Tiredermits the grant of ISOs, within the meaninettion 422 of the Code, to employees
of the Company and any of the Company’s subsidiarporations, and the grant of NSOs, stock apptieaigights, restricted stock, restricted
stock units, performance units, performance shalefgrred stock units and dividend equivalentsnipleyees, directors and consultants of the
Company and any of the Company’s subsidiary cotfmorsl employees and consultants.

The exercise price of ISOs granted to a holderafenthan 10% of the voting power of all classethefCompany’s shares shall be no
less than 110% of fair market value on the graté.dehe exercise price of ISOs granted to otherleyegs and NSOs shall be no less than
100% of fair market value on the grant date. Opgtigranted under the Plan have a term of up to afsyfeom grant date. Options granted to
new employees generally vest 25% on the first aamary service date of the grant and remainderraébly over the following 36 months.
Vesting schedules for other option grants vary amdsubject to approval by the board of directors.

Restricted stock units, or RSUs, granted to newleyegs generally vest as to 1/4th of the sharab®effirst anniversary service date of
the grant and 1/16th of the RSUs vest every 3 nothbreafter, so as to be 100% vested on the fauaritversary of the vesting
commencement date. Vesting schedules for otheicseand performance condition awards vary and abgst to approval by the board of
directors; provided that the performance RSUs stwllvest at all until the performance conditions achieved and are subject to the RSU
holder continuing to provide services to the Conypdanough such vesting dates. The performance tondRSUs are automatically forfeited
in their entirety, without any cost to or actionttne Company, if there has been no achievemetegbérformance.

On February 1, 2014, the Company added 1,297,5%Bavy shares to the ordinary shares reserved$oiance, pursuant to an
“evergreen” provision contained in the EIP. Purddarsuch provision, on February 1st of each figealr, the number of ordinary shares
reserved for issuance under the EIP is automaticatteased by a number equal to the lesser 8{%)0,000 ordinary shares, (ii) four and one
half percent (4.5%) of the aggregate number ofrangi shares outstanding on January 31st of theegieg fiscal year, or (iii) a lesser number
of shares that may be determined by the Companyasdof Directors.

2012 Employee Stock Purchase Plarhe board of directors adopted, and the sharel®obfgsroved, the 2012 Employee Stock Purc
Plan, or ESPP, which became effective upon the tatiop of IPO. The ESPP permits eligible particifsato purchase ordinary shares at a
discount through contributions of up to 10% of thedigible compensation, subject to any IRS limitas. The ESPP provides for offering and
purchase periods of six months in duration. Thelpase price of ordinary shares is 85% of the lavi¢he closing market price of the
Company'’s ordinary shares on the first trading diegach offering period or on the purchase date.
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On February 1, 2014, the Company added 359,356amdshares to the ordinary shares reserved foamnes, pursuant to an
“evergreen” provision contained in the ESPP. Purst@such provision, on February 1st of each figear, the number of ordinary shares
reserved for issuance under the ESPP is automwaticeieased by a number equal to the lesser df§00,000 ordinary shares, (ii) one and
quarter percent (1.25%) of the aggregate numberdihary shares outstanding on such date, orafiipmount determined by the Company’s
Board of Directors or a duly authorized committé¢he Board of Directors.

Early Exercise RightsCertain employees have the rights to early exeraisested options, subject to repurchase rights$ inethe
Company at their original purchase price upon teation of employment until vested. As of JanuaryZ115 and 2014, a total of 86,925 and
86,340 shares of unvested early exercised opti@ns vepurchased, respectively. The unvested eatlgised shares subject to the Company’
repurchase rights were not material as of Janubrg@®15.

Stock-based Compensation
The following table presents the classificatiorstufck-based compensation for the periods indicated:
Year Ended January 31,

2015 2014 2013
(in thousands)

Stocl-based compensatio

Cost of revenu $ 343 $ 178 $ 92
Research and developme 8,654 4,887 2,942
Selling, general and administrati 6,69t 3,47C 1,96t
Total stocl-based compensatic $ 15,69 $ 8,53t $ 4,99¢

As of January 31, 2015, total unrecognized compansaost related to unvested stock options anaested restricted stock units was
$10.3 million and $48.7 million, respectively, asdkxpected to be recognized over a weighted-aegragod of 2.39 years and 2.90 years,

respectively.

The following table sets forth the weighted-averageumptions used to estimate the fair value o$tiek options and employee stock
purchase plan awards for the periods indicated:

Year Ended January 31,

2015 2014 2013

Stock Options

Volatility 64% 65% 66%

Risk-free interest rat 1.92% 1.55% 0.91%

Expected term (year: 6.01 6.06 6.05

Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Employee stock purchase plan awa

Volatility 49% 52% 51%

Risk-free interest rat 0.07% 0.04% 0.18%

Expected term (year: 0.5 0.5 0.94

Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
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The following table summarizes stock option aciigtfor the periods indicated:

Option Outstanding

Weighted-
Total
Intrinsic Average
Weighted- Value of Remaining Aggregate
Weighted- Average options Contactual Intrinsic
Average Grant-date Exercised Term Value
Exercise (in (in
Shares Price Fair Value thousands) (in years) thousands)
Outstanding at January 31, 2C 4,375,90t $ 5.63
Grantec 451,071 879 $ 5.23
Exercisec (313,82) 3.21 $ 2,087
Forfeited (168,619 7.22
Outstanding at January 31, 2C 4,344,53! 6.07
Grantec 255,52( 18.14 $ 10.8t
Exercisec (1,160,286 5.96 $ 18,217
Forfeited (81,069) 10.34
Outstanding at January 31, 2C 3,358,70¢ 6.92
Grantec 428,781 36.32 $ 21.3i
Exercisec (1,456,944 5.84 $ 46,427
Forfeited (48,639 13.3¢
Outstanding at January 31, 2C 2,281,90¢ $ 13.0C 6.35 $ 96,547
Exercisable at January 31, 2C 155390 $ 7.22 53C $ 74,73t
Vested and expected to vest at January 31, 2,239,65( $ 12.6¢ 6.3C $ 95,48-

Exercisable shares include options with early @gerdghts. The vested and expected-to-vest optomgalculated based on vesting

schedule of each grant as of the reporting date.

The intrinsic value of options outstanding, exeaable and expected-tgest options are calculated based on the differbatgeen the fa
market value of the Company’s ordinary shares enr¢iporting date and the exercise price. The dagiite of the Company’s ordinary shares
was $55.31 on January 31, 2015, as reported bNREDAQ Global Market. The intrinsic value of exesed options is calculated based on
the difference between the fair market value ofGloenpany’s ordinary shares on the exercise datehenexercise price.

The following table summarizes restricted stocksuactivities for the periods indicated:

Weighted-

Average

Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value
Unvested at January 31, 20 — $ —
Granted 345,171 9.99
Vested — —
Forfeited (5,959 9.99
Unvested at January 31, 20 339,21 9.99
Granted 1,265,47: 14.7¢€
Vested (174,88¢) 11.91
Forfeited (19,717) 11.97
Unvested at January 31, 20 1,410,08¢ 14.0z
Granted 1,111,20: 38.6C
Vested (484,29¢) 17.3¢
Forfeited (56,549) 19.9:
Unvested at January 31, 20 1,980,44¢ $ 26.82

As of January 31, 2015, the aggregate intrinsioevalf unvested restricted stock units was $1091komi
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Non-employee Stock-based Compensation

The fair value of awards granted to non-employsetetermined on the grant date and remeasured anthof each reporting period
until such awards vest. The non-employee stockebasmpensation was not material for the years eddedary 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

9. Net Income Per Ordinary Share
The following table sets forth the computation aiz and diluted net income per ordinary share¢hermperiods indicated:
Year Ended January 31,

2015 2014 2013
(in thousands, except share and per share dat

Numerator:
Net income $ 50571 $ 2565« $  18,18¢
Less: amount allocable to preference shareho — — (9,5179)
Less: amount allocable to unvested early exerapdions (11) (31) (61)
Net income allocable to ordinary shareholc- basic $ 5056( $ 2562 $ 8,61(C
Undistributed earnings reallocated to ordinary shalders 1 2 432
Net income allocable to ordinary shareholc- diluted $ 50561 $ 25628 $ 9,047
Denominator:
Weightec-average ordinary shares outstanc 29,749,35.  27,713,99¢  13,599,27.
Less: weighted-average unvested early exercisedngpt
subject to repurcha: (6,707) (33,220 (87,627
Weightec-average ordinary shar- basic 29,742,65. 27,680,77¢ 13,511,64!
Effect of potentially dilutive securitie
Employee stock optior 1,818,40: 2,034,50( 1,443,80!
Restricted stock uni 704,78¢ 316,35( 16,93(
Employee stock purchase pl 12,28t 138,46! 27,23(
Warrants to purchase ordinary she — 2,474 6,737
Ovetr-allotment share — — 10,63¢
Weightec-average ordinary shar- diluted 32,278,127 30,172,56. 15,016,98!
Net income per ordinary shal
Basic $ 170 $ 093 $ 0.64
Diluted $ 157 $ 0.8 $ 0.6C

Earnings per share (EPS) of ordinary shares wasleséd using the two-class method required fotigpating securities. Prior to the
date of the IPO, all series of redeemable conJerfibeference shares were considered to be patiiogpsecurities due to their non-cumulative
dividend rights. In connection with the Company?l in October 2012, all outstanding redeemable exditie preference shares converted to
ordinary shares. Net income has been allocatduktordinary shares, redeemable convertible pretershares and unvested early exercised
options based on their respective rights to shareet income and weighted-average outstanding gldine periods.

The following weighted-average potentially dilutisecurities were excluded from the computationiloted net income per ordinary
share as their effect would have been antidilutive:

Year Ended January 31,

2015 2014 2013
Options to purchase ordinary sha 217,51+« 183,85¢ 2,053,52(
Restricted stock unit 167,70z 1,57¢ 60,50¢
Employee stock purchase pl 36,11( 10,591 20,35¢
Early exercised options subject to repurcl 6,701 33,22( 87,621
Redeemable convertible preference shares
(if-converted basis — — 9,131,82:
Warrants to purchase ordinary she — 24,88¢
428,021 229,25;  11,378,72
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10. Income Taxes

Income before income taxes consisted of the folhgwor the periods indicated:

U.S. operation
Non-U.S. operation
Income before income taxes

Year Ended January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in thousands)

$ 197¢ $ 1,99C $ 3,264
50,05¢ 25,90¢ 16,77¢
$ 52,03¢ $ 27,89 $ 20,042

Income tax provision consisted of the following tbe periods indicated:

Current:
U.S. federal ta:
U.S. state taxe
Non-U.S. foreign taxe

Deferred:
U.S. federal ta:
U.S. state taxe
Non-U.S. foreign taxe

Provision for income taxes

Income tax provision differed from the amounts coiep by applying the U.S. federal income tax rdit8486 to pretax income as a

result of the following for the periods indicated:

U.S. federal tax at statutory re
U.S. state taxe
Non-U.S. foreign tax differentie
Stoclk-based compensatic
U.S. R&D credit
Other

Provision for income taxes

Year Ended January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in thousands)

$ 3,13t $ 1,73t % 2,022

93 23 5
1,34¢ 1,05¢ 701
4,57¢ 2,81¢ 2,72¢

(3,20¢) (952) (743)

— 341 (109)
97 33 (22)
(3,111) (579) (874)

$ 1,465 $ 2,241 $ 1,854

Year Ended January 31,
2015 2014 2013
(in thousands)

$ 17,69z $ 9,484 $ 6,814

90 361 (107)
(15,644 (7,674) (4,519)
1,601 927 682
(2,29¢) (859) (890)
24 1 (132)

$ 1,465 $ 2,241 $ 1,854
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Temporary differences that gave rise to signifigaortions of the Company’s deferred tax assetdiabdities at January 31, 2015 and
2014 were as follows:

As of January 31,
2015 2014
(in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Federal and state cred $ 6,465 $ 2,587

Expenses not currently deductil 1,59C 1,14¢

Foreign deferrel — 26

Stoclk-based compensatic 2,044 1,46C

Gross deferred tax assets 10,09¢ 5,22z

Valuation allowance (3,996 (2,302)

Total deferred tax assets $ 6,10 $ 2,92C

Deferred tax liabilities

Property and equipme (199) (187)

Foreign deferre (70) —

Net deferred tax assets $ 5834 $ 2,73¢

Tax valuation allowance for the periods indicatetblw were as follows:
Deductions
Additions Charged to
Balance at Additional Charged to Expenses Balance at
Beginning of Charged to Other or Other End of
Period Expenses Account Accounts Period
(in thousands)
Tax Valuation Allowanct

Year ended January 31, 2C $ 2,302 1,694 — — $ 3,99%
Year ended January 31, 2C $ 1,243 1,05¢ — — $ 2,302
Year ended January 31, 2C $ 1,301 — — (58) % 1,243

The Company conducts its business in several desrdnd regions and is subject to taxation in thmssdictions. The Company is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with foreignssdilaries in the U.S., China, Taiwan, and otheeifgm countries and regions. As such, the
Company'’s worldwide operating income is subjectdoying tax rates and its effective tax rate ishhiglependent upon the geographic
distribution of its earnings or losses and theldays and regulations in each geographical regieams€quently, the Company has experienced
lower effective tax rates as a substantial amoftiits @perations are conducted in lower-tax juigsidns. If the Companyg operational structu
was to change in such a manner that would incriggsamount of operating income subject to taxatidmgher-tax jurisdictions, or if the
Company was to commence operations in jurisdictamsessing relatively higher tax rates, its effectax rate could fluctuate significantly o
quarterly basis and/or be adversely affected. Riveldistributions received from the Company’s Wishsidiary and certain other foreign
subsidiaries may be subject to local country witimg taxes when, and if, distributed. Deferred liakilities have not been recorded on
unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries becens@agement’s intent is to indefinitely reinvesy andistributed earnings in those
subsidiaries. If dividend distributions from thaaebsidiaries were to occur, the liability as ofulay 31, 2015 would be $28.6 million.
Cumulative undistributed earnings of foreign sulasids for which no deferred taxes have been peal@pproximated $4.1 million at
January 31, 2015.

As of January 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company hmirdd tax assets (net of deferred tax liabilitiesfore valuation allowance, of
$9.8 million and $5.0 million, respectively. Realiion of the deferred tax assets is dependent fygore taxable income, if any, the amount
and timing of which are uncertain.

The Company has Federal and California state relsesrd development credit carryforwards of appratety $2.6 million and $5.9
million, respectively, at January 31, 2015. Thedtaticredits begin to expire in fiscal year 203de Talifornia credits can be carried forward
indefinitely.
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The Company reports its U.S. state deferred tagtassd related valuation allowance, net of thefed@ral tax rate of 34%. As of
January 31, 2015, the Company has no valuatiowatioe other than state deferred tax assets asotihealy has sufficient positive evidence
to indicate no other valuation allowance is neeated result of the Company’s history of profitatyeerations in the United States. As of
January 31, 2015, the Company has a full valuailmwance against its U.S. state deferred tax sisket to uncertainty regarding the future
utilization of these deferred tax assets.

Utilization of the research credit carryforwardsyniee subject to an annual limitation due to the emship percentage change limitations
as defined by the U.S. Internal Revenue Code Se88@, as amended, and similar state provisions.aiimual limitation may result in the
expiration of the U.S. Federal and state reseastiitccarryforwards before utilization. The Compaitnes not expect any tax credit
carryforwards to expire as a result of a Sectioh [B8itation.

The Company applies the provisions of FASB’s gut@aon accounting for uncertainty in income taxesofAJanuary 31, 2015, the
Company had approximately $4.7 million in unrecaeditax benefits, $2.8 million of which would affélse Company’s effective tax rate if
recognized. The following table sets forth a red@ton of the beginning and ending amount of wagnized tax benefits:

Year Ended January 31,

2015 2014 2013
(in thousands)

Beginning balance: $ 3,58z $ 3,01¢ $ 2,21¢
Additions based on tax positions related to the

current yea 1,284 539 325

Additions for tax positions of prior yea 324 62 690

Settlements for prior perioc (43) — —

Lapse of applicable statute of limitatic (477) (36) (210)

Ending balance: $ 4,671 $ 3,68: $ 3,01¢

The Company classified $1.2 million and $1.3 miliaf income tax liabilities as other long term llakes as of January 31, 2015 and
2014, respectively, because payment of cash deset is not anticipated within one year from bladance sheet date.

The Company recognizes interest and penaltiesrktatuncertain tax positions as a component afnrectax expense. The Company
recorded $7,180, $37,000 and $23,000 of intergstrese and penalties related to uncertain tax posifor the years ended January 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013, respectively. The Company recordedurrent liabilities of $160,000 and $153,000 teddao interest and penalties for
uncertain tax positions at January 31, 2015 and 2@Epectively.

The Company is subject to income tax in the U.8effal jurisdiction and various state and foreigisflictions. The U.S. Internal
Revenue Service has concluded its audit of the @Goryip Federal income tax return for the fiscal yeeded January 31, 2010 with no
adjustments.

The Company believes that an adequate provisiobéas made for any adjustments that may result feonexaminations. However,
the outcome of tax audits cannot be predicted wéttainty. If any issues addressed in the Compaay'audits are resolved in a manner not
consistent with management’s expectations, the @oypould be required to adjust its provision foadme tax in the period such resolution
occurs. Although timing of the resolution and/aystire of audits is highly uncertain, the Compangsdaot believe it is reasonably possible
its unrecognized tax benefits would materially adgam the next 12 months.

As of January 31, 2015, the Company’s long-ternoine taxes payable, including estimated interestipamdlties, was approximately
$1.4 million. The Company was unable to make aamaisly reliable estimate of the timing of paymentsdividual years due to uncertainties
in the timing of tax audits, if any, or their outnes.
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11. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases its principal facilities andetibased software licenses under operating agresmhtvarious expiration dates
through April 2018. Net operating lease expenseth® years ended January 31, 2015, 2014 and 26d8approximately $5.8 million, $5.0
million and $4.3 million, respectively. Future amhminimum payments under these operating agreeswetit initial lease terms in excess of
one year are as follows:

As of
January 31,

2015
Fiscal Year (in thousands)
2016 $ 5,48¢
2017 4,96¢
2018 1,37¢
2019 238
2020 —
Total future annual minimum lease payme $ 12,06¢

Contract Manufacturer Commitments

The Company’s components and products are proeuréduilt by independent contract manufactureredbas sales forecasts. These
forecasts include estimates of future demand, tigstictrends, analysis of sales and marketing @iets; and adjustment of overall market
conditions. The Company regularly issues purchaders to independent contract manufacturers whiettancelable only upon the agreemen
between the Company and the third-party. As of dgn81, 2015 and 2014, total manufacturing purclcasemitments were approximately
$27.5 million and $13.7 million, respectively.

Indemnification

The Company, from time to time, in the normal cews$business, indemnifies certain vendors with mlibenters into contractual
relationships. The Company has agreed to holdtther party harmless against third-party claimsdnrection with the Company’s future
products. The Company also indemnifies certainatusts against third party claims related to ceritatigllectual property matters. It is not
possible to determine the maximum potential amodiiability under these indemnification obligat®due to the limited history of prior
indemnification claims and the unique facts andwinstances that are likely to be involved in eamtiiqular claim. The Company has not m
payments under these obligations and no liabillieage been recorded for these obligations on thedtiwlated balance sheets as of January 3
2015 and 2014, respectively.

12. Segment Reporting

The Company operates in one reportable segmem¢deia the development and sales of low-power,-digfmition video products. The
Chief Executive Officer of the Company has beemiified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (t8©DM”) and manages the Compasy’
operations as a whole and for the purpose of etiafpéinancial performance and allocating resourties CODM reviews financial informati
presented on a consolidated basis accompanieddiynation by customer and geographic region.

Geographic Revenue

The following table sets forth the Company’s reveby geographic region for the periods indicated:

Year Ended January 31,

2015 2014 2013
(in thousands)

Hong Kong $ 196,372 $ 13538 $ 104,45¢
Asia Pacific 2,35¢ 2,80¢ 550
United State! 6,677 7,12¢ 7,99(
North America 6,07¢€ 4,594 2,602
Europe 6,79~ 7,69E 5,46¢€

Total revenu $ 218,27¢ $ 157,606 $ 121,06¢
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As of January 31, 2015, substantially all of ther(pany’s long-lived assets were located in the Wn@tates and Asia Pacific region
with approximate net amount of $1.8 million andGthillion, respectively. As of January 31, 2014hstantially all of the Company’s long-
lived assets were located in the United Statesfail Pacific region with approximate net amoun$2f0 million and $0.9 million,
respectively.

Major Customers

The customers representing 10% or more of revend@ecounts receivable were Wintech, the Compdayistic provider, and
Chicony, a direct ODM customer, which combined acted for approximately 89%, 85% and 80% of toéalenue for the years ended
January 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. éatsoreceivable with these two customers combircedunted for approximately $36.2
million and $15.9 million as of January 31, 2015l 2914, respectively.

13. Related-Party Transactions

The Company considers an entity to be a relatety fat owns more than 10% of the Company’s totating stock at the end of each
reporting period or if an officer or employee ofemtity also serves on the Company’s board of thrsar if it is a significant shareholder and
has material business transactions with the Company

In fiscal year 2015, the Company added additioafilvsre license commitments to its existing sofevicense agreement with Cadence
Design Systems, Inc. (“Cadence”). A member of tben@any’s Board of Directors is also the Chief ExamuOfficer, President and a Director
of Cadence. Under these license commitments, tinep@ony committed to pay an aggregate amount of ®illlen payable through January
2017. The Company paid $2.3 million, $1.7 milliarde$1.8 million under these agreements for thesyeaded January 31, 2015, 2014 and
2013, respectively. License expenses related sethgreements included in research and develomushivere approximately $1.9 million,
$1.7 million and $1.8 million for the years endedhdary 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

In addition to the related party transactions natledve, the Company recognized revenue from sal@4ritech, the Company’logistics
provider. Wintech, along with an affiliate, ownegpaoximately 4.6% of the Company'’s voting stocloddanuary 31, 2013, but has sold such
stock and is no longer a significant shareholdehefCompany as of January 31, 2015 and 2014, ctépky. The Company recognized
revenue from sales to Wintech of approximately $125illion, $88.7 million and $76.5 million for theears ended January 31, 2015, 2014 ar
2013, respectively. As of January 31, 2015 and 281Company had receivables from Wintech of axprately $12.1 million and $7.9
million, respectively.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized, on March 30, 2015.

AMBARELLA, INC.

By: /s| George Laplant
George Laplante, Chief Financial Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each persbose signature appears below hereby constiumgsppoints
George Laplante as his true and lawful agent, pemd/attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitut and resubstitution, for him and in his
name, place and stead, in any and all capaciti€g, act on, sign, and file with the Securitiesld&xchange Commission any and all
amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, ttogrewith all schedules and exhibits thereto,d@) on, sign, and file such certificates,
instruments, agreements and other documents abenagcessary or appropriate in connection therewittl (iii) take any and all actions that
may be necessary or appropriate to be done, gsféulbll intents and purposes as he might or caaléh person, hereby approving, ratifying
and confirming all that such agent, proxy and aggrin-fact or any of his substitutes may lawfudly or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélptie following persons on beh
of the registrant and in the capacities and on WM&ft, 2015.

Signature Title.

/sl Fen-Ming Wang President, Chief Executive Officer, Executive

Fen¢-Ming Wang Chairman and Director (Principal Executive Officer)
/sl George Laplant Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and daunting Officer)

George Laplant

/s/ Les Kohr Chief Technical Officer and Direct
Les Kohn

/s/ Chenming C. Hi Director

Chenming C. Ht

/sl Christopher B. Paisle Director

Christopher B. Paisle

/s/ Jeff Richardso Director
Jeff Richardsot

/s/ Lip-Bu Tan Director
Lip-Bu Tan
/s/ Andrew W. Verhale Director

Andrew W. Verhaler
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EXHIBITS INDEX

Exhibit
Number Description
3.1(1) Amended and Restated Memorandum obdiason and Second Amended and Restated Arti¢léssociation of the
Registran
4.1(2) Third Amended and Restated InvestRights Agreement, dated January 5, 2012, by anchgrAmbarella, Inc. and certain

of its shareholder

10.1.1(3)* Amended and Restated 2004 Stock |

10.1.2(4)* Form of Stock Option Agreement under Amended ansta®ed 2004 Stock Pl:

10.1.3(5)* Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement unélerended and Restated 2004 Stock |

10.2.1(6)* 2012 Equity Incentive Pla

10.2.2(7)* Form of Stock Option Agreement under 2012 Equitehtive Plar

10.2.3(8)* Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under 2012 Fduitentive Plar

10.2.3(9)* Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under 2B#Rity Incentive Plai

10.3(10)* 2012 Employee Stock Purchase F

10.4(11)* Form of Indemnification Agreeme

10.5(12)* Offer Letter entered into by Ambarella, Inc. wite@ge Laplante dated March 3, 2011, as ame

10.6.1(13)* Form of Change of Control and Samee Agreement, entered into by Ambarella, Inchhe Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer and Chief Technology Offic

10.6.2(14)* Form of Change of Control and Sawee Agreement, entered into by Ambarella, Inchwitecutive officers other than the
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officerdhief Technology Office

10.7.1(15)* Description of Executive Bonus Plan For Fiscal Y2at3

10.7.2(16)* Description of Executive Bonus Plan For Fiscal Y2@t4

10.7.3(17)* Description of Executive Bonus Plan For Fiscal Y2@i5

10.7.4(18)* Description of Executive Bonus Plan For Fiscal Y2216

10.8.1(19) Sales Representative Agreement dated January 31,80and between Ambarella, Inc. and WT Microetauts Co., Ltd

10.8.2(20) Amendment No. 1 to Sales RepreseatAgreement dated February 1, 2012 by and betweelnarella, Inc. and
WT Microelectronics Co., Ltc

10.8.3(21) Amendment No. 2 to Sales RepreseatAgreement dated October 1, 2012 by and betwaslparella, Inc. and
WT Microelectronics Co., Ltc

10.9.1(22) Lease dated September 29, 2006 by and between IR&rtdandley Employee’ Investment Co. and Ambarella Corporat

10.9.2(23) First Amendment to Lease dated Ndeari2, 2009 by and between Renault & Handley Eygas’ Investment Co. and
Ambarella Corporatio

10.10(24) Lease Agreement dated March 1, 2013 by and bet&edrarella Corporation and Westcore Jay, LI

21.1(25) List of subsidiaries of the registre

23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, indepemndgigtered public accounting fir

24.1 Power of Attorney (included in signature pac

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive OfficRequired Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(aheSecurities Exchange Act of

1934, as amende
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31.2 Certification of Principal Financial OfficRequired Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a)@fSecurities Exchange Act of
1934, as amende

32.1+ Certification of Principal Executive Qfir and Principal Financial Officer Required UnBere 13a-14(b) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and 18 U.S.G(&

101.INS XBRL Instance Documer

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Schema Linkbase Docum

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Documk

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Docume

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Labels Linkbase Docume

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Docum

(1) Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 12, 20

(2) Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on August 22, 201

(3) Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 12, 20

(4) Incorporated by reference to the For-1 (No. 33:-174838) filed on June 10, 201

(5) Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 12, 20

(6) Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 12, 20

(7) Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 12, 20

(8) Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 12, 20

(9) Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 12, 20

(10) Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 12, 20

(11) Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 12, 20

(12) Incorporated by reference to the For-1 (No. 33:-174838) filed on June 10, 201

(13) Incorporated by reference to the For-1 (No. 33:-174838) filed on June 10, 201

(14) Incorporated by reference to the For-1 (No. 33:-174838) filed on June 10, 201

(15) Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on August 22, 201

(16) Incorporated by reference to the For-K filed on March 11, 201:

(17) Incorporated by reference to the For-K filed on March 21, 201¢

(18) Incorporated by reference to the For-K filed on March 2, 201&

(19) Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 26, 20

(20) Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on September 26, 20

(21) Incorporated by reference to the For-1/A (No. 33:-174838) filed on October 5, 201

(22) Incorporated by reference to the For-1 (No. 33:-174838) filed on June 10, 201

(23) Incorporated by reference to the For-1 (No. 33:-174838) filed on June 10, 201

(24) Incorporated by reference to the Forn-K filed on April 4, 2013

(25) Incorporated by reference to the For-1 (No. 33:-174838) filed on June 10, 201

* Management contracts or compensation plans orgeraents in which directors or executive officemrs eligible to participat

+ In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Redida S-K and SEC Release No. 33-8238 and 34-47986) Rule: Managemerst’'Report
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting andtffieation of Disclosure in Exchange Act PeriodReports, the certifications furnisr
in Exhibits 32.1 hereto are deemed to accompayRbim 10-K and will not be deemed “filed” for poges of Section 18 of the
Exchange Act. Such certifications will not be dedrntebe incorporated by reference into any filingsler the Securities Act or the
Exchange Act, except to the extent that the remispecifically incorporates it by referen
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢lee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N83:-135078, 333-184506 and 333-

187730) of Ambarella, Inc. of our report dated MeB6, 2015 relating to the financial statementstardeffectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting, which appears in this FormKLO-

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
March 30, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Certification of Principal Executive Officer Required Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

I, Feng-Ming Wang, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fmbarella, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theégos presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the etiin which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financégarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registgadisclosure controls and procedures and presentais report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrarBurth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabre that has materially affected, or is reasopdikély
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal tmhover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anltlve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a si@miifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2015

/sl Fen-Ming Wang

Fen¢-Ming Wang

President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
Certification of Principal Financial Officer Requir ed Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

I, George Laplante, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fmbarella, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegos presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the etiin which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financégarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presentais report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrarBurth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabre that has materially affected, or is reasopdikély
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal tmhover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anltlve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a si@miifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2015

/sl George Laplante

George Laplant

Chief Financial Office

(Principal Financial and Accounting Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND PR INCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Feng-Ming Wang, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.@ctn 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9@tteoBarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the
Annual Report of Ambarella, Inc. on Form KOfor the fiscal year ended January 31, 2015 fotynplies with the requirements of Section 1
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 tirad information contained in such Annual Repart@rm 10-K fairly presents in all
material respects the financial condition and rtssofl operations of Ambarella, Inc.

Date: March 30, 2015

By: /s/ Fen-Ming Wang
Name: Fen¢-Ming Wang
Title: President and Chief Executive Offic

I, George Laplante, certify, pursuant to 18 U.SS€ction 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9@&darbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the
Annual Report of Ambarella, Inc. on Form KOfor the fiscal year ended January 31, 2015 fatiynplies with the requirements of Section 1
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 tirad information contained in such Annual Repaort@rm 10-K fairly presents in all
material respects the financial condition and tssofl operations of Ambarella, Inc.

Date: March 30, 2015

By: /sl George Laplant
Name: George Laplant
Title: Chief Financial Office




